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TRUSTEES OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY 

California State University 
Office of the Chancellor 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, CA  90802 

 
AGENDA 

January 28-29, 2014 
Long Beach, CA  90802 

 
Time* Committee Place 
Tuesday, January 28, 2014 
 8:00 a.m.  Board of Trustees – Closed Session    Long Beach Hilton 

Executive Personnel Matters   
Government Code §11126(a)(1) 

   
1:15 p.m. Committee on Educational Policy    Munitz Conference Room  

 Subcommittee on Honorary Degrees—Closed Session 
     Government Code §11126(c)(5)     

 
 2:00 p.m. Board of Trustees – Closed Session    Munitz Conference Room 

Executive Personnel Matters   
Government Code §11126(a)(1) 
 

Litigation Matters  
Donselman et al. v. CSU  
Government Code §11126(e)(1) 
 

3:30 p.m. Committee on Educational Policy and  
Board of Trustees—Closed Session    Munitz Conference Room 

1. Honorary Degree Nominations and Subcommittee Recommendations, Action 
    Government Code §11126(c)(5) 
 

3:45 p.m.  Committee on Collective Bargaining—Closed Session Munitz Conference Room 
Government Code §3596(d) 
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4:30 p.m. Committee on Collective Bargaining—Open Session  Dumke Auditorium 

1. Ratification of Tentative Agreement with Bargaining Unit 6 (State Employees’ 
Trades Council), Action 

2. Ratification of Tentative Agreement with Bargaining Unit 8 (Statewide University 
Police Association), Action 

3. Ratification of Tentative Agreement with Bargaining Unit  (Union of American 
Physicians and Dentists), Action   

4. Adoption of Initial Proposals for Successor Contract Negotiations with Bargaining 
Units 2, 5, 7 & 9 (California State University Employees Union), Action 

5. Adoption of Initial Proposals for Successor Contract Negotiations with Bargaining 
Unit 8 (Statewide University Police Association), Action 

6. Adoption of Initial Proposals for Successor Contract Negotiations with Bargaining 
Unit 10 (International Union of Operating Engineers), Action 

 
Wednesday, January 29, 2014 
8:00 a.m. Committee on Governmental Relations    Dumke Auditorium 

1. Board of Trustees Legislative Program, 2014, Action 
2. California State University 2014 Federal Agenda, Action 

 
8:30 a.m. Committee on Audit       Dumke Auditorium 

1. Audit Committee Charter, Action 
2. Office of the University Auditor Charter, Action 
3. Status Report on Current and Follow-Up Internal Audit Assignments, Information 
4. Assignment of Functions to be Reviewed by the Office of the University Auditor 

For Calendar Year 2014, Action 
5. Report of the Systemwide Audit in Accordance With Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles Including the Report to Management, Information 
6. Single Audit Reports of Federal Funds, Information 
7. National Collegiate Athletic Association Agreed-Upon Procedures, Information 

 
9:30 a.m. Committee on Organization and Rules    Dumke Auditorium 

1. Rules Governing the Board of Trustees, Information 
 

9:45 a.m.  Committee on Finance       Dumke Auditorium 
1. Report on the 2014-2015 Support Budget, Information 



 
*The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings.  This schedule of meetings is 
established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to complete its business.  Each meeting will be taken in sequence, except in 
unusual circumstances.  Depending on the length of the discussions, which are not possible to predict with precision in advance, the scheduled meeting times 
indicated may vary widely.  For two-day meetings, items scheduled toward the end of the first day potentially may not be called until the next morning.  The 
public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting listed on this schedule. 

 
3 

 
10:00 a.m. Committee on Institutional Advancement    Dumke Auditorium 

1. Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University, Action 
2. Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University, Action 
3. Naming of a Facility – Sonoma State University, Action 
4. Approval of the 2012-2013 Annual Report on Philanthropic Support to the 

California State University, Action 
 
11:00 a.m. State of the California State University Address and Luncheon 
 
 

1:30 p.m. Committee on Educational Policy     Dumke Auditorium 
2. The California State University Graduation Initiative, Information 
3. Update on Reducing Bottlenecks and Improving Student Success, Information 
4.  California State University Admission Promise Programs, Information 
5.  The Sony Electronics Faculty Award for Innovative Instruction with Technology, 

Information 
 
3:00 p.m. Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds  Dumke Auditorium 

1. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, Non-State Funded, Action 
2. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, State Funded Action 
3. Status Report on the 2014-2015 State Funded Capital Outlay Program-Governor’s 

Budget, Information 
4.   Approval of Schematic Plans, Action 

 
3:15 p.m. Committee on University and Faculty Personnel   Dumke Auditorium 

1. Executive Compensation:  Individual Transition Program, Information 
 
4:00 p.m. Board of Trustees        Dumke Auditorium 

 
 Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

Public Comment 
 
Chair’s Report 
 
Chancellor’s Report 

 
Report of the Academic Senate CSU:  Chair—Diana Guerin 
 
Report of the California State University Alumni Council:  President— Kristin Crellin 



 
*The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings.  This schedule of meetings is 
established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to complete its business.  Each meeting will be taken in sequence, except in 
unusual circumstances.  Depending on the length of the discussions, which are not possible to predict with precision in advance, the scheduled meeting times 
indicated may vary widely.  For two-day meetings, items scheduled toward the end of the first day potentially may not be called until the next morning.  The 
public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting listed on this schedule. 
 

4 
 

 
Report of the California State Student Association:  President—Sarah Couch 
 
Approval of Minutes of Board of Trustees’ Meeting of November 6, 2013 
 
Board of Trustees 

1. Posthumous Conferral of Title of Trustee Emeritus:  Peter G. Mehas 
2. Conferral of Title of Trustee Emeritus:  Bernadette Cheyne 
3. Conferral of Title of Chancellor Emeritus:  Barry Munitz 

 
Committee Reports 

 
 Committee on Collective Bargaining:  Chair—Lou Monville 

 
Committee on Governmental Relations:  Chair—Steven Glazer 

1. Board of Trustees Legislative Program, 2014 
2. California State University 2014 Federal Agenda 

 
 Committee on Audit:  Chair—Lupe C. Garcia 
 
 Committee on Organization and Rules:  Chair—J. Lawrence Norton 

1. Rules Governing the Board of Trustees 
 

Committee on Finance:  Chair—Bill Hauck 
 
Committee on Institutional Advancement:  Chair—Hugo N. Morales 

1. Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University 
2. Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University 
3. Naming of a Facility – Sonoma State University 
4. Approval of the 2012-2013 Annual Report on Philanthropic Support to the 

California State University 
 

Committee of Educational Policy:  Chair—Roberta Achtenberg 
 

 Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds: Chair—Rebecca D. Eisen 
1. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, Non-State Funded, Action 
2. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, State Funded Action 
4.   Approval of Schematic Plans, Action 
 

 Committee on University and Faculty Personnel:  Chair—Lou Monville 
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Addressing the Board of Trustees 
 
Members of the public are welcome to address agenda items that come before standing and 
special meetings of the board, and the board meeting. Comments should pertain to the agenda or 
university-related matters and not to specific issues that are the subject of collective bargaining, 
individual grievances or appeals, or litigation. Written comments are also welcome and will be 
distributed to the members of the board. The purpose of public comments is to provide 
information to the board, and not to evoke an exchange with board members. Questions that 
board members may have resulting from public comments will be referred to appropriate staff 
for response. 
 
Members of the public wishing to speak must provide written or electronic notice to the Trustee 
Secretariat two working days before the committee or board meeting at which they desire to 
speak. The notice should state the subject of the intended presentation.  An opportunity to speak 
before the board on items that are on a committee agenda will only be provided where an 
opportunity was not available at that committee, or where the item was substantively changed by 
the committee.   
 
In fairness to all speakers who wish to speak, and to allow the committees and Board to hear 
from as many speakers as possible, while at the same time conducting the public business of 
their meetings within the time available, the committee or board chair will determine and 
announce reasonable restrictions upon the time for each speaker, and may ask multiple speakers 
on the same topic to limit their presentations.  In most instances, speakers will be limited to no 
more than three minutes. The totality of time allotted for public comment at the board meeting 
will be 30 minutes, and speakers will be scheduled for appropriate time in accord with the 
numbers that sign up. Speakers are requested to make the best use of the public comment 
opportunity and to follow the rules established. 
 

Note: Anyone wishing to address the Board of Trustees, who needs any special accommodation, 
should contact the Trustee Secretariat at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 

Trustee Secretariat 
Office of the Chancellor 
401 Golden Shore, Suite 620 
Long Beach, CA  90802 
Phone:    562-951-4022 
Fax:        562-951-4949 
E-mail:  lhernandez@calstate.edu 
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COMMITTEE ON COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 

 
Meeting: 3:45 p.m., Tuesday, January 28, 2014 
  Munitz Conference Room—Closed Session 
   
  4:30 p.m., Tuesday, January 28, 2014 
  Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium—Open Session 
 

Lou Monville, Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg, Vice Chair 
Debra S. Farar 
William Hauck 
 
 

Closed Session – Munitz Conference Room 
     Government Code §35969(d) 

 
Open Session – Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
 
Consent Items 
 

 Approval of Minutes of Meeting of November 5, 2013 
 
Discussion Items 

 
1. Ratification of Tentative Agreement with Bargaining Unit 6 (State Employees’ 

Trades Council), Action 
2. Ratification of Tentative Agreement with Bargaining Unit 8 (Statewide University 

Police Association), Action 
3. Ratification of Tentative Agreement with Bargaining Unit  (Union of American 

Physicians and Dentists), Action   
4. Adoption of Initial Proposals for Successor Contract Negotiations with Bargaining 

Units 2, 5, 7 & 9 (California State University Employees Union), Action 
5. Adoption of Initial Proposals for Successor Contract Negotiations with Bargaining 

Unit 8 (Statewide University Police Association), Action 
6. Adoption of Initial Proposals for Successor Contract Negotiations with Bargaining 

Unit 10 (International Union of Operating Engineers), Action 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING OF  
COMMITTEE ON COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 

 
Trustees of The California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 5, 2013 

 
Members Present 
 
Lou Monville, Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg, Vice Chair 
Debra Farar 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
Timothy White, Chancellor 
 
Trustee Monville called the Committee on Collective Bargaining to order.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
  
The minutes of the September 24, 2013 meeting were approved as submitted.   
 
Action Items 
 
The committee ratified agreements with Bargaining Unit 11, the United Auto Workers (UAW), 
and with Bargaining Unit 13, English Language Program Instructors, and CSU Los Angeles, 
California State University Employees’ Union (CSUEU). The committee also adopted initial 
proposals for 2013-2014 Salary/Benefits re-opener negotiations with Bargaining Unit 6, the State 
Employee’s Trade Council (SETC), and for a successor Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
Bargaining Unit 3, the California Faculty Association (CFA).  Vice Chancellor Gail Brooks and 
Associate Vice Chancellor John Swarbrick presented the items. 
 
Public Speakers 
 
The Committee then heard from the public speakers.  
 
CSUEU’s Pat Gantt, Mike Geck, and John Orr spoke about CSUEU salary and salary structure 
issues. CSUEU’s Sharon Cunningham and Susan Smith spoke about contracting out. Alisandra 
Brewer (CSUEU) spoke about the Unit 13 Collective Bargaining Agreement. CFA’s Andy 
Merrifield, DD Wills, and Patricia Donze spoke about the upcoming contract negotiations, and 
Rich Anderson (UAW) spoke about the UAW Collective Bargaining Agreement. 
 
Trustee Monville adjourned the meeting. 



 
AGENDA 

 
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 
Meeting: 8:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2014 
  Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
 
 Steven M. Glazer, Chair 
 Douglas Faigin, Vice Chair 

 Debra S. Farar  
 Margaret Fortune 
 Lupe C. Garcia 
 J. Lawrence Norton 
 Steven G. Stepanek 
 Cipriano Vargas 

 
 
Consent Items 
 
  Approval of Minutes of Meeting of November 5, 2013 
 
Discussion Items 
 

1. Board of Trustees Legislative Program, 2014, Action 
2. California State University 2014 Federal Agenda, Action 

 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 
Trustees of the California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 5, 2013 

  
Members Present 
Steven M. Glazer, Chair 
Douglas Faigin, Vice Chair 
Debra Farar 
Lupe C. Garcia 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
J. Lawrence Norton 
Cipriano Vargas 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Trustee Glazer called the meeting to order. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of September 25, 2013, were approved as submitted.   
 
Legislative Update  
 
Garrett Ashley, vice chancellor for university relations and advancement, provided highlights 
from the legislative report. The legislative calendar was completed on October 13, 2013, when 
the governor took final action on remaining measures. More than 2,500 measures were 
introduced in the beginning of the year; of those, around 800 made it to the legislature and the 
governor vetoed 96. 
 
Bills signed into law affect higher education and the California State University (CSU) in a 
variety of ways, including public accountability, student representation on the board of trustees, 
transfer pathways and online education. 
 
Veteran’s Legislative Update 
 
Karen Y. Zamarripa, assistant vice chancellor for advocacy and state relations, provided an 
advocacy update. The goal of the advocacy plan is to educate and inform policymakers, develop 
and strengthen relationships, expand the base of support and leverage third-party advocates at the 
local and state level. 
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An advocacy strategy was developed around CSU efforts to serve student veterans and their 
families. A series of activities have been planned at the campuses and systemwide: 
 

• Campuses were asked to invite state and local officials to their veterans’ celebrations and 
communicate the CSU’s commitment to those who served and those who continue to 
serve in the military. 

• Nine posters will be displayed at the capitol outside the governor’s office to celebrate the 
contributions and accomplishments of veterans in the CSU community. 

• A capitol briefing will be held on November 13, 2013, for staff to learn more about the 
CSU student veteran programs, resources and policies. 

 
Dr. Leslie E. Wong, president of San Francisco State University, and Dr. Donald J. Para, interim 
president of California State University, Long Beach, gave an overview of events on their 
respective campuses during the weeks surrounding Veterans Day as well as year-round programs 
that promote awareness and support veterans.  
 
Taylor Herren, president of the Associated Students at California State University, Chico, shared 
the veterans’ programs on campus and encouraged the trustees to support initiatives that promote 
student veteran success. 
 
Chair Linscheid asked what programs are available to former service members that assist them 
with the transition to civilian life before they arrive on campus. Carolina Cardenas, director of 
outreach and early assessment, noted that there are transition programs both before and after 
arrival on campus, including special courses, orientations and integration with families. San 
Diego State University works with Camp Pendleton to assist with transitions. California State 
University, San Bernardino has a special orientation program and integrates veterans with ROTC 
officers to build a sense of belonging on campus. 
 
Trustee Glazer adjourned the meeting. 
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COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

Board of Trustees Legislative Program, 2014 

Presentation By 
 
Garrett Ashley 
Vice Chancellor 
University Relations and Advancement 
 
Karen Y. Zamarripa 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Advocacy & State Relations 

Summary 

This item contains the proposed Board of Trustees Legislative Program for 2014. 

Background 

In August 2013, the chancellor requested that campus presidents and system administration 
submit proposals for the 2014 legislative session. Staff analyzed all proposals within the context 
of the state’s fiscal condition, the political and policy environment, and overall relationship to 
California State University (CSU) initiatives and priorities.  

After review and consultation with various constituencies, it is our recommendation that the 
Board of Trustees pursue two legislative proposals this year. The first makes modest 
modifications to three mandatory reports dealing with Early Start, gifts and donations, and our 
Doctorate of Nursing Practice (DNP) programs. The second responds to a request by the 
Academic Senate to ensure that our board benefits from an active faculty trustee at all times. 

Modification of Existing CSU Reporting Requirements 
 
This first proposal is a technical cleanup measure that would modify the submissions of three  
reports that the CSU provides to the legislature and the executive branch.  
 
Legislation enacted in 2012 (Assembly Bill 2497, Assembly Member Jose Solorio) required the 
CSU to work with the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) on the completion of an ongoing 
series of reports showing the impact of the CSU’s Early Start Program on students needing 
remediation. Currently, the law requires a report be submitted on January 1, 2014 and then every 
subsequent two years. Because of the nature of the review required to complete the report, the 
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CSU and the LAO are requesting the deadline be moved forward by six months, starting in 2016. 
Moving this deadline would ensure a thorough and complete analysis of the CSU’s Early Start 
Program, including how the CSU has been successful in increasing student success. 
 
The second deadline requiring modification concerns the annual report on gifts and donations to 
our system. This report is due to the legislature and executive branch annually on the fifth of 
January. The CSU has been consistently late in reporting this information. This tardiness is due 
to the required Board of Trustees approval needed prior to the report being released. The board 
does not meet at the end of December and the first meeting of the New Year takes place at the 
end of January, thus causing the report deadline to be missed. Moving the due date for this report 
to the spring would ensure the CSU submits it on time. 
 
The last report that needs modification is the report related to the DNP degree authority given to 
the CSU in 2010 with the passage of Assembly Bill 867 by Assembly Member Pedro Nava. The 
final legislation required a report by the CSU in collaboration with the LAO and the Department 
of Finance (DOF) due January 1, 2017. The compromise on this authority came together in the 
last hours of session and the reporting language was essentially taken from prior legislation 
dealing with the Doctor of Education degree. As a result, the DNP report language requires 
specific consultation with K-12 schools that is unrelated to nursing. In order to ensure that the 
evaluation and subsequent report  addresses the appropriate policy issues, the CSU requests 
modification of the language to eliminate the K-12 consultation requirement. 
 
Faculty-Trustee Holdover Appointment 
 
This proposal allows the current faculty trustee to serve beyond their two-year term until a 
successor has been appointed by the Governor. This proposal was brought forward by the 
statewide Academic Senate and ensures that this trustee position is not left vacant for long 
periods of time.  The faculty trustee speaks on behalf of the faculty on academic policies and 
curricular issues that come before the board. This voice is significantly reduced when this 
appointment remains vacant.   

This trustee is appointed by the Governor from a list of faculty provided by the Academic Senate 
and serves a two-year term. The trustee is a regular member of the 25-member board with the 
exception that they may not serve on a committee dealing with collective bargaining issues.  

The following resolution is recommended for approval: 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of The California State University, that 
the legislative proposals described in this item are adopted as the Board of 
Trustees Legislative Program for 2014. 
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COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 
California State University Federal Agenda for 2014 
 
Presentation By  
 
Garrett P. Ashley 
Vice Chancellor 
University Relations and Advancement 
 
James M. Gelb 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Federal Relations 
 
Summary 
 
This item contains a presentation of recommendations for the 2014 CSU Federal Agenda. 
 
Background 
 
In January 2013, the Board of Trustees adopted the 2013 CSU Federal Agenda, a legislative 
program for the system that included policy and fiscal priorities for the first session of the 113th 
Congress.  CSU priorities encompassed a broad range of initiatives geared toward: ensuring 
access through aid to students; preparing students for college; fostering success for California's 
diverse population; training students for tomorrow’s workforce; solving societal problems 
through applied research; and promoting state and private support for public universities. Over 
the past year, the CSU’s Office of Federal Relations (OFR) and system leaders worked to 
advance those priorities.  While the 2013 Congressional session was noted for dysfunction 
(including the sixteen-day government shutdown in October and flirting with default on the 
national debt) and lack of legislative output, the CSU had some preliminary success in key areas, 
and made important progress introducing CSU federal priorities to many new members and staff 
in the California congressional delegation. 
 
With regard to fiscal year 2014 (FY 14), which began on October 1, 2013, the CSU fought in an 
austere environment to defend priority programs and promote targeted investments in higher 
education. Thus, the CSU advocated robust funding for priority programs housed in the 
Education Department, including aid programs like the Pell Grant, the Supplemental Educational 
Opportunity Grant (SEOG), and Work-Study. Among pipeline programs, CSU promoted 
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs (GEAR UP) and TRIO 
programs (e.g., Upward Bound). Aid for institutional development programs geared toward 
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minority-serving institutions, such as those for Hispanic-serving institutions, were also high 
priorities.   
 
The system also supported FY 14 resources for a number of applied research and workforce 
training priorities outside of the Education Department. For example, in the US Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) spending bill, CSU sought funding for competitive capacity building grants 
for non land-grant colleges of agriculture (NLGCA), Hispanic-serving agricultural colleges and 
universities (HSACU), and the USDA’s Hispanic-Serving Institutions Education Grants 
Program, which has benefited many CSU students over the years. In the National Science 
Foundation (NSF) budget, the CSU promoted support for several programs that help train 
students in science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) fields, particularly to 
work in underserved communities, including the Robert Noyce Scholarship Program and the 
Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority Participation (LSAMP) program. 
 
More broadly, the CSU worked individually and as part of several coalitions to demonstrate the 
importance of investing in these education-related priorities and urged Congress to undo 
significant across-the-board cuts to many research and education programs, including most of 
those mentioned above.  These automatic cuts (called “sequestration”) were passed in 2011 as 
part of the Budget Control Act (BCA). Designed to reduce federal debt by $1.2 trillion over ten 
years (through 2021), the legislation made some immediate cuts (e.g., ending year-round Pell).  
Additionally, the intent was to force complex and difficult compromises about both entitlement 
reform and tax policy by putting into place strict annual spending caps and enacting a threat of 
additional automatic across-the-board cuts each year to discretionary defense and domestic 
spending if significant savings weren’t negotiated elsewhere. Thus far, no grand compromise has 
emerged. Democrats have fiercely resisted any entitlement changes, while Republicans have 
similarly resisted increased tax revenues – accordingly, blunt cuts occurred in FY 12 and FY 13, 
primarily hurting discretionary spending. For example, FY 13 appropriations included cuts to 
TRIO, GEAR UP, minority-serving programs, and NSF programs. Pell Grants escaped further 
cuts through sequestration but remain vulnerable as long as the spending caps set by the BCA 
remain in place. 
 
Partisan differences on how to proceed in FY 14 between the House, whose draft budget called 
for severe cuts to education programs, and the Senate, whose draft budget called for higher 
spending and the elimination of sequester cuts, all coupled with fights over health care reform, 
led to October’s government shutdown.  Finally, in December 2013, Congress reached a 
compromise budget agreement to remove the threat of additional automatic cuts in FY 14 and in 
FY 15, and to restore some of the sequester cuts made in the past.  While the compromise set a 
new top line for FY 14 spending, final numbers for individual programs have not been settled 
upon.  Nonetheless, the new higher overall budget totals for FY 14 and FY 15 represent a 
significant, albeit limited, victory for the CSU and other education funding advocates.  Priority 
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programs cut in recent years are likely to see partial restoration to earlier levels; it appears likely 
that the maximum Pell Grant will increase this fall. 
 
The CSU also worked productively with House and Senate offices on both sides of the aisle to 
advance language in a reauthorization of the Farm Bill that would better enable CSU institutions 
to compete for funds in key USDA programs. The reauthorization was ultimately postponed for 
action in 2014, but good ground work has been laid for CSU priorities.  Similarly, the CSU 
continued to promote teacher preparation priorities in connection with the still unfinished 
revision of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), including improved clinical 
teacher preparation designs, targeted resources to high-need schools and shortage fields, and 
funded data-driven accountability measures. 
 
Also during 2013, the new Congress and administration began taking a serious look at updating 
the Higher Education Act (HEA), which governs a vast array of student aid, pipeline, capacity 
building, and other priority programs.  HEA programs like the Pell Grant, student loans and 
programs that benefit minority-serving institutions are coming under renewed scrutiny.  Last 
spring, the House Committee on Education and the Workforce solicited input on HEA 
reauthorization. Particular focus was on ways to empower students as consumers; simplify and 
improve aid and loan programs; increase accessibility, affordability and completion; encourage 
institutions to reduce costs; promote innovation to improve access and delivery of higher 
education; and reduce the burden on institutions of federal requirements. In August, the CSU 
submitted extensive comments and suggestions in response to the solicitation.  In addition, 
Chancellor White met with both the chair and the ranking member of the House committee to 
discuss HEA priorities. The Senate joined the House in beginning to hold a series of 
informational hearings on HEA reauthorization issues this past fall. 
 
President Obama also set forth some broad ideas this summer that are at least in part relevant to 
HEA reauthorization. A key component is a new federal system that would rate colleges and 
universities on factors including access, affordability and student outcomes. His plan would 
make more federal student aid – such as Pell grants and student loans – available to students 
attending highly rated schools, and provide greater federal resources to institutions serving large 
numbers of students with need. It also would encourage state investment in public institutions 
and promote innovations in areas such as online learning. Chancellor White also met with top 
Education Department officials in September to discuss CSU efforts and ideas in these areas. The 
Education Department has begun working on the new ratings scheme and held its first public 
forum on the subject at CSU Dominguez Hills.  However, most of his proposals, including those 
related to student aid, would require Congressional action and be incorporated into HEA.   
 
One significant piece of higher education legislation did get enacted this year: The Student Loan 
Affordability Act of 2013. In recent years, student loan interest rates had been set at fixed rates 
by Congress. A series of declines was followed by an automatic permanent increase in 2013 to 
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6.8%. The newly enacted legislation moved all student loan interest rates (except for Perkins 
loans) to a market-based rate, with caps ranging from 8.25 percent to 10.5 percent. Interest rates 
for new loans issued in any given year will change annually, but remain fixed until the loan is 
repaid. While rates will fluctuate over time, in the short run, rates will be lower. For the current 
year, the interest rate for undergraduates is 3.86 percent (down from the prior rate of 6.8 percent), 
for graduate students the new rate is 5.41 percent (down from 6.8 percent), and for parents the 
new rate is 6.41 percent (down from 7.9 percent).  Though it had considerable bi-partisan 
support, the bill was not entirely popular with some student groups and Democrats, who were 
concerned about the potential for higher rates down the road.  But it did settle what had become a 
perennial issue in a way that did not require finding resources from elsewhere in the education 
budget.  
 
Recommendations for the 2014 Federal Agenda 
 
In September 2013, Chancellor White sent a memo to all 23 CSU presidents and senior system 
leaders soliciting recommendations and outlining criteria for the system’s 2014 Federal Agenda.  
The solicitation emphasized that the federal agenda must be consistent with the CSU system’s 
core objectives that contribute to system goals of preserving access, providing quality 
instruction, and preparing students for the workforce.  
 
Outlined below is a summary of the proposed CSU Federal Agenda for 2014.  This agenda is 
based on recent priorities, input received from campuses, review by the Council of Presidents 
and Chancellor’s Office executives, and the CSU Office of Federal Relations’ assessment of the 
current political and fiscal landscape in Washington.  The core principles (in bold lettering) are 
designed to provide a broad umbrella under which the CSU can react to the wide range of policy 
ideas that typically surface throughout a year; they also include bulleted illustrations of proactive 
priorities that are ripe for advocacy in 2014.   
 
Overall, the agenda hews closely to the system’s 2013 approach. The CSU can and should 
continue to promote federal investments in its students and institutions as efficient, productive 
targets of resources that will strengthen the American economy.  Because the Pell program will 
come under significant scrutiny due to its cost and the austere fiscal environment that generally 
prevails, the CSU should continue to place Pell at the top of its priority list.  While the CSU will 
frequently be called upon to respond to proposals made by others, such as members of Congress 
and the U.S. Department of Education, the following priority areas should be the subject of 
proactive pursuit: 
 
Improve College Access through Aid to Students: The CSU remains one of the nation’s best 
bargains. Significant state and institutional grant aid helps our neediest students. Federal 
financial aid programs remain critical to CSU students from low-income families, including over 
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180,000 who rely upon need-based Pell Grants. More than 30,000 Pell recipients receive CSU 
bachelor’s degrees each year. 
 

• Support cost of living increases in the maximum Pell grant and retain any program 
surplus for future years 

• Invest in Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant (SEOG) and Work-Study with 
focus on need 

• Prioritize federal resources for institutions serving the greatest number of students with 
need 

 
Prepare Students for College: The CSU is on the cutting edge of partnering with P-12 to 
improve student readiness and to measure the performance of CSU-trained teachers. The federal 
government is a vital partner.  
 

• Provide robust funding for effective pipeline programs like GEAR UP and TRIO and 
expand pre-K investments 

• Maintain strong federal partnership with colleges and universities to transform the 
preparation of America’s teachers and school leaders  

 
Foster Degree Completion for California's Diverse Population: The CSU provides more than 
half of all undergraduate degrees granted to California's Latino, African American and Native 
American students, and is a leader in transitioning veterans to the civilian workforce. Federal 
capacity building programs and targeted grants help bridge the completion gap.  
 

• Maintain strong support for Hispanic-serving and other minority-serving institutions  
• Support the needs of America’s veterans on campus and smooth their transition to the 

civilian workforce  
 
Educate Students for Tomorrow's Workforce: 96,000 annual graduates drive California's 
economy in the information technology, life sciences, agriculture, business, education, public 
administration, entertainment and multimedia industries.  
 

• Support science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) fields, including 
funding for NSF’s Louis Stokes Alliances for Minority Participation and Robert Noyce 
Teacher Scholarship programs  

• Invest in USDA Hispanic-serving Institutions National Program  
 
Solve Societal Problems through Applied Research: In laboratories, at field sites and through 
programs at the CSU, students, faculty and collaborating scientists advance California’s 
capacity to address key issues of significance to our state and nation.  
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• Maximize opportunities for comprehensive universities to compete for federal resources, 
including in STEM programs included in the America COMPETES Act 

• Maintain strong NSF, NIH, Department of Energy and NIST funding  
• Invest in Hispanic-serving agricultural colleges and universities (HSACU) and non-land-

grant colleges of agriculture (NLGCA) programs 
 
Promote State and Private Support for Public Universities: State funding for public 
institutions of higher education is critical to keeping tuition affordable.  Federal incentives can 
help boost state and private support for and partnerships with public universities. 
 

• Encourage state investment in public higher education through funding incentives and, 
wherever applicable, state “maintenance of effort” provisions  

• Advocate policies that promote philanthropy and a positive climate for university 
advancement 

 
Because of the inherently shifting nature of campus, state and national priorities, the CSU federal 
agenda process recognizes that priorities may evolve over time.  The OFR will continue to work 
with the campuses and system leaders to refine and develop proposals, and to assist all in 
working productively with their representatives in Congress and with federal agencies in the year 
ahead. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State 
University, that the federal legislative program described in the 
Agenda Item 2 of the Committee on Governmental Relations on 
January 28-29, 2014 is adopted as the 2014 CSU Federal Agenda. 



AGENDA 
 

COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 
 
Meeting: 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2014 
  Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium  
 
 Lupe C. Garcia, Chair 
 Steven M. Glazer, Vice Chair 
 Rebecca D. Eisen 
 William Hauck 
 Hugo N. Morales 
  
 
Consent Items 
 
 Approval of Minutes of Meeting of November 5, 2013 
 
Discussion Items 
 

1. Audit Committee Charter, Action 
2. Office of the University Auditor Charter, Action 
3. Status Report on Current and Follow-Up Internal Audit Assignments, 

Information 
4. Assignment of Functions to be Reviewed by the Office of the University 

Auditor For Calendar Year 2014, Action   (corrected)
5. Report of the Systemwide Audit in Accordance With Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles Including the Report to Management, Information 
6. Single Audit Reports of Federal Funds, Information 
7. National Collegiate Athletic Association Agreed-Upon Procedures, 

Information 
 



  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF  
COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 

 
Trustees of The California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 5, 2013 

 
Members Present  
 
Lupe C. Garcia, Chair 
Rebecca D. Eisen 
Steven M. Glazer 
A. Robert Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Chair Garcia called the meeting to order. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting of September 25, 2013, were approved as submitted. 
 
Status Report on Current and Follow-up Internal Audit Assignments 
 
Mr. Larry Mandel, university auditor, presented the Status Report on Current and Follow-up 
Internal Audit Assignments, Agenda Item 1 of the November 5-6, 2013, Board of Trustees 
agenda.    
 
Mr. Mandel reminded everyone that updates to the status report are displayed in green numerals 
and indicate progress toward or completion of recommendations since the distribution of the 
agenda.  He reported that the campuses are continuing to make good progress in completing the 
recommendations within a reasonable time period and noted that several long-outstanding 
recommendations had recently been completed.  He indicated that as per discussions with 
management, long-outstanding recommendations pertaining to Data Center Operations and 
International Programs at California State University, Chico and the systemwide 
recommendations pertaining to Data Center Operations, Facilities Management, and Police 
Services would be completed by the January board meeting.   In addition, Mr. Mandel stated that 
the 2013 audit assignments are on track to be completed by the January board meeting. 
 
Chair Garcia thanked the campuses and chancellor’s office management for their continued 
effort in making the commitment to ensure that outstanding recommendations are completed in a 
timely manner.  She indicated that to the extent possible, recommendations should be 
implemented within six months. 
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Audit Committee Charter 
 
Mr. Mandel presented the updated Audit Committee Charter to the committee for approval.  He 
explained that all state agencies with an internal audit function are required to follow the 
principles and guidelines of The Institute of Internal Auditors.  He stated that the modifications 
mostly pertain to recognizing the importance of information systems controls and security; parity 
between the various areas on the charter itself; the approval of all major changes to the audit 
plan; and the assurance that the university auditor has the resources to help fulfill its fiduciary 
responsibilities to the board. 
 
Trustee Faigin asked for clarification on the following statement included in the charter: “The 
Audit Committee shall concur in the appointment or dismissal of the University Auditor.”  His 
interpretation is that the statement is a directive whereby the committee has no authority in 
making decisions regarding the appointment or dismissal of the university auditor. 
 
Mr. Mandel responded that the Committee on Audit does have the authority to appoint or dismiss 
the university auditor and that the board does make the appointment.  He added that the 
statement is incorrectly written and that the language could be amended to reflect this.  
 
Trustee Glazer asked whether the language under Composition and Meetings regarding the 
statement that one member of the audit committee must have accounting or financial expertise 
could also be amended or whether it is a requirement under law.  He indicated that the committee 
currently does not have a trustee with financial background and believes it would put a 
restriction on the trustees. 
 
Mr. Mandel explained that the language in the Audit Committee Charter was adopted by the 
board in 2005 and has not been changed since that time, but that it could be amended. 
 
Chair Garcia pointed out that Trustee William Hauck is currently a member of the audit 
committee and has the financial background.  She commented that she would like to be sure that 
the committee is comfortable with not having someone with a financial background.  She 
understands the concern of it being restrictive but it is her opinion that there is value to having a 
committee member with a financial background.  She then asked Mr. Mandel for clarification as 
to whether there is a requirement from a best practices position. 
 
Mr. Mandel stated that the language was taken from Sarbanes Oxley, which is a requirement in 
the outside world.  He added that based on a review of Sarbanes Oxley by the National 
Association of Colleges and University Business Officers (NACUBO), it was advised that this 
language be applied to colleges and universities as part of audit committee charters.  
 
Trustee Glazer asked whether the language pertaining to the requirement of financial background 
could be changed to read, “it is strongly recommended,” instead of “must.”  He pointed out that 
it is the governor who selects the trustees, but added that the committee could certainly 
encourage the governor to select a trustee with this type of expertise. 
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Chair Garcia commented that she is comfortable with the wording change to “strongly 
recommend” and stated that the committee could offer encouragement to consider financial 
background in the selection of future trustees, in order to ensure that best practices are met. 
 
Mr. Mandel then asked whether the sentence should be amended with the word “should,” instead 
of “must.” 
 
Trustee Faigin stated that he would defer to counsel but stated his belief that “should” and 
“must” are very similar in meaning, and the point of making the change is to give the committee 
some discretion.  He offered his preference for either “strongly recommend” or “prefer.” 
 
Mr. Andrew Jones, interim general counsel, responded that “must” is more akin to “shall” in the 
legal world and “should” is a little more permissive, but that “strongly recommend” is 
acceptable. 
 
Chair Garcia appreciated all the comments and stated that since there is no legal requirement, she 
would suggest that the word be amended to “should,” as “must” is definitely more affirmative. 
 
Trustee Glazer then inquired as to the proposed amended language pertaining to the appointment 
and dismissal of the university auditor that was discussed earlier. 
 
Chair Garcia suggested that the reference to “and concur” be stricken from the Audit Committee 
Charter and changed to “…and appoint or dismiss the University Auditor.” 
 
Trustee Glazer called for a motion to approve the resolution as proposed with the following 
amendments: (1) “…at least one member must have accounting or financial expertise” changed 
to “…at least one member should have accounting or financial expertise” and (2) “…and concur 
in the appointment or dismissal of the University Auditor” changed to “…appoint and dismiss 
the University Auditor.”  A motion was then made, and the resolution was passed unanimously 
to approve the amended version of the Audit Committee Charter. 
 
Office of the University Auditor Charter 
 
Mr. Mandel presented the updated Office of the University Auditor Charter to the committee for 
approval.    The charter was last updated in 2005. 
 
Mr. Mandel stated that the most significant change to the charter incorporates the addition of 
advisory services and proposes that the department name be changed to the Office of Audit and 
Advisory Services to recognize this addition.  He noted that the audit plan now includes 
consulting services at the request of campus management, as a proactive approach.  He also 
indicated that the Scope of Work has been updated to be in alignment with the preferred 
practices of The Institute of Internal Auditors and to reflect current procedures and clarification 
on the university auditor’s responsibility and authority in determining whether the University’s 
network of risk management, control, and governance processes is adequate and functioning 
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effectively.  The updated charter also proposed a change regarding the evaluation of the 
university auditor. 
 
Chair Garcia stated her opinion that it is extremely valuable that the internal auditor’s office 
provides these proactive consulting services to the campuses.  She agreed that it is important 
work and should be reflected in terms of their overall scope of responsibility, definitely as a best 
practice when it comes to providing risk management to an organization of this size.  In 
reference to the modification regarding the evaluation of the university auditor and based on 
discussions with Chancellor White, she proposed to the committee that it read as, “The Board of 
Trustees through the audit committee chair evaluates the university auditor with input from the 
chancellor.” 
 
Trustee Glazer asked Chair Garcia if she was suggesting that the evaluation of the university 
auditor would not be a function of the committee as a whole but instead would be conducted 
solely by the audit committee chair. 
 
Chair Garcia clarified that the evaluation of the university auditor would be through the 
Committee on Audit as represented by the chair.  She clarified that the evaluation process is not 
necessarily every member of the committee sitting down to conduct the evaluation.  She added 
that it is more of a logistical clarification, but she is also fine with changing it to read, 
“…through the audit committee through its chair…” 
 
Trustee Glazer asked whether the language pertaining to the dismissal of the university auditor 
would be changed to be in alignment with the proposed language in the Audit Committee 
Charter. 
 
Chair Garcia responded that the language pertaining to the dismissal of the university auditor 
would be consistent within the University Auditor Charter and the Audit Committee Charter. 
 
Trustee Glazer asked for another review of the proposed changes to the University Auditor 
Charter, even though it would be brought back to the full board tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Mandel stated that it would not be brought back to the full board, as the audit committee 
takes action on behalf of the board. 
 
Trustee Glazer asked whether the committee could meet prior to tomorrow’s meeting with 
updated language. 
 
Chancellor White suggested that instead of the entire committee meeting to update the proposed 
language, perhaps another member either from interest or expertise could participate and bring it 
back to the board tomorrow.  He indicated that we want to be real clear in providing guidance so 
that several years from now when someone reads it, they will understand what we are trying to 
accomplish. 
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Chair Garcia agreed. 
 
Trustee Glazer also concurred with the chancellor.  He stated his belief that not all of the trustees 
understand fully the special role that the auditor plays in the system and with the board.  He 
added that he was unaware that the audit committee acts on behalf of the board and believes 
there is a need to better understand the role of the university auditor. 
 
Mr. Mandel deferred to Mr. Jones about bringing the agenda items back to the full board the next 
day. 
 
Mr. Jones stated that the agenda items can be brought back to the full board, but indicated that 
this is an audit committee matter.  He further stated his belief that there is enough latitude with 
all the disclaimers in the public notice to do so. 
 
Intent to Reissue the Request for Proposal for External Auditor Contract 
 
Mr. George V. Ashkar, assistant vice chancellor and controller, stated that under the direction of 
the Committee on Audit, a new Request for Proposal (RFP) will be issued for the purpose of 
soliciting proposals from qualified independent audit firms with the intent of establishing a CSU 
master service contract for the performance of a variety of financial and other audits, beginning 
with the 2014-2015 fiscal year audit.  He then requested the board’s approval to extend the 
existing contract with KPMG for one additional year to perform the 2013-2014 fiscal year audit, 
given that the RFP process will not be concluded in sufficient time to allow for proper planning 
and preparation. 
 
Chair Garcia called for a motion to approve the committee resolution (RAUD 11-13-02).  A 
motion was then made, and the resolution was passed unanimously to approve the extension of 
the existing contract with KPMG for one additional year to perform the 2013-2014 fiscal year 
audit. 
 
Chair Linscheid then recessed the Committee on Audit until the next day to allow for further 
discussion on the proposed changes to agenda items 2 and 3.  He stated that it would also be 
important to further discuss how the audit committee is authorized to act on its own. 
 
Mr. Jones responded that he could provide a full explanation when the committee reconvenes 
tomorrow. 
 
Chair Linscheid also requested a briefing on the relationship between the University and the 
auxiliary organizations to help with the understanding for the new trustees. 
 
Mr. Jones responded that it would be a very big discussion, but that he could provide that 
information. 
 
Chair Linscheid stated his belief that it is important to understand the voluminous task that is 
involved with regard to the auxiliary organizations. 
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Chair Garcia reconvened the Committee on Audit on November 6, 2013.  She reminded the 
trustees that yesterday, the committee deferred action on agenda item 3 regarding the Office of 
the University Auditor Charter.  She stated that when that item was discussed yesterday, 
members of the committee proposed various amendments for the purpose of aligning the role and 
reporting relationship of the university auditor with the committee’s vision for that office.  She 
further stated that she had since been informed by General Counsel that agenda item 3, with the 
proposed amendments, conflicts with the Rules Governing the Board of Trustees.  General 
Counsel suggested that this item be withdrawn and brought back to the January board meeting, 
along with the corresponding proposed changes to the board rules so that these key documents 
would be consistent. 
 
She further reminded the trustees that at yesterday’s meeting, the committee voted to approve an 
amended version of agenda item 2 regarding the Audit Committee Charter.  She further stated 
that she had been informed by General Counsel that the charter, as amended, conflicts with the 
Rules Governing the Board of Trustees.  General Counsel suggested that the committee vote to 
rescind yesterday’s approval of the Audit Committee Charter so that the item can be brought 
back to the January board meeting and considered at that time along with proposed amendments 
to the board rules so that the charter and the rules can be consistent and aligned with the direction 
desired by the board. 
 
Chair Garcia called for a motion to withdraw agenda item 3 and to rescind the approval of 
agenda item 2 that was passed yesterday. 
 
Trustee Glazer asked for clarification as to whether it should be a motion to reconsider, as we are 
rescinding action taken yesterday.  Then if it is on the affirmative side to reconsider and then the 
matter is reconsidered, appropriate action could be taken. 
 
Mr. Jones responded that it is procedurally correct either way. 
 
Trustee Glazer stated that since he was on the affirmative side in voting for it, he would be happy 
to make the motion to reconsider.  A motion was then made and passed unanimously to 
reconsider agenda items 2 and 3. 
 
Chair Garcia then called for a motion to table the committee resolutions regarding the Audit 
Committee Charter and the Office of the University Auditor Charter until the January 2014 board 
meeting.  A motion was then made and passed unanimously.   
 
The meeting adjourned.   
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COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 
 
Audit Committee Charter 
 
Presentation By 
 
Larry Mandel 
University Auditor 
 
Summary 
 
In an effort to align the Board of Trustees Committee on Audit with the best practices taking 
place within governing boards, an Audit Committee Charter was adopted in January 2005.    The 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) promulgated by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors recognizes that the internal audit activity must be organizationally independent to carry 
out internal audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner.  The IPPF states that organizational 
independence is effectively achieved when the chief audit executive reports functionally to the 
board and defines such reporting in its Practice Advisory 1110-1.  In an effort to keep the Audit 
Committee Charter current and aligned with best practices an updated Audit Committee Charter 
is proposed.  
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THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 
 

RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the following 
updated Charter for the Committee on Audit is adopted. 
 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of the Committee on Audit is to assist the Trustees in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities for the financial reporting process, system of internal control over financial 
reporting, external and internal audit processes, and the university's process for monitoring 
compliance with laws and regulations. 
 

Composition and Meetings 
 

The Committee on Audit will consist of at least five members as determined by the Trustees 
through the Committee on Committees.  Each committee member will be independent. Members 
will have access to financial expertise either collectively among committee members of from a 
financial expert appointed to advise them and at least one member must have accounting or 
financial expertise.  Regular meetings of the Committee on Audit will be held on the same dates 
and in the same locations as regular meetings of the Trustees.  Other meetings may be called as 
provided for in the Rules of Procedure Governing the Board of Trustees. 
 

Responsibility and Authority 
 

The Committee on Audit functions under the Rules of Procedure Governing the Board of 
Trustees and is responsible for the overall audit function within the California State University.  
In this context, the Committee on Audit shall: 
 
1. Approve the selection or discharge of the external auditor, review the external auditors' 

planned audit scope and approach, approve any non-audit services provided by the external 
auditor, and resolve disagreements between management and the external auditor regarding 
financial reporting. 
 

2. Review the results of the annual financial audit with the external auditor and management, 
including any difficulties encountered, and monitor the completion of recommendations. 

 
3. Monitor the university's system of internal controls, including computerized information 

system controls and security; and the adequacy of financial, accounting and operational 
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policies and practices related to financial reporting.; and the process for monitoring 
compliance with laws and regulations. 

 
4. Review the annual internal audit plan, discuss the extent to which it addresses high-risk areas 

with the University Auditor and management, and approve the final audit plan and all major 
changes to the plan. 

 
5. Review internal audit reports and responses, and monitor the completion of 

recommendations.  
 
6. Approve the internal audit mission statement, charter, and other governance documents 

related to internal audit activities in the University. 
 
7. Assure the effectiveness of the internal audit function, including its organizational structure, 

the adequacy of its staffing and budget,, and performance relative to its annual plan,; the 
existence of and ensure there are no unjustified restrictions or limitations.,; and concurrence 
in the appointment or dismissal of the University Auditor.  

 
8. Call for the review of the University Auditor, not less than once every three years, and 

provide input to the Board of Trustees on the University Auditor’s performance.  At its 
discretion, the Committee may retain outside consultants to assist with the review. 

 
7.9.Make recommendations to the Board of Trustees for the appointment, dismissal and 

compensation of the University Auditor. 
 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 
RESOLVED, By the Committee on Audit of the California State University Board of Trustees 
that the updated Charter for the Committee on Audit is adopted (subject to non-substantive 
changes), as detailed in Agenda Item 1 of the Committee on Audit at the January 28-29, 2014 
meeting, be approved. 
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COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 
 
Office of the University Auditor Charter 
 
Presentation By 
 
Larry Mandel 
University Auditor 
 
Summary 
 
The Office of the University Auditor currently operates under a University Auditor Charter that 
was last updated in March 2005.  The International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) 
promulgated by the Institute of Internal Auditors requires that the purpose, authority, and 
responsibility of the internal audit activity be formally defined in an internal audit charter and 
that the chief audit executive periodically review the internal audit charter and present it to senior 
management and the board for approval.  The IPPF is considered the auditing standard for 
agency audit departments within the state of California.  In an effort to keep the University 
Auditor Charter current and aligned with best practices taking place within the audit industry, 
both within and outside higher education, an updated University Auditor Charter is proposed. 
The Charter has also been updated to bring it into alignment with the BOT Rules  of 
ProcedureGoverning the Board of Trustees.  The proposed update also incorporates the addition 
of advisory services and proposes that the department name be changed to the Office of Audit 
and Advisory Services to recognize this addition.     
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THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY 
 

OFFICE OF THE UNIVERSITY AUDITORAUDIT AND ADVISORY SERVICES 
CHARTER 

 
RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the following 
updated Office of Audit and Advisory Services the University Auditor Charter is adopted. 
 

Establishment 
 

Education Code Section 89045, enacted by Chapter 1406 of the Statutes of 1969, provides for 
the establishment of an internal auditing function reporting directly to the Trustees of the 
California State University. 

 
Nature 

 
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve operations. 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The mission of the Office of the University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services is to assist 
university management and the Trustees in the effective discharge of their fiduciary and 
administrative responsibilities by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.  This 
assistance is provided through a series of independent and objective operational and compliance 
audits, internal control reviews, investigations services, and consultingadvisory services designed 
to add value and improve operations. 
 

Scope of Work 
 

The Office of the University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services provides university 
management and the Trustees with analyses, appraisals, recommendations, counsel, and 
information concerning the activities reviewed.  Major objectives include evaluatingproviding 
ongoing assurance that critical risks exposures relating to governance, operations, and 
information systems; monitoringare being mitigated to acceptable levels and the California State 
University is operating efficiently and effectively the effectiveness and efficiency of controls; 
and adding value by contributing to the improvement of governance, risk management, 
operations and control processes, and by promoting continuous improvement; and effective 
control at reasonable costsenhancing awareness and understanding of risk and control; and 
promoting appropriate ethics and values. 
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The scope of internal auditingwork includesof the Office of Audit and Advisory Services is to 
determine whether the university’s network of risk management, control, and governance 
processes, as designed and represented by management, is adequate and functioning effectively 
to ensure: 
 
 Risk management processes are effective and significant risks are appropriately 

identified, assessed, and managed. 
 
 The potential for the occurrence of fraud is evaluated and fraud risk is managed.  
 
 Reviewing the reliability and integrity of fFinancial, and operatingoperational, and 

managerial information is and the means used to identify, measure, classify, and report 
such informationaccurate, reliable, and timely. 
 

 Actions and decisions are in Reviewing the systems established to ensure compliance 
with those policies, plans, procedures,applicable laws, and regulations, policies, 
procedures, contracts, and standardswhich could have a significant impact on operations 
and reports, and determining whether the university is in compliance. 

 
 Reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and verifying the existence of such assets, as 

appropriateResources are acquired economically, used efficiently, accounted for 
accurately, and protected adequately. 

 
 Appraising the economy and efficiency with which resources are employedPrograms, 

plans, and objectives support and align with the university’s mission and are achieved. 
 

 Information technology governance and systems support achievement of the university’s 
strategic goals and security practices adequately protect information assets. 
 

 Reviewing operations and programs to ascertain whether results are consistent with 
established objectives and goals and whether the operations or programs are being carried 
out as plannedQuality and continuous improvement are fostered in the university’s risk 
management and control processes. 
 

 Reviewing tThe governance process with executive management to ensure effective 
organizational performance management accountability and promotion ofpromotes 
appropriate ethics and values and ensures effective organizational performance 
management and accountability. 
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 Communication of risk and control information to appropriate areas of the organization, 

and coordination of activities of and communication of information among various 
governance groups occur as needed. 

 
Responsibility and Authority 

 
The Office of the University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services functions under the policies 
established by the Trustees of the California State University and university management.  
Additionally, the Office of the University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services serves the 
university in a manner that is consistent with the International Standards for the Professional 
Practices of Internal AuditingFramework and the Code of Ethics as promulgated by the Institute 
of Internal Auditors.  In this context, the University Auditor is responsible for: 
 
 All administrative duties and requirements pertaining to the operation of the Office of the 

University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services, including the establishment of policies 
for auditing and advisory services and direction of the Office of the University 
Auditor'soffice’s technical and administrative functions, and represents the California 
State University system in all relationships with external audit agencies. 
 

 Developing and executing a comprehensive risk-based audit program for the evaluation 
of management controls provided over all university and auxiliary organization activities, 
although the Board of Trustees reserves the right to assign the Office of the University 
AuditorAudit and Advisory Services to review any area within its jurisdiction. 
 

 Performing advisory services at the request of management to identify solutions for 
business issues, offer opportunities to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of 
operating areas, and assist with special requests, while ensuring the consideration of 
related internal control issues.  

 
 Examining the effectiveness of all levels of management in their stewardship of 

university and auxiliary organization resources and their compliance with established 
policies and procedures. 

 
 Recommending improvement of management controls designed to safeguard university 

and auxiliary organization resources and to ensure compliance with government laws and 
regulations. 

 
 Reviewing procedures and records for their adequacy to accomplish intended objectives, 

and appraising policies and plans relating to the activity or function under audit review. 
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 Conducting investigations of alleged incidences of fraud, waste and abuse, and improper 

governmental activities. 
 
 Authorizing the publication of reports on the results of accepted audit examinations, 

including recommendations for improvement. 
 
 Appraising the adequacy of the action taken by operating management to correct reported 

deficient conditions; accepting adequate corrective action. 
 
 Conducting special examinations and providing consulting services at the request of 

management. 
 
The Office of the University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services is free from interference in 
determining the scope of auditing, performing work, and communicating results; and has full, 
free and unrestricted access to all records (manual and electronic), property, and personnel of the 
university and recognized auxiliary organizations.  The Office of the University AuditorAudit 
and Advisory Services is free to review and appraise all policies, plans, and procedures. 
 
Internal auditing and advising is a staff function and, as such, has no authority to make operating 
decisions, to direct anyone in operations, or to take action or implement any of its 
recommendations.  These tasks are the responsibility of the university and auxiliary 
management. 
 

Independence 
 

To permit the rendering of impartial and unbiased judgments essential to the proper conduct of 
audits, internal auditors will be independent of the activities they audit. 
 

Policies and Procedures 
 

The following general operating statement for direction of all activities of the Office of the 
University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services is adopted consistent with the provisions of 
Government Code Sections 1236 and 13400 et seq., Education Code Sections 89045 and 89761. 
 
Audit Planning, Direction, and Supervision 
 
 Oversight of the audit function provided by the Office of the University AuditorAudit 

and Advisory Services, including the priority of work assignments, shall be the 
responsibility of the Committee on Audit, which shall report on such matters to the Board 
of Trustees. 
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 An audit plan will be prepared annually by the University Auditor and submitted to the 

Executive Audit Committee for review. Composition of the membership of the Executive 
Audit Committee shall be determined by the Chancellor. After review by the Executive 
Audit Committee, the audit plan shall be submitted for approval by the Board through the 
Committee on Audit.  Audit topics will be selected based upon: a detailed risk assessment 
that is performed annually; legislatively mandated reviews noted in Education Code 
§89045 and Government Code §13400 et seq.; and in the action taken by the Trustees’ 
Committee on Audit in agenda item 2 at the January 1999 meeting requiring the review 
of auxiliary organizations (currently reflected in the Chancellor’s Executive Order 698). 

 
 Unscheduled audits/investigations of the Office of the Chancellor or of any campus can 

be requested by the Trustees or the Chancellor with the approval of the Chair of the 
Committee on Audit.  Unscheduled audits/investigations of a campus can also be 
requested by the campus president but must be approved by the Chancellor and the Chair 
of the Committee on Audit. 

 
 The University Auditor will be responsible for the sufficiency of audit resources; 

assignment of fieldwork to staff and contracted agencies; and the timely completion of, 
and reporting on, audits. 

 
 Communication liaison and consultation with the Committee on Audit will be maintained 

by the University Auditor, through the Chair of the Committee.  
 
Audit Reporting, Follow-Up Procedures, and Program Accountability 
 
 Copies of all audit reports will be made available electronically on the Office of the 

University Auditor’sAudit and Advisory Services’ website.  Notification letters providing 
a link to the audit reports are sent to the Board of Trustees, State Auditor, Committee on 
Higher Education, Joint Legislative Audit Committee, Joint Legislative Budget 
Committee, Department of Finance, and Legislative Analyst’s Office.  In addition, each 
of the campus presidents and the CSU Advocacy State Relations department receive 
emails with a link indicating that reports have been posted to the OUA Office of Audit 
and Advisory Services’ website. 
 

 The President or Chancellor, or their designees, will communicate to the University 
Auditor in writing the progress made towards implementing the plan of corrective action 
noted in the response to the audit.  The University Auditor, or designee, will review the 
responsiveness of the corrective action taken and determine whether additional action 
may be required.  In certain instances, it may be necessary to revisit the campus to 
ascertain whether the corrective action taken is achieving the desired results.  All findings 
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will be tracked until corrective action is taken.  Reports of follow-up activity will be 
made at each meeting of the Committee on Audit. 
 

 At each meeting of the Committee on Audit, the University Auditor will report the 
assignment workload showing the status of audits in progress, workload backlog, and 
disposition taken on completed audit assignments. 
 

 An external assessment, such as a quality assurance review, will be conducted at least 
once every five years by a qualified, independent reviewer or review team from outside 
the California State University.  The independent reviewer or review team must be 
approved by the Chair of the Committee on Audit.  Results of the review will be 
communicated to the Board through the Committee on Audit. 

 
Coordination of Work 
 
 The University Auditor is the point of contact for all entrance and exit conferences held 

with the Office of the Chancellor by external audit agencies. 
 

 The University Auditor will coordinate all system responses to audits performed by 
external audit agencies. 
 

 The University Auditor is the point of contact for questions concerning the reporting of 
fiscal improprieties to state agencies (currently reflected in the Chancellor’s Executive 
Order 813). 
 

 The University Auditor will coordinate internal audit effort with the external auditors to 
reduce the potential for duplication of audit effort. 

 
Budget, Personnel and Operational Procedures for the Office of the University AuditorAudit and 
Advisory Services 
 
 For purposes of general administration, staff personnel, budget and space, there shall 

beexist an administrative relationship between the University Auditor andto the 
Chancellor. 
 

 Except for certain personnel actions related to the position of University Auditor noted 
below, the Office of the University AuditorAudit and Advisory Services is subject to all 
the rules and procedures established by the Chancellor’s Office of the Chancellor. 
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 The Board of Trustees, upon recommendation by through the Committee on Audit and 

input from the Chancellor, and with input from the chancellor, appointsemploys, 
dismisses,  and sets the compensationsalary for the position of University Auditor. 

 
 The Board of Trustees, upon recommendation by the Chancellorthrough the Committee 

on Audit, and with input from the Committee on Audit and the  Cchancellor, evaluates 
the University Auditor not less than once every three years.  An independent consultant 
may be appointed by the Committee on Audit will prepare triennial performance 
appraisals of the University Auditorto help with the evaluation..  The consultant will 
solicit the opinions of Trustees, and system and campus personnel necessary to evaluate 
performance.  The Committee on Audit will discuss performance expectations and the 
results of the appraisal with the University Auditor in closed session.   
 

 All matters concerning the employment, dismissal, and salary for the position of 
University Auditor will be initiated by the Chancellor and brought to the Board, through 
the Committee on Audit for approval. 

 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 
RESOLVED, By the Committee on Audit of the California State University Board of Trustees 
that the updated Office of Audit and Advisory Services Charter is adopted (subject to non-
substantive changes), as detailed in Agenda Item 32 of the Committee on Audit at the November 
5-6, 2013 January 28-29, 2014 meeting, be approved. 
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 COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 
 
Status Report on Current and Follow-up Internal Audit Assignments 
 
Presentation By 
 
Larry Mandel 
University Auditor 
 
Summary 
 
This item includes both a status report on the 2013 audit plan and follow-up on past assignments. 
For the 2013 year, assignments were made to conduct reviews of Auxiliary Organizations, high-
risk areas (International Programs, Sensitive Data Security, Centers and Institutes, Hazardous 
Materials Management, Student Health Services, and Conflict of Interest), high profile area 
(Sponsored Programs – Post Awards), core financial area (Credit Cards), and Construction.  In 
addition, follow-up on current/past assignments (Special Investigations, Auxiliary Organizations, 
Data Center Operations, Facilities Management, Identity Management, International Programs, 
Police Services, CSURMA, Credit Cards, Sensitive Data Security, Centers and Institutes, 
Hazardous Materials Management, and Sponsored Programs) was being conducted on 
approximately 35 prior campus/auxiliary reviews. Attachment A summarizes the reviews in 
tabular form.  An up-to-date Attachment A will be distributed at the committee meeting. 
  
Status Report on Current and Follow-up Internal Audit Assignments 
 
Auxiliary Organizations 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 305 staff weeks of activity (29.7 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to auditing internal compliance/internal control at eight campuses/30 
auxiliaries.  Five campus/nineteen auxiliary reviews have been completed.  Two campus/six 
auxiliaries are awaiting a response prior to finalization, and report writing is being completed for 
one campus/four auxiliaries. 
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High-Risk Areas  
 
International Programs 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of program approvals, fiscal administration and controls; risk 
management processes; curriculum and credit transfers; utilization of third-party providers; 
compliance with U.S. Department of State and other regulatory international travel requirements; 
and processes used to recruit international students, verify student credentials, and provide 
support on campus.  Six campuses will be reviewed.  Six reports have been completed. 
 
Sensitive Data Security 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of policies and procedures for handling confidential 
information; communication and employee training; tracking and monitoring access to sensitive 
data; and retention practices of key records.  Six campuses will be reviewed.  Four reports have 
been completed, and two reports are awaiting a campus response prior to finalization. 
 
Centers and Institutes 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of campus policies and procedures for establishing, 
operating, monitoring, reviewing, and discontinuing centers, institutes, and similar entities; fiscal 
administration and controls;  faculty workload including the potential for conflicts of interest; 
policies and procedures for identifying and reporting allegations of misconduct in research and 
other related activities; and campus processes for reporting entity activities including the 
implementation status of campus policies and procedures to the CSU Chancellor’s Office.  Six 
campuses will be reviewed.  Six reports have been completed. 
 
Hazardous Materials Management 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of the systems and procedures for controlling the purchase, 
generation, storage, use and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes; employee training; 
emergency response plans; reporting requirements; and compliance with federal and state 
regulations.  Six campuses will be reviewed.  Four reports have been completed, while two are 
awaiting a campus response prior to finalization. 
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Student Health Services 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of compliance with federal and state laws, Trustee policy, 
and CSU Chancellor’s Office directives; establishment of a student health advisory committee; 
accreditation status; staffing, credentialing and re-credentialing procedures; safety and sanitation 
procedures, including staff training; budgeting procedures; fee authorization, cash 
receipt/disbursement controls and trust fund management; pharmacy operations, security and 
inventory controls; and the integrity and security of medical records.  Six campuses will be 
reviewed.  Four reports are awaiting a campus response prior to finalization, while report writing 
is being completed for two campuses. 
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of the process for identification of designated positions; 
monitoring, tracking and review of disclosures relating to conflicts of interest, such as research 
disclosures; faculty and CSU designated officials reporting; employee/vendor relationships; 
ethics training; and patent and technology transfer.  Resource restrictions will not allow for an 
audit of Conflict of Interest during 2013; it will be reviewed as part of the 2014 audit plan. 
 
High Profile Area 
 
Sponsored Programs – Post Awards 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of contract/grant budgeting and financial planning; indirect 
cost administration including cost allocation; cost sharing/matching and transfer processes; 
effort-reporting, fiscal reporting, and progress reporting; approval of project expenditures; sub-
recipient monitoring; and management and security of information systems.  Six campuses will 
be reviewed.  Two reports have been completed, while three reports are awaiting a campus 
response prior to finalization. 
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Core Financial Area 
 
Credit Cards 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 43 staff weeks of activity (4.2 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of credit card administration; compliance with campus 
policies and procedures; approval to use credit cards; monitoring and review of credit card 
purchases; enforcement of sanctions for misuse; and processes to deactivate credit cards upon 
employee termination or transfer.  Six campuses will be reviewed.  Six reports have been 
completed. 
 
Construction 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 44 staff weeks of activity (4.3 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to a review of design budgets and costs; the bid process; invoice 
processing and change orders; project management, architectural, and engineering services; 
contractor compliance; cost verification of major equipment and construction components; the 
closeout process and liquidated damages; and overall project accounting and reporting.  Six 
projects will be reviewed.  Three reports have been completed, while report writing is being 
completed for one campus.  One review has been moved to 2014 to allow for the earlier 
completion of an advisory project. 
 
Advisory Services 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 171 staff weeks of activity (16.7 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to partnering with management to identify solutions for business issues, 
offer opportunities to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of operating areas, and assist with 
special requests, while ensuring the consideration of related internal control issues.  Reviews are 
ongoing. 
 
Information Systems 
 
The initial audit plan indicated that approximately 45 staff weeks of activity (4.4 percent of the 
plan) would be devoted to technology support for all high-risk and auxiliary audits.  Reviews and 
training are ongoing. 
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Investigations 
 
The Office of the University Auditor is periodically called upon to provide investigative reviews, 
which are often the result of alleged defalcations or conflicts of interest.  In addition, 
whistleblower investigations are being performed on an ongoing basis, both by referral from the 
State Auditor and directly from the CSU Chancellor’s Office.  Forty-three staff weeks have been 
set aside for this purpose, representing approximately 4.2 percent of the audit plan. 
 
Committees  
 
The Office of the University Auditor is periodically called upon to provide consultation to the 
campuses and/or to perform special audit requests made by the chancellor.  Seven staff weeks 
have been set aside for this purpose, representing approximately 0.7 percent of the audit plan. 
 
Special Projects 
 
The Office of the University Auditor is periodically called upon to provide non-investigative 
support to the CSU Chancellor’s Office/campuses.  Fifty-five staff weeks have been set aside for 
this purpose, representing approximately 4.9 percent of the audit plan. 
 
Follow-ups 
 
The audit plan indicated that approximately 11 staff weeks of activity (1.1 percent of the plan) 
would be devoted to follow-up on prior audit recommendations.  The Office of the University 
Auditor is currently tracking approximately 35 current/past assignments (Special Investigations, 
Auxiliary Organizations, Data Center Operations, Facilities Management, Identity Management, 
International Programs, Police Services, CSURMA, Credit Cards, Sensitive Data Security, 
Centers and Institutes, Hazardous Materials Management, and Sponsored Programs) to determine 
the appropriateness of the corrective action taken for each recommendation and whether 
additional action is required. 
 
Annual Risk Assessment 
 
The Office of the University Auditor annually conducts a risk assessment to determine the areas 
of highest risk to the system.  Four staff weeks have been set aside for this purpose, representing 
approximately 0.4 percent of the audit plan. 
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COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 

 
Assignment of Functions to Be Reviewed by the Office of the University Auditor for 
Calendar Year 2014 
 
Presentation By 
 
Larry Mandel 
University Auditor 
 
Summary 
 
At the first meeting of the new year, the Committee on Audit selects the audit assignments for 
the Office of the University Auditor.  The following is an audit plan for calendar year 2014.   
 

HIGH RISK AREAS 
 
The Office of the University Auditor performed a risk assessment of the CSU in the last quarter 
of 2013.  The results of that risk assessment indicated the following areas of highest risk to the 
system: 
 
Information Security 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of the systems and managerial/technical measures 
for ongoing evaluation of data/information collected; identifying confidential, private or 
sensitive information; authorizing access; securing information; detecting security breaches; and 
security incident reporting and response. 
 
ADA Web Accessibility 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of compliance with laws and regulations specific to 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as it applies to accessible technology requirements 
and program access. 
 
Sponsored Programs – Post Award 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of contract/grant budgeting and financial planning; 
indirect cost administration including cost allocation; cost sharing/matching and transfer 
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processes; effort-reporting, fiscal reporting, and progress reporting; approval of project 
expenditures; sub-recipient monitoring; and management and security of information systems. 
 
Audits will be performed at those campuses where a greater degree of risk was perceived for 
each of these areas.  This represents 154 staff weeks of audit effort, which is approximately 14.9 
percent of the audit plan. 
 

HIGH PROFILE AREAS 
 

Audits are periodically performed of high profile areas in order to assure the board that 
appropriate policies and procedures are in place to mitigate risk to the system.  This year we will 
address the following areas: 
 
Continuing Education 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of the processes for administration of continuing 
education and extended learning operations as self-supporting entities; budgeting procedures, fee 
authorizations, and selection and management of courses; faculty workloads and payments to 
faculty and other instructors; enrollment procedures and maintenance of student records; and 
reporting of continuing education activity and maintenance of CERF contingency reserves. 
 
Executive Travel 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of campus travel policies and procedures to ensure 
alignment and compliance with CSU requirements; review of internal campus processes for 
monitoring, reviewing and approving travel expense claims; and examination of senior 
management travel and travel expense claims for proper approvals and compliance with campus 
and CSU travel policy. 
 
Audits will be performed at those campuses where a greater degree of risk was perceived for 
each of these areas.  This represents 101 staff weeks of audit effort, which is approximately 9.8 
percent of the audit plan. 
 

CORE FINANCIAL AREAS 
 

Audits are periodically performed of core financial areas in order to assure the board that 
appropriate policies and procedures are in place to mitigate risk to the system.  This year we will 
address the following area: 
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Lottery Funds 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of campus lottery fund allocation and expenditure 
policies and procedures to ensure compliance with CSU and state requirements; review of 
internal campus processes for monitoring, reviewing and approving campus discretionary 
allocations to specific programs; and examination of specific programs receiving lottery funding 
to confirm the expenditures are in conformance with state and CSU restrictions. 
 
Audits will be performed at those campuses where a greater degree of risk was perceived for this 
area.  This represents 51 staff weeks of audit effort, which is approximately 4.9 percent of the 
audit plan. 
 

CARRY-FORWARD 
 

Conflict of Interest 
 
Due to resource constraints, we were unable to complete the audit plan for 2013.  One area of 
review, Conflict of Interest, was postponed with the understanding that it would appear on the 
2014 audit plan. 
 
Proposed audit scope would include review of the process for identification of designated 
positions; monitoring, tracking and review of disclosures relating to conflicts of interest, such as 
research disclosures; faculty and CSU designated officials reporting; employee/vendor 
relationships; ethics training; and patent and technology transfer. 
 
Audits will be performed at those campuses where a greater degree of risk was perceived for this 
area.  This represents 53 staff weeks of audit effort, which is approximately 5.1 percent of the 
audit plan. 
 

AUXILIARY ORGANIZATIONS 
 

In order to provide assurance to the Board of Trustees that adequate oversight is being 
maintained over auxiliaries, the Office of the University Auditor administers an audit program 
covering internal compliance/internal controls.  It is estimated that 29 auxiliary reviews will take 
place during calendar year 2014.  This represents 273 staff weeks of audit effort, which is 
approximately 26.6 percent of the audit plan.  
 

ADVISORY SERVICES 
 

The Office of the University Auditor will partner with management to identify solutions for 
business issues, offers opportunities to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of operating 
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areas, and assists with special requests, while ensuring the consideration of related internal 
control issues.  Advisory services are more consultative in nature than traditional audits and are 
performed in response to requests from campus management. The goal is to enhance awareness  
of risk, control and compliance issues and to provide a proactive independent review and 
appraisal of specifically identified concerns.  Two hundred nine staff weeks have been set aside 
for this purpose, representing approximately 20.3 percent of the audit plan. 
 

 CONSTRUCTION 
 

Areas under review include design budgets and costs; the bid process; invoice processing and 
change orders; project management, architectural, and engineering services; contractor 
compliance; cost verification of major equipment and construction components; the closeout 
process and liquidated damages; and overall project accounting and reporting.  It is estimated 
that five construction projects will be reviewed during calendar year 2014.  This represents 39 
staff weeks of audit effort, which is approximately 3.8 percent of the audit plan.   
 

INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 

Technology support will be provided for both campus and auxiliary organization audits, in 
addition to advisory services reviews.  Thirteen staff weeks are planned during calendar year 
2014, which is approximately 1.3 percent of the audit plan. 
 

INVESTIGATIONS 
 

The Office of the University Auditor is periodically called upon to provide investigative reviews 
which are often the result of alleged defalcations or conflicts of interest.  In addition, 
whistleblower investigations are being performed on an ongoing basis, both by referral from the 
state auditor and directly from the chancellor’s office.  Forty-three staff weeks have been set 
aside for this purpose, representing approximately 4.2 percent of the audit plan. 

 
COMMITTEES/SPECIAL PROJECTS  

 
The Office of the University Auditor is periodically called upon to provide consultation to the 
campuses and/or to participate on committees, and to perform special projects.  Twenty-nine 
staff weeks have been set aside for this purpose, representing approximately 2.8 percent of the 
audit plan. 
 

FOLLOW-UPS  
 
The purpose of this category is to follow-up on prior audit recommendations.  The Office of the 
University Auditor reviews the responsiveness of the corrective action taken for each 
recommendation and determines whether additional action may be required.  In certain instances, 
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it may be necessary to revisit the campus to ascertain whether the corrective action taken is 
achieving the desired results.  All recommendations are tracked until each is satisfactorily 
addressed.  Reports of follow-up activity are made at each meeting of the Committee on Audit.  
Sixteen staff weeks have been set aside for this purpose, representing approximately 1.6 percent 
of the audit plan. 

 
ANNUAL RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
The Office of the University Auditor annually conducts a risk assessment to determine the areas 
of highest risk to the system.  Five staff weeks have been set aside for this purpose, representing 
approximately 0.5 percent of the audit plan. 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

Day to day administration of the Office of the University Auditor represents approximately 4.1 
percent of the audit plan. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, By the Committee on Audit of the California State University 
Board of Trustees that the 2014 internal audit plan, as detailed in Agenda Item 4 
of the Committee on Audit at the January 28-29, 2014 meeting, be approved. 
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COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 

 
Report of the Systemwide Audit in Accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles Including the Report to Management  

 
Presentation by 
 
Sally Roush 
Interim Vice Chancellor for Business and Finance 
 
George Ashkar 
Assistant Vice Chancellor/Controller 
Financial Services 
 
Summary 

State law and Federal regulations require the California State University (CSU) system be 
subject to financial statement audits.  Annually, financial statement audits are performed for the 
CSU system as a whole, and also for discretely presented component units (i.e., auxiliary 
organizations) that separately issue their stand-alone financial statements.  In addition, a separate 
audit is performed each year on the financial statements of the CSU Systemwide Revenue Bond 
(SRB) program.  All of these financial statement audits covering the University and component 
units are performed by more than twenty Certified Public Accounting firms across the State of 
California. 

The CSU systemwide financial statements for the 2012-2013 fiscal year were issued with an 
unmodified (i.e., clean) opinion in mid-October, two weeks earlier than the published schedule, 
as a result of continuous improvement in streamlining and of the audit procedures without 
diminishing audit quality.  There were no audit findings relating to the CSU systemwide 
financial statements. Highlights of the financial statements will be presented including any 
significant changes from last year.  There were audit findings relating to some of the separately 
issued financial statements of the auxiliary organizations.  The Chancellor’s Office is following 
up on those auxiliary organizations’ audit findings to make sure appropriate corrective actions 
are taken and will report to the Board on their status until they are completed. 
 
In summary, the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 was a successful year from an audit 
perspective.  All financial reports were completed on or before schedule and received clean 
opinions.  Representatives from KPMG, the systemwide audit firm, will be present to answer 
questions. 
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KPMG LLP
Suite 700
20 Pacifica
Irvine, CA 92618-3391

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
California State University:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the California State University, an agency of the State of
California (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise California State University’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of 90 of the 92 aggregate discretely presented component units, which statements
reflect total assets constituting 94% and total revenues constituting 94% of the aggregate discretely
presented totals. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have
been fln-nished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the 90 discretely
presented component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented
component units of the California State University, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis ofa Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, California State University adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, as of
June 30, 2013. The cumulative effect of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 61 resulted in the
restatement of net position as of the beginning of the year for both California State University and the
discretely presented component units in the amount of $58,358,000.

Other Matters

Reqzured Supplementa,y Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on
pages 3 through 17 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15,
2013 on our consideration of California State University’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the California State University’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 15, 2013
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and performance of the
California State University as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, including 23 campuses and the
Chancellor’s Office (together referred to as the University), and 92 discretely presented component units
(primarily recognized auxiliary organizations). The discussion has been prepared by management and should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes, which follow this section. Separate
financial statements are issued for each of the discretely presented component units and may be obtained from
the individual campuses.

The financial statements of the University for the year ended June 30, 2013 have been prepared in accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
ManagemenCs Discussion and Analysis —for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis —for Public Colleges and
Universities. For reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government engaged in
business-type activities.

Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the University’s fmancial statements: the
statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and the statement of
cash flows. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the University’s
finances from all sources of revenue, in a manner similar to the private sector. The University’s discretely
presented component units are presented in a separate column to enable the reader to distinguish between the
University and these separate but related not-for-profit organizations.

The statement of net position is the University’s balance sheet. It presents information on all of the University’s
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between
these four are reported as net position (equity). Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources are generally reported at their book value, except investments, which are reported at their
fair market value. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useffil indicator of the
financial position of the University.

The University’s net position is classified into three categories:

• Net investment in capital assets

• Restricted

• Unrestricted

Changes from one year to the next in total net position as presented on the statement of net position are based on
the activity presented on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is the University’s income statement. Revenues
earned and expenses incurred during the year on an accrual basis are classified as either operating or
nonoperating. This distinction results in operating deficits, as the GASB Statement No. 35 reporting model
requires classification of state appropriations, a significant revenue stream to fund current operations, as
nonoperating revenue.

3 (Continued)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

The statement of cash flows presents the changes in the University’s cash and cash equivalents during the most
recent fiscal year. This statement is prepared using the direct method of cash flows. The statement breaks out the
sources and uses of the University’s cash and cash equivalents into four categories:

• Operating activities

• Noncapital financing activities

• Capital and related financing activities

• Investing activities

The University’s routine activities appear in the operating and noncapital financing categories. Capital and
related financing sources include debt proceeds, state capital appropriations, capital grants and gifts, proceeds
from sale of capital assets, principal and interest payments received on capital leases, and notes receivable.
Within the capital and related financing activities, uses of funds consist of acquisition of capital assets, debt
repayments, and issuance of notes receivable. Sales and purchases of investments are part of investing activities.

The statement of cash flows for the discretely presented component units is not included in the University’s
financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The noncapital state appropriation for the University in fiscal year 2013 was $2.07 billion, $72 million higher
than in fiscal year 2012. The student tuition fee revenues increased by $16.1 million in fiscal year 2013, mainly
due to student enrollment growth. In fiscal year 2013, the University refunded $126 million as a rollback of the
tuition fee increase in the beginning of the fiscal year, of which $125 million is expected to be recovered through
the State Budget Act for fiscal year 2014.

Headcount enrollment increased from 422,063 in fiscal year 2012 to 426,212 in fiscal year 2013, as reflected in
the chart on the following page. At the same time, Full-Time Equivalent Students increased from 355,609 in
fiscal year 2012 to 358,794 in fiscal year 2013.

4 (Continued)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

The following chart displays the University’s historical enrollment data by fiscal year:

S

Financial Analysis

Enrollment

OFull-Time Equivalent
Smdcts

•TntaI Headnunt

The following sections provide additional details on the University’s financial position and activities for fiscal
years 2013 and 2012 and a look ahead at economic conditions that are expected to affect the University in the
future:

I. Condensed Schedule of Net Position

II. Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

In fiscal year 2013, the University implemented new GASB accounting pronouncements. As a result, the
California State University Risk Management Authority (CSURMA) changed from a blended component unit
into a discretely presented component unit in accordance with GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting
Entiiy: Omnibus. The effects of the change to the University’s financial statements are discussed throughout this
analysis.

466,075

372,393
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

I. Condensed Schedule of Net Position

Discretely Presented
University Component Units

2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Current assets $ 2,862,724 2,824,645 1,065,568 997,310
Capital assets, net 7,689,116 7,623,133 796,835 794,460
Other noncurrent assets 1,568,821 1,730,841 1,869,282 1,636,020

Total assets 12.120.661 12,178,619 3,731,685 3,427,790

Deferred outflows of resources 32,020 — 5,071 —

Current liabilities 1,073,707 1,109,094 352,489 384,427
Noncurrent liabilities 5.395.972 5,250,748 1.059,656 992,523

Total liabilities 6,469,679 6,359,842 1,412,145 1,376,950

Deferred inflows of resources — — 2,481 —

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 3,693,066 3,809,170 182,928 198,606
Restricted:

Nonexpendable 20,627 21,584 847,651 806,592
Expendable 87,510 74,967 759,064 642,054

Unrestricted 1,881,799 1,913,056 532,487 403,588

Totalnetposition $ 5,683,002 5,818,777 2,322,130 2,050,840

Current and Other Noncurrent Assets

Current and other noncurrent assets are assets that are not capital assets and are used to meet the University’s
current and noncurrent obligations. These assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash
equivalents, investments, accounts receivable, notes receivable, leases receivable, student loans receivable,
pledges receivable, prepaid expenses, and other assets. The total current and other noncurrent assets of
$4.4 billion for the University represent a decrease of$123.9 million compared to $4.6 billion in fiscal year 2012.
The decrease is due mainly to GASB Statement No. 61 implementation in the current year which changed
CSURMA from a blended component unit to a discretely presented component unit. CSURMA had $155.5
million of current and noncurrent assets as part of University, of which $139 million are investments, in 2012,
whereas it has $167.2 million of current and noncurrent assets as part of discretely presented component units, of
which $153.1 million are investments, in 2013. In addition, the University’s state appropriation receivable
decreased by $84.8 million as a result of the continuing expenditures for capital projects, offset by current year
state appropriations, and decline in leases receivable by $10.7 million. These decreases are offset by the new note
agreements with certain component units of $48 million to finance existing or newly constructed facilities;
reinvestment of $41.5 million net investment income; and $25 million net increase in prepaid expenses and other
assets mainly due to an increase in capitalized interest and construction reserves on State Public Works Board
(SPWB) capital lease obligations.
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Current and other noncurrent assets for the discretely presented component units increased by $301.5 million
mainly due to a $350 million increase in investments offset by a $57.3 million decrease in restricted cash and
cash equivalents. As discussed on page 5, the implementation of GASB Statement No. 61 resulted to an increase
of$l53.1 million in investments. The endowment investments also increased by $134.5 million in 2013.

Capital Assets, Net

The University’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, comprise the
following:

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Land and land improvements $ 256,976 256,993
Buildings and building improvements 5,823,857 5,916,053
Improvements other than buildings 166,195 144,383
Infrastructure 587,858 584,260
Equipment 202,809 208,148
Library books and materials 39,196 42,286
Works of art and historical treasures 28,697 25,423
Intangible assets 29,551 33,201
Construction work in progress 553,977 412,386

Total $ 7,689,116 7,623,133

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $66 million during 2013 as a result of
additions on various capital projects including the following:

• Construction in progress on the Si 19 million San Luis Obispo Center for Science;

• Construction in progress on the 5102 million San Diego Aztec Center Student Union;

• Construction in progress on the $89 million San Jose Student Union Expansion and Renovation;

• Construction in progress on the $72 million San Diego Storm/Nasatir Halls Renovation;

• Construction in progress on the $62 million Sonoma Student Center, and

• Construction in progress on the $57 million Pomona Recreation Center
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Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are consumption of net assets that is applicable to a future reporting period which
has a positive effect on the net position. The University’s deferred outflows of resources consist of unamortized
loss on debt refunding (reported as net of long-term debt obligation in 2012) in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 65, hems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, effective as of June 30, 2013. The
unamortized loss on debt refunding increased by $5.6 million mainly due to the partial refunding of Systemwide
Revenue Bonds series 2002A, 2003A, and 2004A through the issuance of Series 2012A and 2012B in August
2012 and offset by current year amortization.

Current and Noncurrent Liabilities

Current liabilities (liabilities due within one year) and noncurrent liabilities (liabilities due in more than one year)
include accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits, accrued compensated absences, unearned revenues,
grants refundable, capitalized lease obligations, long-term debt obligations, claims liability for losses and loss
adjustment expenses, depository accounts, other postemployment benefit obligations, and other liabilities.

Current and noncurrent liabilities for the University increased by $109.8 million, primarily due to a
$136.1 million increase in long-term debt obligations. Other major factors included an increase of $46.4 million
in other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligations allocated from the State and a decrease of $76.3 million in
claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses (previously referred to as self-insurance claims liability)
as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 61.

Long-Term Debt Obligations

The University’s long-term debt obligations are summarized as follows:

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Systemwide revenue bonds $ 3,604,708 3,542,648
Bond anticipation notes 27,055 38,542
Other 80,352 75,908

Total 3,712,115 3,657,098

Unamortized bond net premium 133,989 79,325
Unamortized loss on debt refunding (26,443)

Total long-term debt obligations 3,846,104 3,709,980

Less current portion (98,747) (110,097)

Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion $ 3,747,357 3,599,883

The University’s total long-term debt obligations (net of repayments) increased by $136.1 million in 2013,
mainly due to the issuance of Systemwide Revenue Bonds Series 20l2A and Series 20128 and the partial
refunding of Series 2002A, 2003A, and 2004A.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

The table does not include the University’s capitalized lease obligations. Capitalized lease obligations for the
University increased by $155.9 million in 2013, consisting primarily of new capital lease obligations of
$167 million with the SPWB, offset by current year repayments.

In addition, the State General Obligation Bond program has provided capital funding for various projects of the
University. The debt related to these projecLs is not allocated to the University by the State and thus is not
recorded in the University’s financial statements. The total General Obligation Bond debt carried by the State
related to University projects at June 30, 2013 and 2012 is approximately $2.6 billion.

No fundamental changes occurred in the revenues and expenditures of the revenue bond programs during fiscal
year 2013. Repayment of specific programmatic revenue bonds is legally limited to the sources of revenue from
operations of the projects including specific mandatory fees pledged to the revenue bond programs. For the
Systemwide Revenue Bonds, revenues pledged generally include student housing fees, parking fees, student
union fees, health center facilities fees, and continuing education fees, as well as other revenues designated by
the Board of Trustees for inclusion in the Systemwide Revenue Bonds program.

Moody’s Investors Service currently provides an intrinsic rating of Aa2, with a stable outlook, for the
Systemwide Revenue Bonds. Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services currently provides an intrinsic rating of A+,
with a positive outlook, for the Systemwide Revenue Bonds. With the exception of certain maturities of Series
2005C, Series 2007A, Series 2008A, and Series 2009A, and all maturities of Series 2010A, Series 2010B, Series
2011A, Series 2012A, and Series 2012B, all Systemwide Revenue Bonds are insured. Since the middle of fiscal
year 2008, some providers of insurance for Systemwide Revenue Bonds have been downgraded to ratings below
AaaJAAA. Those bonds that are uninsured bear the intrinsic ratings of the Systemwide Revenue Bonds, which
are Aa2 from the Moody’s Investors Service and A+ from the Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Net Position

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the University’s financial position. As
of June 30, 2013, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $5.7 billion for the University with no significant changes in total net position from prior year.

33%

2%

<1%

Total Net Position: $5,683,002,000

• Net investment in capital assets

University Net Position
June 30, 2013

65%

The net position category “Net investment in capital assets” represents the University’s capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and also net of outstanding principal balances of debt
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets and any related deferred
outflows of resources. The University uses these capital assets in its day-to-day operations. This
category is the largest portion of the University’s net position year-over-year. The net investment in
capital assets decreased by SI 16 million as a result of depreciation of capital assets at a faster rate
than repayment of the long-term debt.

• Restricted

Restricted net position has constraints on its use that are either externally imposed by creditors or
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation
authorizes a government to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from
external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be
used only for specific purposes. Such restrictions are primarily related to endowments, scholarships,
capital projects, loans, and debt service hinds. The restricted net position category consists of two
subcategories: “Restricted nonexpendable” and “Restricted expendable.”

•Net invosundnt in capital
assets

O Restricted nonexpendable

o Restricted expendable

C Unrestricted
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

L Restricted nonexpendable

The restricted nonexpendable net position is made up of the permanent endowment funds,
the corpus of which may not be expendable. Generally speaking, the University’s
foundations, which are recognized auxiliary organizations, hold the significant majority of
the University-related endowments. In the current year, there was no significant change in
the University’s restricted nonexpendable net position.

it Restricted expendable

Restricted expendable net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. Such restrictions are primarily related to
scholarships, capital projects, loans, and debt service funds. In the current year, there was
no significant change in the University’s restricted expendable net position.

Unrestricted

The unrestricted net position represents all other net resources available to the University for general
and educational obligations. Under generally accepted accounting principles, net position that is not
subject to externally imposed restrictions governing their use must be classified as unrestricted for
financial reporting purposes. Although unrestricted net position is not subject to externally imposed
restrictions per accounting definitions, the predominant portions of the unrestricted net position are
designated for specific programs or projects related to certain revenue sources, as further explained
in the following paragraphs. The unrestricted net position for the University decreased by
$31.3 million to $1.9 billion as of June 30, 2013, which consists of $1.26 billion designated
resources from various fluids and $622 million undesignated resources mainly from the operating
fund. The undesignated resources provide a prudent reserve for contingencies, such as the uncertain
direction of future state appropriations, as well as the effects of an uncertain economic environment.

Within the unrestricted net position category, the designated resources are derived from fee
collections and other activities that are designated for very specific purposes and are not to be
repurposed and spent for other activities. For example, students pay fees including Housing and
Parking fees, campus activities fees, all of which are to be used for specific designated purposes as
described in the Education Code. The University also has certain designated resources that represent
amounts pledged to support the Systemwide Revenue Bonds program.

Of the $1.26 billion in designated unrestricted net position, approximately 62% was designated for
supporting enterprise activities (i.e., Continuing Education, Housing, Parking, and Student Union),
13% was designated for campus-based projects or programs, and 12% was designated for special
capital projects. The remaining 13% was designated for supporting activities related to education,
financial aid, and other programs.
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(Unaudited)

II. Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Discretely presented
University component units

2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Operating revenues:
Student tuition and fees, net $ 2,081,251 2,065,126 185,213 176,233
Grants and contracts, noncapital 91,361 92,915 476,416 511,981
Sales and services of educational

activities 35,355 35,406 28,595 31,437
Sales and services of auxiliary

enterprises, net 402,626 389,246 459,091 467,820
Other operating revenues 187.155 177.126 228.771 135.795

Total operating revenues 2,797,748 2,759,819 1,378,086 1,323,266

Operating expenses 6,208,408 6,040,493 1,490,919 1,429,991

Operating loss (3,410.660) (3,280,674) (112,833) (106,725)

Nonoperating revenues, net:
State appropriations, noncapitaL 2,068,465 1,996,421
Federal financial aid grants,

noncapital 810,838 795,097 1,541 1,414
State financial aid grants,

noncapital 437,517 394,367 1,333 1,229
Local financial aid grants, -

noncapital 233 293
Nongovernmental and other

financial aid grants, noncapital 30,831 20,356 172 555
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(Unaudited)

Discretely presented
University component units

2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Other federal nonoperating wants,
noncapital $ 3,326 4,197 — —

Gifts, noncapital 47,861 39,835 168,392 117,269
Investment income, net 41,522 59,067 59,102 6,224
Endowment income, net 129 85 85,241 (9,566)
Interest expense (244,187) (213,138) (29,547) (31,803)
Other nonoperating revenues

(expenses) 79,702 53,346 (26.420) (7.931)

Net nonoperating
revenues 3,276,004 3,149,633 260,047 79.684

Income (loss) before
other revenues and
expenses (134,656) (131,041) 147,214 (27,041)

State appropriations, capital 16,983 7,021 — —

Grants and gifts, capital 40,832 35,978 17,021 12,273
Additions (reductions) to permanent

endowments (576) (37) 56,211 35,173

Change in net position (77,417) (88.079) 220,446 20.405

Net position — beginning of year, as
previously reported 5,818,777 5,906,856 2,050,840 2,025,810

Restatements (58,358) 50,844 4,625

Net position — beginning of year, as
restated 5,760,419 5.906.856 2.101,684 2,030.435

Net position — end of year $ 5,683,002 5,818,777 2,322.130 2,050,840
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Revenues (Operating and Nonoperating)

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

02013

•2012

State appropriations (noncapital
and capital)

Student tuition and fees, net
Grants, contracts, and gifts
Sales and services (educational

activities and auxiliary
enterprises, net)

Investment income, net and
other

Total revenues
(operating and
nonoperating)

S 2,085,448
2,081,251
1,461,990

437,981

308,508

The two largest components of revenues are state appropriations and student tuition and fees, net, which
accounted for a combined 65.4% of the University’s revenues in fiscal year 2013. State appropriations are
received for both noneapital and capital purposes. Noncapital appropriations increased by $72.0 million, or 3.6%,

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following chart displays the components of the University’s revenues for fiscal years 2013 and 2012:

((n thousands) University Revenues by Source
$2,500,000

$2000000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000
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2013
Percentage

of total 2012
(In thousands)

Percentage
of total

32.7% 2,003,442 32.5%
32.7% 2,065,126 33.5%
22.9% 1,382,708 22.4%

6.9% 424,652 6.9%

4.8% 289,624 4.7%

100.0% 6,165,552 100.0%S 6,375,178
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

from $2.0 billion to $2.07 billion in the current year. Capital appropriations increased by $10.0 million, or
141.9%, from $7.0 million to $17.0 million in the current year. The student tuition and fees net of scholarship
and allowances, increased by $16.1 million, or 0.8%, mainly due to increase in overall student enrollment.

A significant portion of the University’s contracts and grants revenue is managed through its component units.
Of the total reporting entity’s contracts and grants revenue ($1.8 billion), 26.1% is managed by these related
entities. Contracts and grants revenue for the University has increased $66.9 million or 5.1% in the current year.

Total gift income for the University and the discretely presented component units (which includes operating and
capital gifts, as well as additions to permanent endowments) reached $274.3 million, or 3.4% of the reporting
entity’s total revenues in fiscal year 2013. It increased $74.8 million or 37.5% from $199.5 million in 2012. Gifts
are used to support a variety of projects, including capital improvements, scholarships, and endowments for
various academic and research programs.

Auxiliary enterprise operations such as student housing may be run by the University or by component units
depending on the campus, whereas student unions are run by component units. There was no significant change
in sales and services of auxiliary enterprises revenue for the total reporting entity (either the University or
component units) in the current year.

Investment income, net and other for the University, which consists of investment income, endowment income,
other operating revenues, and other nonoperating revenues, increased by $18.9 million to $308.5 million in the
current year. The increase was primarily due to an increase of $26.4 million in other nonoperating revenues and
$10 million increase in other operating revenues, offset by a decrease of $17.5 million in investment income, net,
in the current year.

The University’s investment portfolio consists primarily of investments held in the State of California Surplus
Money Investment Fund (SMIF) and the California State University Consolidated Investment Pool. The
University’s strategy is to continue in investing in securities with low interest rates and short maturities.
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Operating Expenses

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

When the mission-critical educational support activities of student services, academic support, grants and
scholarships, public service, and research are added to direct classroom instruction, total instruction and
educational support activities account for 69.7% of the total operating expenses of the University as shown
below:

(to thousands)

Total instmthon and
cduantiornl support rivilics 4,322,37!

Total opcmhing expenses
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Institutional support
Opemtion and maintamnceof plant
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$ 2,133,286
42,503
65,304

601,204
653,141
826.933

34,4%
0.7%
1.1%
9.7%

10.5%
13.3%

697%

10,3%
8.5%
4,5%
7.0%

640,419
528,776
281,312
435,530
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(Unaudited)

Total operating expenses for the University increased by $167.9 million in the current year. The increase was a
result of primarily the increase in employees’ and retirees’ benefit costs, and insurance premiums resulting in an
increase of $35.9 million in instruction expenses, $24.3 million in academic support, $30.5 million in student
services and $27.9 million in institutional support. Other factors included increases in auxiliary enterprise
expenses due to housing and parking lot improvements, depreciation and amortization, and maintenance and
repair expenses. These increases were offset by overall cost reductions measures in various finctional categories.
The chart below displays the University’s operating expenses by program for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

(In thousands)

52,400,000
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Factors Impacting Future Periods

University Operating Expenses by Program

The State Budget Act for fiscal year 2014, approved by the Governor on June 27, 2013, resulted in noncapital
state appropriation of $2.34 billion, which represents an increase of $267 million over the fiscal year 2013
enacted budget. This increase consists of $125 million to restore the University’s revenue loss from the fiscal
year 2013 tuition fee rollback, another $125 million increase in general noncapital operating budget support, and
$17 million for other items.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Statement otNet Position

June 30,2013

Discretely
presented
component

Assets UHIvenit, units Total

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaleffla $ 8.332,000 200,126,000 208,458,000
Short-tarn investments 2,626,675,000 553,474,000 3,180,149,000
Accounts receivable, net 151,697,000 227,629,000 379,326,000
Leases receivable, current portion 10,992,000 1,916,000 12,978,000
Notesreceivable, currentpoflion 11,453,000 4,421,000 15,874,000
Pledgesreceivable,net 413,000 38,110.000 38,523,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets $3,162,000 39.822,000 92,984,000

Total current assets 2.862.724.000 1.005.568.000 3,928,292,000

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 43,000 34,211,000 34,261,000
Accounts receivable, net 362,254,000 64,394,000 427,143,000
Leases receivable, net cfcurrentportion 371,361,000 69,974.000 441,335,000
Notes receivable, net ofcwrent portion 266,234,000 37,778,000 394,012,000
Student loans receivable, net 87,1 71,000 1,167,000 88,338,000
Pledges receivable, net 456,000 96,660,000 97,116,000
Endotment investments 20,657,000 1,087,662,000 1,108,319,000
Other long-tenn investments 307,072,000 441.052,000 838,124,000
Capital anaetn,net 7,619,116,000 796,835,000 8,485,951,000
Other assets 63,573,000 35,877.000 99.450.000

Total noncurrent asset, 9.257,937,000 2.666.117.000 11.924,054,000

Total assets 12.120,661,000 3,731,685,000 15,852346.000

Defend Outflows ofResources

Defeered outfiotvsofresources 32,020.000 5.071,000 37.091.000

LIabilIties

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable I t3,918,000 80,300,000 :64,218,000
Accrued aalasies and bcnefsts payable 218.947.000 22,521.000 301,468,000
Accrued compensated absences, current portion 116,287.000 l4,00l,000 130,288,000
Unearned revenue 244.712,000 59,420,000 304,132,000
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion 68,364,000 13,570,000 81,934,000
Long-tenn debt obligations, current portion 98,747,000 30,678,000 129,425,000
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenoes, cuneset portion — 28,928,000 25,928,000
Depository accounls, current portion 7,425.000 11,758,000 19,183,000
Other liabilities 75,307.000 91.313,000 166.620,000

Total current liabilities 1,073.707.000 352.489,000 1.426.196,000

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, net ofcunesat portion t9,528,000 3,524,000 93,052,000
Uneamedrevenue 11,439,000 12,117,000 23,556,000
Grants reftsndable 93.818,000 4,542,000 9t,360,000
Capitalized tease obligations, net ofconent portion 1.077,274.000 349,216,000 1,426,490,000
Long-tenndebt obligations, net ofcurrentportion 3,747,357,000 447,295,000 4,194,652,000
Claims liability for losses and loss adjoannent expenses, net tfcuerent portion — 59,229,000 59,229,000
Depositosy accounts 4,463,000 19.405,000 23,868,000
Other postanploysnent benefits obligation 219,018,000 105,018,000 324.036,000
Other liabilities 153.075.000 59.310.000 212.385.000

Total noncurrent liabilities 5.395,972,000 1.059,656.000 6.455,628,000

Total liabilities 6.469.679,000 l,4l2,145,000 7,88l,824,000

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows ofresources — 2.481,000 2.481.000

Net rotttlon

Net position:
Net investment in capital asoets 3,693,066,000 182,928,000 3,875,994,000
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable — endowments 20.627,000 837,651.000 868,278,000
Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships 4,099,000 183,721,000 l97,820,000
Research 420,000 28,675,000 29,095,000
Loans 4,403,000 1,788,000 16.191,000
Capital projects 39,557,000 38.021,000 77,578,000
Debt service 3,819,000 10,600,000 14,419,000
Other 15,212.000 496,259.000 SI 1,471,000

Usuenthcsed 1.881.799,000 532.487,000 2,414,286,000

Total net position $ 5.683,002.000 2.322,130,000 8.005.132.000

See accompanying note, to financial otateneenta.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2013

Discretely
presented

component
University units Eliminations Total

Revenues:
Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees (net of scholanhip allowances
ofSl,126,003,000) $ 2,081,251,000 185,213,000 (11,494,000) 2,254,970,000

Grants and contracts, noncapital:
Federal 62,108,000 333,250,000 — 395,358,000
State 14,002,000 78,555,000 (3,368,000) 89,189,000
Local 6,667,000 14,028,000 — 20,695,000
Nongovernmental 8,584,000 50,583,000 (340,000) 58,827,000

Sales and services ofeducational activities 35,355,000 28,595,000 — 53,950,000
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises (net of

scholarship allowances of 553,309,000) 402,626,000 459,091,000 (6,883,000) 854,834,000
Other operating revenues 187,155.000 228,771,000 (5.912.000) 410,014,000

Total operating revenues 2,797,748,000 l378,086,000 (27,997,000) 4,147,837,000

Expenses:
Openling expenses:

Instruction 2,133,286,000 170,884,000 (2,709,000) 2,30l,461,000
Research 42,503,000 202,892,000 (374,000) 245,021,000
Public service 65,304,000 155,446,000 (4,536,000) 215,214,000
Academic support 601,204,000 68,132,000 (1,697,000) 667,639,000
Student services 653,141,000 151,032,000 (29,152,000) 775,021,000
Institutional support 640,419,000 190,687,000 (l2,876,000) 818,230,000
Operation and maintenance of plant 528,776,000 35,749,000 (6,002,000) 558,523,000
Student grants and scholanhips 826,933,000 49,111,000 (24,185,000) 851,858.000
Auxiliary enterprise expenses 281,312,000 420,374,000 (12,223,000) 689,463,000
Depreciation and amortization 435.530.000 46,612.000 — 482.142.000

Total operating expenses 6.208.408.000 1,490.9 19.000 (93.755.000) 7,605,572,000

Operntingloss (3,410,660.000) (112,833,000) 65,758.000 (3,457,735.000)

Nonopenting revenues (expenses):
State apprepdations, noncapiul 2,068,465,000 — — 2,068,465,000
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital 810,838,000 1,541,000 — 8t2,379,000
State rmancial aid grants, noncapital 437,517,000 1,333,000 — 438,850,000
Local rmancial aid grants, noncapital 233,000 — 233,000
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital 30,831,000 172,000 (16,529,000) 14,474,000
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital 3,326,000 — — 3,326,000
Gills, noneapital 47,861,000 168,392,000 (34,248,000) l82,005,000
Investment income, net 41,522,000 59,102,000 — 100,624,000
Endowment income 129,000 85,241,000 — 85,370,000
Interest expense (244,187,000) (29,547,000) — (273,734,000)
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 79.702,000 (26.420,000) 6203,000 59.485.000

Netnonoperntingrvvenues 3276,004,000 260.047,000 (44,574,000) 3,491,477,000

Income (loss) before other revenues and
expenses (134,656,000) 147,214,000 21,184,000 33,742,000

State appropriations, capital 16,983,000 — — 16,983,000
Gmntsandgifls.capibl 40,832,000 17,021,000 (21,l84,000) 36,659.000
Additions (reduction) to permanent endowments (576,000) 56,211,000 — 55.635,000

Increase (decrease) in net position (77.417.000) 220.446,000 — 143.029,000

Net position:
Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 5,8t8,777,000 2,050,840,000 — 7,869,617,000
Restatements (58,358,000) 50,844.000 — (7,5 14,000)

Net position at beginning of year, as restated 5,760,419,000 2,I0l,684,000 — 7,862,103.000

Netpositionatcndofyear $ 5,683,002,000 2,322.130,000 — 8,005,132,000

See accompanying notes to fmaneial statements.

19



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2013

University

Cash flows from operating activities:
Student tuition and fees $ 2,074,066,000
Federal grants and contracts 64,120,000
State grants and contracts 13,858,000
Local grants and contracts 6,335,000
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 8,488,000
Payments to suppliers (1,101,879,000)
Payments to employees (3,782,920,000)
Payments to students (828,699,000)
Collections of student loans 3,643,000
Sales and services of educational activities 32,670,000
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 387,550,000
Other receipts 180,402,000

Net cash used in operating activities (2,942,366,000)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations 2,063,387,000
Federal financial aid grants 808,400,000
State financial aid grants 436,751,000
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants 30,866,000
Other federal nonoperating grants 3,326,000
Gifts and grants received for other than capital purposes 46,218,000
Federal loan program receipts 1,358,861,000
Federal loan program disbursements (1,359,283,000)
Monies received on behalf of others 122,212,000
Monies disbursed on behalf of others (117,187,000)
Other noncapital financing activities 83,623,000

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 3,477,174,000

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capital debt 577,152,000
State appropriations 109,162,000
Capital grants and gifts 17,398,000
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 236,000
Acquisition of capital assets (469,878,000)
Issuance of notes receivable (55,950,000)
Transfers to escrow agent (327,827,000)
Principal paid on capital debt and leases (188,900,000)
Interest paid on capital debt and leases (210,648,000)
Principal payments received on capital leases receivable 7,882,000
Interest payments received on capital leases receivable 14,719,000
Principal payments received on notes receivable 5,272,000
Interest payments received on notes receivable 14,313,000

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (507,069,000)
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Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments $ 12,211,512,000
Purchases of investments (12,283,345,000)
Investment income proceeds 43,148,000

Net cash used in investing activities (28,685,000)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (946,000)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,321,000

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 8,375,000

Summary of cash and cash equivalents at end of year:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,332,000
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 43,000

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 8,375,000

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss $ (3,410,660,000)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 435,530,000
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net (2,289,000)
Student loans receivable, net 198,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets (18,344,000)
Accounts payable 3,991,000
Accrued salaries and benefits 5,505,000
Accrued compensated absences 1,217,000
Unearned revenue (16,202,000)
Depository accounts 762,000
Other postemployment benefits obligation 46,431,000
Other liabilities 11,495,000

Net cash used in operating activities $ (2,942,366,000)

Supplemental schedule of noncash transactions:
Reclassification to capitalized lease obligations and related prepaid interest

and construction reserves $ 182,466,000
Contributed capital assets 19,015,000
Amortization of prepaid interest related to SPWB capital lease obligation 18,926,000
Amortization of loss on debt reftindings 10,594,000
Change in accrued capital asset purchases 4,665,000
Other miscellaneous noncash transactions related to discretely presented component

units and capital assets 3,470,000
SPWB program appropriation for construction reserve finds 2,225,000
Acquisition of capital assets through capital lease 1,390,000
Operating expenses paid through long-term debt 1,789,000
Gifts in kind 502,000
Amortization of bond premium and discount (9,800,000)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(1) Organization

California State University (the University) was established under the State of California Education Code
as a public university to offer undergraduate and graduate instruction for professional and occupational
goals emphasizing a broad liberal arts education. As an agency of the State of California (the State), the
University is also included in the State’s financial statements. Responsibility for the University is vested in
the Trustees of California State University (the Trustees) who, in turn, appoint the Chancellor, the chief
executive officer of the University, and the University Presidents, the chief executive officers of the
respective campuses. In adthrion to the Office of the Chancellor, the following 23 campuses comprise the
California State University at June 30, 2013:

• California State University, Bakersfield

• California State University, Channel Islands

• California State University, Chico

• California State University, Dominguez Hills

• California State University, East Bay

• California State University, Fresno

• California State University, Fullerton

• Humboldt State University

• California State University, Long Beach

• California State University, Los Angeles

• California Maritime Academy

• California State University, Monterey Bay

• California State University, Northridge

• California State Polytechnic University, Pomona

• California State University, Sacramento

• California State University, San Bernardino

• San Diego State University

• San Francisco State University

• San Jose State University

• California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo

• California State University, San Marcos

• Sonoma State University

• California State University, Stanislaus
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The University provides instruction for baccalaureate, masters’, doctorate, and certificate programs, and
operates various auxiliary enterprises, such as student housing and parking facilities. In addition, the
University administers a variety of fmancial aid programs that are funded primarily through state and
federal programs.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Financial Reporting Entity

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments, and No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion andAnalysis
—for Public Colleges and Universities, the accompanying financial statements present the statement
of net position, statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and statement of cash
flows of the 23 campuses and the Office of the Chancellor of the California State University.

In addition, the accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the 92 discretely
presented component units which are primarily University-related recognized auxiliary
organizations. There are four discretely presented component units that are not auxiliary
organizations (identified by asterisk (9 below). These discretely presented component units are
legally separate entities that provide services primarily to the University and its students. Such
organizations include foundations, associated students, student unions, food service entities,
bookstores, and similar organizations. Foundations, whose net position comprises approximately
78% of the discretely presented component unit totals, carry out a variety of campus-related
activities. Such activities consist primarily of administering grants from governmental and private
agencies for research, as well as soliciting and accepting donations, gifts, and bequests for
University-related use. Separate financial statements are issued for each of the discretely presented
component units and may be obtained from the individual campuses.

The recognized discretely presented component units are as follows:

• California State University, Bakersfield, Foundation

• Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Bakersfield

• California State University, Bakersfield Student Union

• California State University, Bakersfield, Auxiliary for Sponsored Programs
Administration

• California State University Institute

• California State University Foundation

• California State University Risk Management Authority

• California State University, Channel Islands Foundation

• Associated Students of California State University, Channel Islands, Inc.

• CSUCI Financing Authority°
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• California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority

• California State University Channel Islands University Glen Corporation

• The CSU, Chico Research Foundation

• The University Foundation, California State University, Chico

• Associated Students of California State University, Chico

• California State University Dominguez Hills Foundation

• Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Dominguez Hills

• The Donald P. and Katherine B. Loker University Student Union, Inc., California State
University, Dominguez Hills

• California State University, East Bay Foundation, Inc.

• Associated Students, Inc. of California State University, Fast Bay

• Cal State East Bay Educational Foundation, Inc.

• California State University, Fresno Foundation

• Associated Students, Inc. of California State University, Fresno

• California State University, Fresno Association, Inc.

• The Agricultural Foundation of California State University, Fresno

• California State University, Fresno Athletic Corporation

• The Bulldog Foundation (Fresno)*

• Fresno State Programs for Children, Inc.

• Cal State Fullerton Philanthropic Foundation

• Associated Students, California State University, Fullerton, Inc.

• Titan Student Centers Associated Students California State University, Fullerton, Inc.

• CSU Fullerton Housing Authority

• CSU Fullerton Auxiliary Services Corporation

• Humboldt State University Sponsored Programs Foundation

• Associated Students of Humboldt State University

• Humboldt State University Center Board of Directors

• Humboldt State University Advancement Foundation

• California State University, Long Beach Research Foundation

• California State University, Long Beach 49er Foundation
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• Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Long Beach

• Forty-Niner Shops, Inc. (Long Beach)

• Cal State L.A. University Auxiliary Services, Inc.

• California State University, Los Angeles Foundation

• Associated Students of California State University, Los Angeles, Inc.

• University — Student Union at California State University, Los Angeles

• California Maritime Academy Foundation, Inc.

• Associated Students of the California Maritime Academy

• University Corporation at Monterey Bay

• Foundation of California State University, Monterey Bay

• California State University, Northridge Foundation

• Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Northridge

• University Student Union, Inc., California State University, Northddge

• North Campus — University Park Development Corporation (Northridge)

• The University Corporation (Northridge)

• Cal Poly Pornona Foundation, Inc.

• Associated Students, Inc., California State Polytechnic University, Pomona

• The University Foundation at Sacramento State

• University Enterprises, Inc. (Sacramento)

• Associated Students, Inc. of California State University, Sacramento

• University Union Operation of California State University, Sacramento

• Capital Public Radio, Inc. (Sacramento)

• Santos Manuel Student Union of California State University, San Bernardino

• Associated Students, Incorporated, California State University, San Bernardino

• CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation

• University Enterprises Corporation at CSUSB

• San Diego State University Research Foundation

• The Campanile Foundation (San Diego)

• Associated Students of San Diego State University
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• Aztec Shops, Ltd. (San Diego)

• The University Corporation, San Francisco State

• Associated Students of San Francisco State University

• San Francisco State University Student Center

• San Francisco State University Foundation

• Associated Students of San Jose State University

• The Student Union of San Jose State University

• The Tower Foundation of San Jose State University

• San Jose State University Research Foundation

• Spartan Shops, Inc. (San Jose)

• California Polytechnic State University Foundation (San Luis Obispo)

• Cal Poly Corporation (San Luis Obispo)

• Associated Students, Inc., California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo

• University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation (San Marcos)

• Associated Students, Inc. of California State University, San Marcos

• San Marcos University Corporation

• California State University San Marcos Foundation

• Sonoma State University Academic Foundation, Inc.

• Associated Students of Sonoma State University

• Sonoma State Enterprises, Inc.

• California State University, Stanislaus Foundation

• Associated Students Incorporated of California State University, Stanislaus

• University Student Union of California State University, Stanislaus

• California State University, Stanislaus Auxiliary and Business Services

These component units are presented in the accompanying financial statements as discretely
presented component units of the University due to the nature and significance of their relationship
with the University. The relationships are such that exclusion of these organizations from the
reporting entity would render the fmancial statements incomplete, primarily due to their close
affiliation with the University. These organizations are discretely presented to allow the financial
statement users to distinguish between the University and the component units. None of the
component units are considered individually significant to the total discretely presented component
units.
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MI significant nonexchange transactions have been eliminated.

The accompanying fmancial statements also include the Stockton Center Site Authority, Fullerton
Arboretum, and California State Student Association, which are included as blended component
units. These organizations primarily provide services to the University in the areas of asset
management and debt financing. The University is financially accountable for these organizations.

(ii) Basis ofPresentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

As a public institution, the University is considered a special-purpose government under the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 35. The University records revenue in part from fees and other
charges for services to external users and, accordingly, has chosen to present financial statements
using the reporting model for special-purpose governments engaged in business-type activities. This
model allows all financial information for the University to be reported in a single column in each of
the financial statements, accompanied by aggregated financial information for the component units,
as discussed above. The effect of internal activity between funds or groups of funds has been
eliminated from these financial statements.

‘c) Implementation ofNew Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Service Concession Arrangements, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012.
This Statement requires the University to report the activities for certain public-private partnerships
as service concession arrangements in the financial statements. Service concession arrangements are
recorded when the arrangements meet certain criteria which include building and operating a facility,
obtaining the right to collect fees from third parties, and transferring ownership of the facility to the
University at the end of the arrangement. Implementation of Statement No. 60 had no effect on the
University’s net position or changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2013.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus,
effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012. This Statement modifies the existing
requirements for the assessment of component units that should be included in the financial
statements of the University. The effect of the changes from the implementation of Statement No.61
on the University’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,2013 was as follows:

Net position as of June 30, 2012, as previously reported $ 5,818,777,000
Change in reporting for CSU Risk Management Authority — Changing from

a blended component unit to a discretely presented component unit (58,358,000)

Net position at beginning of year, as restated $ 5,760,419,000
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The beginning net position of the University has been restated primarily due to California State
University Risk Management Authority (CSURMA), previously reported as a blended component
unit, now being reported as a discretely presented component unit in accordance with
GASB StatementNo. 61.

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncement,
effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1,2012. The objective of this statement is to
incorporate into the GASBs authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting
guidance that was previously included within the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Committee on Accounting Procedure.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows ofResources, and Net Position, effective for the University’s fiscal year
beginning July 1, 2012. This Statement modifies the presentation of the deferred inflows and
deferred outflows in the financial statements. The effect of the changes from the implementation of
Statement No. 63 on the University’s financial statements was the presentation of deferred outflows
and inflows or resources in the statement of net position.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge
Accounting Termination Provisions, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012.
This Statement clarifies the existing requirements for the tennination of hedge accounting.
Implementation of Statement No. 64 had no effect on the University’s net position or changes in net
position for the year ended June 30, 2013.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013; however, the University
early adopted this Statement effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012. This Statement
reclassifies, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. Implementation of Statement No. 65 resulted to the
(a) recognition of unamortized loss on debt reflindings previously reported net of long-term debt
obligations as deferred outflows of resources and (b) bond-issuance costs, except any portion related
to prepaid insurance costs, being recognized as expense in the period incurred.
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(d) Discretely Presented Component Units Restatements

The beginning net position of the discretely presented component units has been restated primarily
due to the implementation of GASB Statements No. 61 (refer to note 2(c)) and No. 65. A summary
of the restatements to net position at the beginning of the year related to the discretely presented
component units is as follows:

Net position as of June 30,2012, as previously reported S 2,050,840,000
Adjustment for implementation of GASB Statement No. 61 58,358,000
Adjustment for implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 (7,816,000)
Adjustment for overstatement of OPEB 1,156,000
Adjustment for overstatement of notes receivable (754,000)
Adjustment for overstatement of unearned revenue (100,000)

Net position at beginning of year, as restated $ 2,101,684.000

(e) ClassWcation of Current and Noncurrent Assets (Other titan Investments) and Liabilities

The University considers assets to be current that can reasonably be expected, as part of its normal
business operations, to be converted to cash and be available for liquidation of current liabilities
within 12 months of the statement of net position date. Liabilities that reasonably can be expected, as
part of normal University business operations, to be liquidated within 12 months of the statement of
net position date are considered to be current. All other assets and liabilities are considered
noncurrent. For classification of current and noncurrent investments, refer to note 2(g).

(ft Cash Equivalents and Statement of Cash Flows

The University considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The University considers amounts included in the CSU Consolidated
Investment Pool to be investments. The statement of cash flows does not include the cash flows of
the discretely presented component units.

(g) Investments

Investments are reflected at fair value using quoted market prices. Realized and unrealized gains and
losses are included in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position as a component of investment income, net.

Investments that are used for current operations are classified as short-term investments. Investments
that are restricted for withdrawal or use for other than current operations, designated or restricted for
the acquisition or construction of noncurrent assets, designated or restricted for the liquidation of the
noncurrent portion of long-term debt, and restricted as to the liquidity of the investments are
classified as other long-term investments.

(Is) Accounts Receivable

The University maintains an allowance for doubtthl accounts for estimated losses inherent in its
accounts receivable based on type of receivables and expectations of repayment. In establishing the
required allowance, management considers one or more of the following: type of receivables, state
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guidelines, historical losses adjusted to take into account current market conditions, the amount of
receivables in dispute, the current receivables aging, and current payment patterns. The University
reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts annually. Past due balances over 90 days and over a
specified amount are reviewed individually for collectibility.

(i) CapitalAssets

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased, or, if donated, at estimated
fair value at date of donation. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, with an
original value of $5,000 or more and with a useful life of one year or more, are capitalized. Such cost
includes, where applicable, interest capitalized as part of the cost of constructed capital assets. Title
to all University assets, whether purchased, constructed, or donated, is held by the State. Although
title is not with the University for land and buildings, the University has exclusive use of these assets
and is responsible for the maintenance of these assets and thus has recorded the cost of these assets
in the accompanying financial statements. Capital assets, with the exception of land and land
improvements, works of art and historical treasures, construction work in progress, and certain
intangible assets, are depreciated or amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, which range from 3 to 45 years. Library books, unless considered rare collections, are
capitalized and depreciated over a 10-year period. Periodicals and subscriptions are expensed as
purchased. Works of art and historical treasures are valued at cost, if purchased, or the fair market
value at the date of donation, if contributed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend its life are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization expense is shown separately in the statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position rather than being allocated among other categories of operating expenses.

0) Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists primarily of fees collected in advance for summer and fall terms and
continuing education programs.

(Ic) Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized when the right to receive the compensation is earned by the
employees. Vacation is accrued on a monthly basis. The University uses an employee’s current pay
rate as of July 1, 2013 to calculate the liability for accrued compensated absences. The University
employee’s pay rates are based on length of service and job classifications.

(0 Grants Refundable

The University periodically receives contributions from the Federal government in support of its
operation of the Federal Perkins and Nursing Loan programs, both Title IV Loan programs. The
Federal government has the ability to terminate its support of these programs at any time and to
request the University return those contributions on a cumulative basis. Accordingly, the Federal
contributions received and retained by the University at year-end are considered liabilities of the
University and are reflected as such in the accompanying statement of net position.
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(m) Claims Liabilityfor Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses included in the aggregate discretely
presented component units column of the financial statements includes CSURMA’s estimated
uLtimate cost of settling claims relating to events that have occurred on or before June 30, 2013. The
liability includes the estimated amount that will be required for future payments of claims that have
been reported and claims related to events that have occurred but have not been reported. The
liability is also reduced by estimated amounts recoverable from the reinsurance that is related to the
liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses. The liability is estimated through an
actuarial calculation using individual case basis valuations and statistical analyses. The liability is
not discounted.

Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to
produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and
social factors. Adjustments to claim liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in
which they are made.

In the estimate of the unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, CSURMA and its consulting
actuary have employed methods and assumptions they considered reasonable and appropriate given
the information currently available. Given the inherent uncertainty in the nature of such estimates,
future losses may deviate from those estimates.

(ix) Net Position

The University’s net position is classified into the following categories:

• Net Investment in Capital Assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets and any related deferred outflows of resources.

• Restricted:

Nonexpendable: Net position subject to externally imposed conditions that the
University retains in perpetuity. Net position in this category consists of endowments
held by the University or its related auxiliaries.

Expendable: Net position subject to externally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled
by the actions of the University or by the passage of time.

• Unrestricted: All other categories of net position. In addition, unrestricted net position
may have legislative or bond indenture requirements associated with their use or may be
designated for use by management of the University, These requirements limit the area of
operations for which expenditures of net position may be made and require that unrestricted
net position be designated to support future operations in these areas. University housing
programs are a primary example of operations that have unrestricted net position with
designated uses.
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(o) Classjflcation ofRevenues and Expenses

The University considers operating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange transactions
and from other activities that are connected directly to the University’s primary functions. Exchange
transactions include charges for services rendered and the acquisition of goods and services. Certain
other transactions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 35. These nonoperating activities include the University’s capital and
noncapital appropriations from the State, financial aid, net investment income, noncapital gifts,
interest expense, and capital grants and gifts.

The State appropriates funds to the University on an annual basis. The appropriations are, in turn,
allocated among the campuses by the Office of the Chancellor. Appropriations are recognized as
revenue in general when authorization is received and are reported as either noncapital
appropriations when used to support general operations or capital appropriations when used for
capital projects.

Student tuition and fee revenue, and sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, including revenues
from student housing programs, are presented net of scholarships and fellowships applied to student
accounts. Certain other scholarship amounts are paid directly to, or refunded to, the student and are
reflected as expenses.

(p) Other Postemployrnent Benefits

The University’s other postemployment benefit obligation included in the accompanying financial
statements reflects the University’s estimated funding liability of the State administered and
sponsored plan as of the fiscal year ended. The State’s actuary has employed methods and
assumptions considered reasonable and appropriate given the information currently available. Given
the inherent uncertainty in the nature of such estimates, future amounts may deviate from those
estimates.

(uJ Grant Revenue and Expenses

The University records grant revenue when all applicable grant eligibility requirements are met.
Expenses are recorded as expenditures are incurred. Expenditure-driven grant revenue is recorded
after the expenditures are incurred, in amounts equal to the expenditures.

(r) Internal Services Activities

Certain institutional internal service providers offer goods and services to University departments, as
well as to their external customers. These include activities such as copy centers, postal services, and
telecommunications. All internal service activities to University departments have been eliminated in
the accompanying financial statements. These eliminations are recorded by removing the revenue
and expense in the internal service sales and service units and, if significant, allocating any residual
balances to those departments receiving the goods and services during the year.
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(s) Income Taxes

The University is an agency of the State and is treated as a governmental entity for tax purposes. As
such, the University is generally not subject to federal or state income taxes. However, the
University remains subject to income taxes on any net income that is derived from a trade or
business, regularly carded on and not in furtherance of the purpose for which it was granted
exemption. No income tax provision has been recorded. If there is net income from any unrelated
trade or business, such provision, in the opinion of management, is not material to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

(I) Eliminations

All significant nonexchange transactions between the University and the discretely presented
component units have been eliminated from the total column and are separately presented in the
eliminations column in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position.

(is) Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
in the accompanying financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(3) Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The University’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments as of June 30, 2013 are classified in the
accompanying statement of net position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,332,000
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 43,000

Total cash and cash equivalents 8,375,000

Short-term investments 2,626,675,000
Endowment investments 20,657,000
Other long-term investments 397,072,000

Total investments 3,044,404,000

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 3,052,779,000

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2013, cash and cash equivalents consisted of demand deposits held at the State Treasury
and commercial banks, and petty cash. Total cash and cash equivalents of $8,375,000 had a
corresponding carrying balance with the State Treasury and commercial banks of $24,739,000 at
June 30, 2013. The difference was primarily related to deposits in transit and outstanding checks.
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Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that the University will not be able to recover deposits or
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The
California Government Code and Education Code do not contain legal or policy requirements that
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the provision that a financial
institution must secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. This risk is mitigated in
that the University’s deposits are maintained at financial institutions that are fully insured or
collateralized as required by state law.

(1,) Investments

At June 30, 2013, the University’s investment portfolio consists primarily of investments in the State
of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) and the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool.
For the CSU ConsoLidated Investment Pool, separate accounting is maintained as to the amounts
allocable to the various CSU funds and programs.

Investment Policy

State law and regulations require that surplus monies of the University must be invested. The
primary objective of the University’s investment policy is to safeguard the principal. The secondary
objective is to meet the liquidity needs of the University. The third objective is to return an
acceptable yield. The University’s investment policy authorizes funds held in local trust accounts
under Education Code Sections 89721 and 89724 to be invested in any of the securities authorized
by Government Code Section 16430 and Education Code Section 89724, subject to certain
limitations. In general, the University’s investment policy permits investments in obligations of the
Federal and California state governments, certificates of deposit, high grade corporate and fixed
income securities, and certain other investment instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. The University has formal duration guidelines to manage
its interest rate risk. The duration guidelines include limits on the maximum maturity of any
individual investment in the portfolio and average duration of the investment portfolio. One of the
ways that the University manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
short-term and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of
the portfolio is maturing or nearing maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow
and liquidity needed for operations. The University identifies and manages the interest rate risk
inherent in its portfolio by measuring the weighted average maturity of its portfolio. Weighted
average maturity is based on the stated maturity date, assuming that the callable investments will not
be called. The weighted average maturity of the University’s investment portfolio for each
investment type as of June 30, 2013 is presented in the table on the following page.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization.

The following table presents the fair value, weighted average maturity, and actual rating by
investment type of the University’s allocated share of the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool and the
SMIF as of June 30, 2013:

Weighted
average

______________

Rating as of year-end
maturity Not

Investment type Fair value (in years) AAA AA A rated

Moneymarkel $ 44,846,W0 0.08 S 7,755,000 — 32,000,000 5,091,000
Repurchaseagreements 21,887,000 0.00 — — 21,693,000 194,000
Cenificat of deposit 259,655,W0 0.38 — 8,276,000 251,379,000 —

Commercial paper 24,317,000 0.20 — — 24,317,000 —

U.S. agency securities 777,803,0W 1.69 — 777,803,000 — —

State of California
Local Agency
Investment Fund 6,000 0.76 6,000

State of California
Surplus Money
Investment Fund 524,704,0W 0.76 — 524,704,000

Corporate and fixed
incomesecurities 837,379,000 2.23 120,228,000 204,668,000 512,483,000 —

US. Trcasurysecurities 511,834,0W 1.61 — — — 511,834,000
Municipal securities 38,517,030 1.60 — 29,985,000 8,532,000 —

Mortgage-backed
securities 3,456,000 8.03 — 3.456,000 — —

Total $ 3,044,404,000 $ 127,983,000 1,024,188,000 850,404,000 1.041.829,000

By law, the SMIF only invests in: U.S. government securities, securities of federally-sponsored
agencies, domestic corporate bonds, interest-heating time deposits in California banks, savings and
loan associations and credit unions, prime-rated commercial paper, repurchase and reverse
repurchase agreements, security loans, banker’s acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit and
loans to various bond funds.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The University’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. As of June 30, 2013, the
following investments (excluding U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment
pools) represented 5% or more of the University’s investment portfolio: Federal National Mortgage
Association notes ($218,223,000 or 7.2%), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
($199,935,000 or 6.6%), Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance ($192,634,000 or 6.3%), and
Federal Farm Credit Banks Consolidated Systemwide Bonds ($159,879,000 or 5.3%).

35 (Continued)



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Risk and Uncertainties

The University may invest in various types of investment securities. Investment securities are
exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the
values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially
affect the amounts reported in the statement of net position.

The University, through the CSU Consolidated Investment Pool, invests in securities with
contractual cash flows, such as asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities. The value,
liquidity, and related income of these securities are sensitive to changes in economic conditions,
including real estate values, delinquencies or defaults, or both, and may be adversely affected by
shifts in the market’s perception of the issuers and changes in interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk for Investments

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the custodian, the investments may
not be returned. Substantially all of the University’s securities are registered in the University’s name
by the custodial bank as an agent for the University. As a result, custodial credit risk for such
investments is remote.

Discretely Presented Component Units’ Investments

Investments of the discretely presented component units at fair value consisted of the following at
June 30, 2013:

Current Noncurrent Total

State of California Local Agency
Investment Fund $ 162,270,000 9,178,000 171,448,000

U.S. Bank SWIFT pool 67,516,000 1,484,000 69,000,000
Common Fund 1,344,000 11,650,000 12,994,000
Debt securities 9,257,000 150,810,000 160,067,000
Equity securities 54,436,000 320,681,000 375,117,000
Fixed income securities 20,552,000 247,410,000 267,962,000
Real estate 1,161,000 36,292,000 37,453,000
Certificates of deposit 24,819,000 11,665,000 36,484,000
Notes receivable — 7,158,000 7,158,000
Money market funds 56,224,000 11,664,000 67,888,000
Mutual funds 143,915,000 567,884,000 711,799,000
Partnership interests 5,563,000 9,487,000 15,050,000
Alternative investments — 53,429,000 53,429,000
Hedge funds 834,000 17,936,000 18,770,000
Other 5.583,000 71,986,000 77,569,000

Total $ 553,474,000 1,528,714,000 2,082,188,000

36 (Continued)



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

For additional information regarding the investments of the individual discretely presented
component units, refer to their separately issued financial statements.

Approximately $3.8 million of the investments reported by the University in the statement of net
position at June 30, 2013 are invested under contractual agreements on behalf of the discretely
presented component units of the University.

(4) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable of the University at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total

State appropriations $ 5,163,000 356,780,000 361,943,000
Auxiliary organizations 34,630,000 3,221,000 37,851,000
Student accounts 59,334,000 59,334,000
Government grants and contracts 27,883,000 — 27,883,000
Other 46,973,000 2,253,000 49,226,000

173,983,000 362,254,000 536,237,000

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (22,286,000) — (22,286,000)

Total $ 151,697,000 362,254,000 513,951,000
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(5) Leases Receivable

The University has entered into capital lease agreements with certain auxiliary organizations to lease
existing and newly constructed facilities to the auxiliary organizations. Lease payments are due twice a
year on May I and November 1.

Under the lease agreements, lease payments are due to the University as follows:

Fiscal year ending:
2014 $ 29,402,000
2015 29,369,000
2016 26,753,000
2017 27,040,000
2018 27,122,000
2019—2023 141,276,000
2024—2028 148,792,000
2029—2033 131,503,000
2034—2038 42,746,000
2039—2043 23,190,000
2044—2048 8,986,000

Total minimum lease payments to be received 636,179,000

Less amounts representing interest (253,826,000)

Present value of future minimum lease payments to be received 382,353,000

Less current portion (10,992,000)

Long-term lease receivable, net of current portion $ 371,361,000
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(6) Notes Receivable

The University has entered into note agreements with certain auxiliary organizations to finance existing
and newly constructed facilities for the auxiliary organizations. Note payments are due twice a year, on
May 1 and November 1.

Under the note agreements, note payments are due to the University as follows:

Fiscal year ending:
2014 $ 23,668,000
2015 19,172,000
2016 32,542,000
2017 19,074,000
2018 19,105,000
2019 —2023 104,920,000
2024 — 2028 88,289,000
2029 — 2033 80,929,000
2034 — 2038 49,040,000
2039 —2043 7,707,000
2044—2048 1,124,000
2049—2053 1,124,000

Total minimum note payments to be received 446,694,000

Less amounts representing interest (169,007,000)

Present value of future minimum note payments to be received 277,687,000

Less current portion (11,453,000)

Long-term notes receivable, net of current portion $ 266,234,000
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(7) Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the University for the year ended June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Retirements Transfers balance

No ndepre c iablemno n a ma rtizab Ic
capital assets:

Land and land improventnts $ 256,993,000 13,000 (30,000) — 256,976,000
Works of art and historical

treasures 25,423,000 3,302,000 (28,000) — 28,697,000
Construction work in

progress 412,386,000 385,658,000 (1,483,000) (242,584,000) 553,977,000
Intangible assets 1,361,000 5,746,000 (46,000) (370.000) 6,691,000

Total nondepredable!
nonamortizable
capital assets 696,163,000 394,719,000 (1.587,000) (242,954,000) 846,341,000

Depreciable/amortizable capital
assets:

Buildings and building
improvements 9,881,029,000 38,377,000 (14,256,000) 165,089,000 10,070,239,000

Improvements other than
buildings 503,556,000 11,030,000 (1,829,000) 34,246,000 547,003,000

Infrastructure 923,991,000 12,858,000 (2,874,000) 40,666,000 974,641,000
Personal property:

Equipment 708,310,000 44,190,000 (42,485,000) 2,180,000 712,195,000
Library books and

materials 385,618,000 5,859,000 (3,639,000) — 387,838,000
Intangible assets 309,745,000 3,902,000 (1.966,000) 773,000 312,454,000

Total depreciable!
amortizable
capital assets 12,712.249,000 116,216,000 (67,049,000) 242,954,000 13,004.370,000

Total cost 13,408,412.000 510,935,000 (68,636,000) — 13,850,711,000

Less accumulated depreciation/
amortization:

Buildings and building
improvements (3,964,976,000) (293,540,000) 12,134,000 — (4,246,382,000)

Improvements other than
buildings (359,174,000) (22,475,000) 841,000 — (380,808,000)

Infrastructure (339,731,000) (49,769,000) 2,717,000 — (386,783,000)
Personal property:

Equipment (500,162,000) (47,338,000) 38,114,000 — (509,386,000)
Library books and

materials (343,331,000) (8,948,000) 3,637,000 (348,642,000)
Intangible assets (277,905,000) (13,460,000) 1,771,000 (289,594,000)

Total accumulated
depreciation!
amortization (5,785,279,000) (435,530,000) 59,214,000 — (6,161,595,000)

Net capital assets $ 7,623,133,000 75,405,000 (9,422,000) — 7,689,116.000
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Capital assets activity of the discretely presented component units of the University for the year ended
June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Retirements Transfers balance

Nondepreciable/nonamcrtizable
capital assets:

Land and land improvements $ 94,887,000 13,641,000 (3,022,000) 165,000 105,671,000
Works orart and historical

treastres 7,718,000 546,000 — 8,264,000
Consnction work in

progress 11,162,000 18,003,000 (7,067,000) (8,021,000) 14,077,000
Intangible assets 5,082,000 — — — 5.082,000

Total nondepreciablef
nonamortizable
capital assets 118,849.000 32,190,000 (10,089,000) (7,856,000) 133,094,000

Depreciable/amortizable
capital assets:

Buildings and building
improvements 745,284,000 32,395,000 (26,092,000) 2,751,000 754,338,000

Improvements other than
buildings 109,130,000 3,711,000 (1,825,000) 3,435,000 114,451,000

Infrastructure 67,470,000 106,000 (1,000) — 67,575,000
Personal property:

Equipment 187,810,000 7,790,000 (9,614,000) 1,650,000 187,636,000
Library books and

materials — 3,018,000 — — 3,018,000
Intangible assets 10.609.000 664,000 (503,000) 20,000 10.790,000

Total depreciabl&
amortizable
capital assets 1,120,303,000 47,684,000 (38,035,000) 7,856,000 1,137,808,000

Total cost 1.239,152,000 79.874.000 (48,124,000) — 1.270,902,000

Less accumulated depreciation.’
amortization:

Buildings and building
improvements (229,629,000) (25,946,000) 7,149,000 — (248,426,000)

Improvements other than
buildings (52,315,000) (5,254,000) 1,496,000 — (56,073,000)

Infrastructure (12,372,000) (1,695,000) — (14,067,000)
Personal property

Equipment (143,352,000) (12,707,000) 8,313,000 — (147,746,000)
Intangible assets (7,024.000) (917,000) 186,000 (7,755,000)

Total accumulated
depreciation.’
amortization (444,692,0001 (46,519,000) 17,144,000 — (474,067,000)

Net capital assets $ 794,460,000 33,355,000 (30,980,000) — 796,835,000
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For additional information regarding the capital assets of the individual discretely presented auxiliary
organizations of the University, refer to their separately issued financial statements.

(8) Lease Obligations

The University is obligated under various capital and operating leases and installment purchase agreements
for the acquisition of equipment and facility rentals. A substantial amount of the capital leases is a result of
the University’s participation with the State in the State Public Works Board (SPWB) Lease Revenue Bond
program. The University has participated in this program since 1986 in connection with the construction of
campus facilities and related equipment. Current California law permits the SPWB to authorize the sale of
bonds to construct certain state facilities if there is a revenue stream that can be pledged to repay the
obligations. The process in general is described in brief as follows:

• The University and the State of California Department of Finance agree to the construction of one or
more facilities to be funded by SPWB bonds. The projects are approved as part of the University’s capital
outlay budget.

• The SPWB approves the sale of bonds for the project(s) and the University agrees to execute certain
legal documents in connection with the financing, including a site lease to the SPWB, a construction
agreement to construct the facility for the SPWB, and a facility lease to lease the completed facility from
the SPWB for annual rental payments.

• Prior to the execution of the facility lease, the University receives a short-term loan from the State of
California Pooled Money Investment Board to provide working capital for initial phases of the
construction and in some cases the entire construction.

• Generally, during the construction phase of the project, the bonds are sold by the SPWB, the
construction loan is repaid, and site leases and facility leases are executed requiring semiannual lease
payments, beginning upon completion of the facilities, by the Trustees that are used to pay principal and
interest on the bonds.

• As part of the annual budget process, the State of California Department of Finance augments the
University’s operating budget to provide additional funds for the required lease payments.

The University also enters into capital leases with financial institutions and via commercial paper issued by
the California State University Institute (the Institute), a discretely presented component unit of the
University.

Overall capital leases consist primarily of leases of campus facilities, but also include certain computer,
energy efficiency, and telecommunications equipment. Total assets related to capital leases have a carrying
value of $734,771,000 at June 30, 2013. The leases bear interest at rates ranging from 1.79% to 19.00%
and have terms expiring in various years through 2041.

Operating leases consist primarily of leases for the use of real property. The University’s operating leases
expire in various fiscal years through 2099. The leases can be canceled if the State does not provide
adequate funding. Some of these leases are with related auxiliary organizations for the rental of office
space used in the operations of the University. Total operating lease expenditures for the year ended
June 30,2013 were $23,990,000 of which $12,696,000 was paid to related auxiliary organizations.
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Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases having remaining terms in excess of
one year as of June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Capital Operating
leases leases

Year ending June 30:
2014 $ 125,894,000 20,901,000
2015 124,283,000 14,521,000
2016 123,869,000 12,820,000
2017 117,377,000 11,835,000
2018 115,565,000 10,363,000
2019—2023 404,010,000 35,222,000
2024—2028 325,350,000 13,979,000
2029—2033 305,351,000 11,477,000
2034—2038 132,876,000 2,962,000
2039—2043 7,567,000 1,466,000
2044—2048 397,000
2049—2053 251,000
2054—2058 33,000
2059—2063 33,000
2064—2068 32,000
2069—2073 33,000
2074—2078 32,000
2079—2083 33,000
2084—2088 32,000
2089—2093 33,000
2094—2098 32,000
2099 3,000

Total minimum lease payments 1,782,142,000 S 136,490,000

Less amount representing interest (660,716,000)

Present value of fiimre minimum lease payments 1,121,426,000

Unamortized net premium 24,212,000

Total capital lease obligation 1,145,638,000

Less current portion (68,364,000)

Capital lease obligation, net of current portion $ 1,077,274,000

(9) Long-Term Debt Obligations

(a) General Obligation Bond Program

The General Obligation Bond program of the State has provided capital outlay hinds for the three
segments of California Higher Education through voter-approved bonds. Each of the approved bond
programs provides a pool of available hinds, which is allocated on a project-by-project basis among
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the University, the University of California, and the Community Colleges. Financing provided to the
University through State of California General Obligation Bonds is not allocated to the University by
the State. This debt remains the obligation of the State and is funded by state tax revenues.
Accordingly, such debt is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The total General
Obligation Bond debt carded by the State related to the University projects is approximately
$2,632,154,000 as of June 30, 2013.

(b) Revenue Bond Programs

The Revenue Bond Act of 1947 provides the Trustees with the ability to issue revenue bonds to fund
specific self-supporting programs. The statute has enabled the Trustees to finance student hDusing,
student unions, parking facilities, health facilities, continuing education facilities, and designated
auxiliary organization facilities.

The Systemwide Revenue Bond program, formerly the Housing Revenue Bond program, was
approved by the Board of Trustees in fiscal year 2003. This program provides funding for various
construction projects, including student residence and dining halls facilities, continuing education
buildings, student unions, parking facilities, health facilities, and auxiliary organization facilities at
designated campuses within the system as specified by the individual bond documents. It is designed
to provide lower cost debt and greater flexibility to finance revenue bond projects at the University.
Rather than relying on specific pledged revenues to support specific debt obligations, this program
pools several sources of revenue as the pledge for the revenue-producing projects. The University’s
total outstanding balance of revenue bond indebtedness under the Systemwide Revenue Bond
program was $3,604,708,000 at June 30, 2013.

The University has pledged future continuing education, healthcare facilities, housing, parking, and
student union revenues plus designated auxiliary revenues, net of maintenance and operation
expenses before extraordinary items (net income available for debt service), to repay $4,006,698,000
in Systemwide Revenue Bonds issued through fiscal year 2013.

(c) Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs)

The Trustees have authorized the issuance of BANs to provide short-term financing to the University
System for certain projects. The BANs are purchased by the Institute with proceeds from the
commercial paper issued by the Institute. The BANs are generally issued for periods of up to three
years in anticipation of issuing permanent revenue bonds at a future date. State law was amended in
2008 to allow BAN maturities to extend beyond three years and the maturity date for the issuance of
BANs to be determined by the Trustees. In fiscal year 2010, the Trustees authorized three projects
for financing with maturities beyond three years and they will remain in BANs until the debt is
retired. BAN interest is variable and changes based upon the cost of the Institute’s commercial paper
program. The maximum and minimum weighted average interest rates for the year ended June 30,
2013 were 0.19% and 0.15%, respectively. Amounts outstanding of the total University and
discretely presented component units under the BANs totaled $27,055,000 and $10,316,000,
respectively, at June 30, 2013. The not-to-exceed amounts related to the outstanding amounts totaled
$261,365,000 of which $126,859,000 has not been issued and $97,135,000 has been issued and paid
back.
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Long-term debt obligations of the University as of June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Interest rate Final Original Amount
Description percentage maturity date issue amount outstanding

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Housing SeriesJ—Y 3.00 2013/14—2021/22 $ 18,913,000 6,498,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004A 3.30—5.25 2013/14 — 2026/27 158,010,000 40,010,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005A 3.63— 5.00 2013/14 — 2037/38 667,105,000 583,935,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005B 5.00 2015/16 — 2021/22 134,805,000 70,300,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005C . 4.00—5.25 2017/18 — 2038/39 540,900,000 499,195,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007A 4.00—5.00 2024/25 — 2044/45 254,770,000 243,000,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007B 5.27—5.55 2027/28 — 2037/38 13,165,000 11,715,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007C 5.00 2020/21 — 2028/29 63,275,000 53,210,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007D 4.00—5.00 2037/38 80,360,000 74,455,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2008A 3.50—5.00 2022/23 — 2039/40 375,160,000 350,475,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009A 3.50—6.00 2015/16 — 2040/41 465,365,000 450,280,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2010A 3.00—5.00 2019/20 —2031/32 146,950,000 134,555,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2010B 5.45—6.48 2035/36 — 2041/42 205,145,000 205,145,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 201 IA 0.55—5.25 2020/21 — 2042143 429,855,000 429,015,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012A 0.39— 5.00 2021/22 — 2042/43 436,220,000 436,220,000

Systemwide Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012B 2.79—4.17 2036/37 16,700,000 16,700,000

4,006,698,000 3,604,708,000

Bond Anticipation Notes Variable 2015/16 — 2019/20 28,760,000 27,055,000
Other Variable Various 123,093,000 80.352,000

Total $ 4,158,551,000 3,712,115,000
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Interest rate Final Original Amount
Description percentage maturity date issue amount outstanding

Unamortized bond net premium $ 133,989,000

Total long-term debt 3,846,104,000

Less current portion (98,747.000)

Long-term debt, net of
current portion $ 3,747,357,000

Long-term debt principal and interest are payable and mature in the following fiscal years:

Principal Interest

2014 $ 98,747,000 179,083,000
2015 107,968,000 175,298,000
2016 121,846,000 170,492,000
2017 114,958,000 165,081,000
2018 125,579,000 163,373,000
2019—2023 657,087,000 709,225,000
2024—2028 720,066,000 541,516,000
2029—2033 812,600,000 347,981,000
2034—2038 655,005,000 157,934,000
2039—2043 287,438,000 30,793,000
2044 —2048 9,703,000 407,000
2049—2053 1,118,000 6,000

$ 3,712,115,000 2,641,189,000

Long-term debt obligations of the individual discretely presented component units have been issued
to purchase or construct facilities for University-related uses. For additional information regarding
long-term debt obligations of the individual discretely presented auxiliary organizations, refer to
their separately issued financial statements.

(10) Advanced Refundings

(a) Current Year Refundings

In August 2012, the University partially defeased certain (Series 2002A, 2003A, and 2004A)
Systemwide Revenue Bonds by placing a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the
Systemwide Revenue Bonds Series 2012A refunding bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. The proceeds from the Series 2012A refunding
bonds were used to purchase U.S. federal, state, and local government securities that were placed in
escrow accounts. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are considered sufficient
to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matured. These transactions will reduce
the University’s total financing cost by approximately $80,511,000 over the life of the bonds. The
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economic gain (difference between net present values of the debt service payments on the old debt
and new debt) from these transactions was approximately $52,685,000. Accordingly, the refunded
bonds have been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability from the accompanying
financial statements. The amount of defeased bonds outstanding related to this refunding as of
June 30, 2013 totaled $352,500,000.

The accompanying fmancial statements include a total unamortized loss on the reflmdings of
$32,020,000. The loss represents the difference between the proceeds of the new bond issue, as
adjusted for premium or discount, and the principal amounts of the bonds being defeased. The loss is
being amortized over the life of the new bond issuance or the old bond issuance, whichever is
shorter.

(11) Long-Term Liabilities Activity

Long-term liabilities activity of the University for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Reductions balance portion

Accrued compensated absences $ 202,812,000 132,954,000 (129,951,000) 205,815,000 116,287,000
Self-insurance claims liability

(notes 2 and 13) 76,289,000 — (76,289,000)
Capitalized lease obligations

(note 8) 989,702,000 216,256,000 (60,320,000) 1,145,638,000 68,364,000

Long-term debt obligations
(note 9):

Systemwide revenue bonds 3,542,648,000 452,920,000 (390,860,000) 3,604,708,000 89,390,000
Bond anticipation notes 38,542,000 27,405,000 (38,892,000) 27,055,000 340,000
Other 75,908,000 29,563,000 (25,119,000) 80.352,000 9,017,000

3,657,098,000 509,888,000 (454,871000) 3,712,115,000 98,747,000

Unamortized bond premium 79,325,000 48,029,000 6,635,000 133,989,000
Unamortized loss on debt

reflindings (26,443,000) — 26,443,000

Total long-term
debt obligations 3,709,980,000 557,917,000 (421,793.000) 3,846,104,000 98,747,000

Total long-term
liabilities $ 4,978,783,000 907,127,000 (688,353,000) 5,197,557,000 283,398,000
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Long-term liabilities activity of the combined discretely presented component units of the University for
the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Reductions balance portion

Accrued compensated absences $ 17,277,000 10,660,000 (10,412,000) 17,525,000 14,001,000
Self-insurance claims liability 2,948,000 — (2,948,000) — —

Claims liability for losses
and loss adjustment expenses — 88,157,000 — 88,157,000 28,928,000

Capitalized lease obligations 363,265,000 6,535,000 (7,014,000) 362,786,000 13,570,000

Long-term debt obligations:
Revenue bonds 282,920,000 34,480,000 (123,455,000) 193,945,000 5,865,000
Commercial paper 92,581,000 352,072,000 (361,477,000) 83,176,000 20,006,000
Notes payable 48,250,000 12,565,000 (1,365,000) 59,450,000 1,910,000
Other 112.416,000 21,728.000 (3,022,000) 131.122,000 2,897,000

536,167,000 420,845,000 (489,319,000) 467,693,000 30,678,000

Unamortized bond premium 8,010,000 4,208,000 (1,938,000) 10,280,000
Unamortized loss on debt

refundings (4,664,000) 4,464,000 200,000 — —

Total long-term
debt obligations 539,513,000 429,517,000 (491,057,000) 477,973,000 30,678,000

Total long-term
liabilities $ 923,003,000 534,869,000 (511,431,000) 946,441,000 87,177,000

For additional information regarding the long-term liabilities of the individual discretely presented
component units of the University, refer to their separately issued financial statements.

(12) Pension Plan and Postretirement Benefits

(a) Pension Plan

Plan Description

The University, as an agency of the State, contributes to the CaWERS. The State’s plan with
CaIPERS is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan and CaIPERS functions as an
investment and administrative agent for its members. For the University, the plan acts as a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, which provides a defined benefit
pension and postretirement program for substantially all eligible University employees. The plan also
provides survivor, death, and disability benefits. Eligible employees are covered by the Public
Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) for medical benefits.

CaIPERS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CaIPERS annual financial report
may be obtained from the California Public Employees’ Retirement System Executive Office, 400 P
Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.
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Funding Policy

University personnel are required to contribute 5% of their annual earnings in excess of $513 per
month to CaIPERS. Effective January 1, 2013 all new employees are required to contribute 6% of
their annual earnings per month to CaWERS. The University is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the current rate is approximately 21.2% of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of the plan members are established and may be amended by CaIPERS,
There is no contractual maximum contribution required for the University by CaIPERS.

The University’s contributions to CaIPERS for the most recent three fiscal years were equal to the
required contributions and were as follows:

2011 $ 423,818,000
2012 411,926,000
2013 462,607,000

(b) Postretirernent Healthcare Plan

In accordance with GASB pronouncements, the University is required to recognize the cost of other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) on an accrual basis.

Plan Description

The State provides retiree healthcare benefits to statewide employees, including the University
employees, through the programs administered by CaIPERS. The State’s substantive plan represents
a substantive single-employer defined benefit OPEB Plan, which includes medical and prescription
drug benefits (collectively, healthcare benefits) to the retired University employees. The University
provides dental benefits to eligible University’s retirees. Eligible retirees receive healthcare and
dental benefits upon retirement at age 50 with 5 years of service credit

For healthcare benefits, CaIPERS offers Preferred Provider Organizations (PPOs), Health
Maintenance Organizations (HMOs), and Exclusive Provider Organizations (EPOs) (limited to
members in certain Califomia counties); for dental benefits, a Dental Maintenance Organization
(DM0) and dental indemnity plans to the University’s retirees. Health plans offered, covered
benefits, monthly rates, and copayments are determined by the CaIPERS Board, which reviews
health plan contracts annually.

The contribution requirements of retirees and the State are established and may be amended by the
State legislature. For healthcare benefits, the State makes a contribution toward the retiree’s monthly
health premiums, with the retirees covering the difference between the State’s contribution and the
actual healthcare premium amount. The State contribution is normally established through collective
bargaining agreements. No retiree contribution is required for dental benefits.

Funding Policy

For healthcare benefits, responsibility for funding the cost of the employer share of premiums is
apportioned between the State and the University based on “billable” and “nonbillable” accounts.
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Billable accounts have special revenue sources such as fees, licenses, penalties, assessments, and
interest, which offset the costs incurred by a State department during the year. The University
reimburses the State for retiree’s health benefit costs allocated to billable accounts but not for costs
allocated to nonbillable accounts. The University is responsible for funding the costs of the billable
accounts on a pay-as-you-go basis as part of the statewide general administrative costs charged to the
University. The State is responsible for funding the cost of the employer share of healthcare
premiums of retirees for all nonbillable accounts.

The University is responsible for paying the cost of dental benefits for all University retirees using
funds provided by the State through general fund appropriations. The University makes payments
directly to Delta Dental for the retiree’s monthly dental premiums. The University is paying these
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The following table shows the components of the total annual required contribution (ARC) for the
University’s allocated portion of the postretirement healthcare plan, the amount contributed to the
plan by the University, and changes in the University’s net OPEB obligation (NOO) for the fiscal
year ended 2013:

Annual required contribution (ARC):
Billable accounts $ 35,602,000
Nonbillable accounts (dental only) 40,055,000

Total ARC 75,657,000

Contributions:
Billable accounts (13,175,000)
Nonbillable accounts (dental only) (16,051,000)

Total contributions (29,226,000)

Increase in net OPEB obligation (NOO) 46,431,000

NOO — beginning of year 172,587,000

NOO — end of year:
Billable accounts 102,950,000
Nonbillable accounts (dental only) 116,068,000

Total NOO $ 219,018,000

Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed during the year ended
June 30, 2013 39%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions and Plan Funding Information

As an agency of the State, the University was included in the State’s OPEB actuarial study. The
analysis of the statewide ARC by accounts is performed by the State Controller’s Office (SCO) and a
portion related to billable accounts is allocated to the University. Since the ARC allocated by the
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SCO does not provide a breakdown of the ARC for health and dental benefits separately, the ARC
for the nonbillable accounts, which related only to dental benefits, was estimated based on dental
contributions as a percentage of the total OPEB contributions.

Projections of benefits for financial statement reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit cost between the State and the plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used are consistent with a long-term perspective. In the June 30, 2012 actuarial
valuation, the individual entry age normal cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included
a 4.50% investment rate of return, 4.5% discount rate and an annual State healthcare cost trend rate
of actual increases for 2013 and 9.00% in 2014, initially, reduced to an ultimate rate of 4.50% after
seven years. Both rates included a 3.00% annual inflation assumption. Annual wage inflation is
assumed to be 3.25%. The unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over a 30-year period.

Funding progress information specifically related to the University’s portion of the statewide OPEB
plan is not available. For more details about the actuarial methods and assumptions used by the State
as well as the statewide plans’ finding progress and status, refer to the State of California’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 2013.

(13) Claims Liability for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The University and certain auxiliary organizations have established the CSURMA, a discretely presented
component unit of the University, to centrally manage workers’ compensation, general liability, industrial
and nonindustrial disability, unemployment insurance coverage, and other risk-related programs. The
cliams liability included in the discretely presented component unit column reflects the estimated ultimate
cost of settling claims related to events that have occurred on or before June 30, 2013. The liability
includes estimated amounts that will be required for future payments of claims that have been reported and
claims related to events that have occurred but have not yet been reported. The liability is also reduced by
estimated amounts recoverable from the reinsurer that are related to the liabilities for unpaid claims and
claim adjustment expenses. The liability is estimated through an actuarial calculation using individual case
basis valuations and statistical analyses. Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates,
management believes that the liability is a reasonable estimate at June 30, 2013.

(14) Commitments and Contingencies

The State is a defendant in multiple lawsuits involving University matters not covered by the CSURMA
discussed in note 13. Management of the University is of the opinion that the liabilities, if any, arising from
litigation will not have a material effect on the financial position of the University.

Federal grant programs are subject to review by the grantor agencies, which could result in requests for
reimbursement to grantor agencies for disallowed expenditures. Management believes that it has adhered
to the terms of its grants and that any disallowed expenditures resulting from such reviews would not have
a material effect on the financial position of the University.
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Authorized but unexpended expenditures for construction projects as of June 30, 2013 totaled
$213,819,000. These expenditures will be funded primarily by State appropriations and bond proceeds.

In order to secure access to natural gas and electricity used for normal operation, the University
participates in forward purchase contracts of natural gas and electricity operated by the Department of
General Service (DGS) and Shell Energy North America (Shell), respectively. The University’s obligation
under these special purchase arrangements requires it to purchase an estimated total of $34,916,000 and
$25,743,000 of natural gas and electricity at fixed prices through June 2017 and March 2014, respectively.
The University estimates that the special purchase contracts in place represent approximately 55.50% and
13.77% of its total annual natural gas and electricity expenses, respectively.

(15) Classification of Operating Expenses

The University has elected to report operating expenses by functional classification in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and to provide the natural classification of those expenses
as an additional disclosure. For the year ended June 30, 2013, operating expenses by natural classification
consisted of the following:

Scholarships Supplies Depreciation
and and other and

Salaries Benefits fellowships services amortization Total

Functional classification:
Instruction $ 1,391,670,000 568,922,000 — 172,694,000 — 2,133,286,000
Research 20,782,000 6,669,000 — 15,052,000 — 42,503,000
Puhhcse,vice 31,595,000 10,524,000 — 23,185,000 — 65,304,000
Acadcmiesuppsrt 312,663,000 137,925,000 — 150,616,000 — 601,204,000
Student services 327,966,000 148,605,000 — 176,570,000 — 653,141,000
Institutional support 327,452,000 147,659,000 — 165,308,000 — 640,419,000
Operation and nuintenance

orplant 178,138,000 99,011,000 — 251,627,000 — 528,776,000
Student grants and scholarships — — $26,933,000 — — $26,933,000
Auxiliaiyenterpdseexpenses 66,461,000 49,946,000 — 164,905,000 — 281,312,000
Depreciation and amortization — — — — 435.530,000 435,530,000

Total S 2,656327,000 1,169,261,000 $26,933,000 1,119,957D00 435,530,000 6,208,408,000

(16) Transactions with Related Entities

The University is an agency of the State and receives about 32.7% of total revenues through state
appropriations. State appropriations allocated to the University aggregated approximately $2.1 billion for
the year ended June 30, 2013. State appropriations receivable aggregated $361,943,000 at June 30, 2013.

(17) Subsequent Events

In July 2013, a BAN of approximately $25 million was issued for the Student Health & Counseling Center
at the San Jose campus. In August 2013, BANs of approximately $19.2 million was issued for Student
Housing at the Bakersfield campus. In September 2013, a BAN of $10 million and $24.8 million was
issued for Student Housing Phase II at Northridge and Granada Apartment Acquisition at San Diego
campuses, respectively.
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In August 2013, the University issued its Systemwide Revenue Bonds Series 2013A in the amount of
$308,855,000. Proceeds were used to refund certain maturities of Systemwide Revenue Bonds Series
2005A and 2005C, as well as refund outstanding bond indebtedness issued by an auxiliary organization.

Also in July 2013, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services upgraded the intrinsic rating for the Systemwide
Revenue Bonds to AA- with a stable outlook.
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Summary 

Federal awards received by the California State University (CSU), including student financial aid, are 
subject to both compliance and internal control audit procedures as required by the Office of 
Management and Budget, Circular A-133.  

The CSU A-133 Single Audit Reports were issued ahead of the schedule in October with an 
unmodified (i.e. clean) opinion.  There was one finding (2013-01), which was not a material 
weakness, relating to internal control over the return of Title IV funds at three campuses.  
Corrective action is in progress and a status update will be provided at the Board meeting in 
March. 
 
In summary, the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 was a successful year from an audit 
perspective.  Representatives from KPMG, the Systemwide audit firm, will be present to answer 
questions. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

The Board &fTnjstees
California State University:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the California Slate University, an
agency of the State of California (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise California State University’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 15. 2013. Our report refers to other auditors
who audited 90 of the 92 aggregate discretely presented component units, which statements reflect total
assets constituting 94% and total revenues constituting 94% of the aggregate discretely presented totals.
The reports of the other auditors have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the
amounts included for the 90 aggregate discretely presented component units, are based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Our report also refers to the California State University’s adoption of the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, as of
June 30, 2013, which resulted in the restatement of net position as of the beginning of the year for both the
California State University and the discretely presented component units in the amount of 558,358,000.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered California State
University’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of California State
University’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of California
State University’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identi& all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identi’ any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether California State University’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the California State
University’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering California State University’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 15, 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program; Report on Internal Control
over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by 0MB

Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations

The Board of Trustees
California State University:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the California State University’s (the University), an agency of the State of California,
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB CircularA433 Compliance
Supple,nent that could have a direct and material effect on each of the University’s major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2013. The University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The University’s basic financial statements include the operations of the University’s related discretely
presented component units, which received federal awards and which are not included in the accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2013. Our audit, described below,
did not include the operations of the component units because the component units engaged other auditors
to perform audits in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133.

We did not audit the University’s compliance with the requirements governing maintaining contact with
and billing borrowers and processing deferment and cancellation requests and payments in accordance with
the requirements of the Student Financial Assistance Cluster: Federal Perkins Loan Program as described
in the Compliance Supplement. Those requirements govern functions performed by Educational Computer
System, Inc. (ECSI). Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satis& ourselves as to compliance with
those requirements, the scope of work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an
opinion on compliance with those requirements. ECSI’s compliance with the requirements governing the
functions that it performs for the University for the year ended June 30, 2013, was examined by other
accountants in accordance with the U.S. Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Audits of Federal
Student Financial Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions and Institution Sen’icers. Our report
does not include the results of the other accountants’ examination of ECSI’s compliance with such
requirements.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
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compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item SA-2013-1. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to these matters.

The University’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The University’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the University’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with 0MB Circular A-l33, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University’s internal control over compliance.

Requirements goveming maintaining contact with and billing borrowers and processing deferment and
cancellation requests and payments in the Student Financial Assistance Cluster: Federal Perkins Loan
Program as described in the Compliance Supplement are performed by ECSI. Internal control over
compliance related to such functions for the year ended June 30, 2013, was reported on by other
accountants in accordance with the U.S. Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Audits of Federal
Student Financial Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions and Institution Servicers. Our report
does not include the results of the other accountants’ testing of ECSI’s internal control over compliance
related to such functions.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identi’ all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identii any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item SA-20l3-l, that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

The University’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The University’s response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 0MB
Circular A- 133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by 0MB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely
presented component units of the California State University, an agency of the State of California (the
State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise California State University’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 15, 2013, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our
report refers to other auditors who audited 90 of the 92 aggregate discretely presented component units.
The reports of the other auditors have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the
amounts included for the 90 discretely presented component units, are based solely on the reports of the
other auditors. Our report also refers to the University’s adoption of the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, as of June 30,
2013, which resulted in the restatement of net position as of the beginning of the year for both the
California State University and the discretely presented component units in the amount of $58,358,000.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by 0MB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
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statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

IL?

October 15, 2013
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30, 2013

Catalog of
fed en

domatic
assIstance Fedenl
(CFUA) Pass-thmugh entity disbursements?

Federal grantor/pass-through agency/program title number identifying number expenditures

Student Financial Assistance Cluster
U.S. Department of Education:

Direct programs:
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84007 $ 10,833,799
Federal Work-Study Program 84033 14,513,404
FedcnslPeddnsLoanPmgmm 83038 10,235.523
Federal Pell Grant Program 81063 781706247
Federal Direct Student Loam 84 268 1,568425,952
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher

Education Grants (TEACH Grants) 84379 1,354,929

Total U.S. Department of Eduoarion 2,387,069,854

U.S. Department of Health and Human Saices:
Direct programs:

Nurse Faculty Loan Program 93.264 6,720
NuningStudcntLoanPrognm 93.364 338.610

Total U.S. Department of Health and Swam Services 345,330

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 2.387.415,184

Other program and clusters:
U.S. Department of Agriculture

Child Nutrition Cluster
Passed through California Department of Education:

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 37-7806-8V 13.521

Total Child Nutñtim Cluster 13.521

Passed through California Department of Educasim:
Child and Adult Cam Food Program 10.558 0434&CCSP-12•HU.CS 35,667

04347.CACFP38-
Child and Adult Cam Food Program 10.558 HU-SOIC 752.59$

Subtotal CFDA 10.558 788,265

Total U.S. Department of Agicukme 801,786

U.S. Dcpanment of Commerte:
Passed through Consortium for Ocean Leadership:

Congressionally Identified Awards and Projects 11.469 SA#13-17 13.000

Total U.S. Dqianmmit of Commerce 13,000

U.S. Department of Defense:
Passed through California State Umvasily, Long Beach:

The Language Flagship Grants to Institutions of Higher Education 12.550 S07-3731 l0-SFSUM 6,637
Passed through Institute of International Education Incorporated,

NSEP-U63 1033-
The Language Flagship Grants to Institutions of Higher Education 12.550 SFSU-CHNM9-D08 14.697

NSEP-U63 1063-
The Language Flagship Grants to Institutions of Higher Education 12.550 SFSUCHN-K12-AO 23.749
The Language Flagship Grants to Institutions of Higher Education 12.550 NSEP.U63t073-SFSU-CHN 471.459

Subtotal CFDA 12.550 516,542

Passed through California State University, Office of the Chancellor
ContssionaIly Directed Assistance 12.599 SI249IOIOOSFMAN 25.635
Congressionally Directed Assistance 12.599 SI24QIOIOOSFPER 27,537

Passed through California State University, Long Beach:
Congressionally Directed Assistance 12.599 S07-373110-SFSUP 54.691

Subtotal CFDA 12.599 107,863

Direct program:
Language Grant Program 12.900 86.831

Total U.S. Department of Defense 711,236
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U.S. Department of the Interior:
Direct programs:

Department of Interior (not classified elsewhere) 15.000 $ 136,464
Cultural Resource Management 15.224 10,793
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance 15.608 26,745

Passed through Office of Historic Preservation:
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-in-Aid 15.904 CR953543 13,500
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-in-Aid 15.904 CR954518 17.607

Subtotal CFDA 15.904 31.107

Direct program:
Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act 15,922 49.361

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 254.470

U.S. Department of Labor:
Woddorce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster:

Passed through California Employment Development Department:
WIA Adult Program 17.258 K078t25 40.390

Total Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster 40,390

Passed through Growth Sector:
H-lBiobTrainingGrants 17.268 MOU 37,533

Passed through South Bay Workforce Investment
Consortium, Incorporated;

WIA National Emergency Grants 17.277 None 24.150

Total U.S. Department of Labor 102.073

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through California Department of Transportation;

Department of Transportation (not classified elsewhere) 20.000 04A3889 3,302
Department of Transportation (not classified elsewhere) 20.000 04A3355 43.113
Department of Transportation (not classified elsewhere) 20.000 C C07E0014 89.235

Subtotal CFDA2O.000 135,650

Passed through County of San Diego:
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

Diseretionaiy Safety Grants 20.6t4 532636 9,623
Direct program,

Capital Construction Fund 20.808 848.746

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 994.0 19

National Aeronautics and Spare Administration:
Direct program:

Science 43.001 246,923
Passed through University of California, San Diego:

Science 43.001 NNXtOAT93H 15,222
Passed through Stanford University:

Science 43.001 PY04430-22727-C 697,274
Passed through California Institute of Technology:

Science 43.001 44A-1085525 135.046

Subtotal CFDA 43.001 1.094,465

Direct Program:
Education 43.008 392,698

Passed through Alameda County Office of Education:
Education 43.008 ACOE-X00300 137

Subtotal CFDA 43,008 392,835

Total National Aeronautics mid Space Mministration 1.487.300
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National Endmment for the Ads:
Direct program:

Promotion of the Ads Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 $ 14.853

Total National Endowment for the Ads 14,853

National Endowment for the Humanities:
Passed through California Humanities

Promotion of the Humanities_FederaL/Stale Partnership 45.129 C0512-353 7.587

Total National Endoyment for the Humanities 7,587

Institute olMuseum and library Services:
Direct program:

GrantstoStates 45.310 2.827

Total Instituteof Museum and library Services 2.827

Small Business Mminigration:
Direct program:

Small Business Administration 59,000 7.106

Total Small Business Mministrion 7,106

U.S. Department of Energy:
Direct program:

Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Information
Dissemination. Outreach, Training and Technical

Analysis/Assistance 81, I 17 229,297
Passed through Zimitar, Incorporated:

Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Information
Dissemination, Outreach, Training and Technical

Analysis/Assistance 81.117 DE-EE0005492 11,080
Passed through Sacramento Municipal Utility District:

ARRA — Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability. Research,
Development and Analysis (SMART GRID) 81.122 DE-0E0000214 979.147

Total U.S. Department olEnagy 1.219.524

U.S. Department of Education, excluding Student Financial Assistanec
Cluster:

Title I, Pad A Cluster
Passed through California Department of Education:

Title! Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 CNI 10387 15.045

Total Title!, Pan A Cluster 15.045

TRIO Cluster
Direct program:

TRIO_Student Support Services 84.042 1,532.550
Passed through The California State University. Chico

Research Foundation:
TRIO_Student Support Services 84.042 P042A100854-12 30,989

Passed through San Diego State University Research Foundation:
TRIO_Student Support Services 84.042 40085576 20.000

Subtotal CFDA 84.042 1.583.539

Direct programs:
TRIO_Talent Search Program 84.044 458,462
TRIO_Upward Bound Program 84.047 1,540,560
TRIO_McNair Post-Baccalaureate Achievement Program 84.217 296,317

Passed through Regents of the University of California:
TRIO_McNair Post-Baccalaureate Achievement Program 84,217 EIO3GPAO97 17,248

Subtotal CFDA 84.2 17 313,565

Total TRIO Cluster 3.896.126
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Teacher Quality Partnership Grants Cluster:
Passed through California State University Bakersfield Auxiliary

for Sponsored Programs Administration
Teacher Quality Partnership Grants 84.336 SA GRAI677 $ 33,394

Passed through The California State Unñcrsitv, Chico
Research Foundation:

TexherQuality PannashipGnnls 84336 12.012 20,126
Ther Quality Partnership Grants 84.336 SUB 12.059 6.5V

Subtotat CFDA 84.336 60,097

Total Teacher Quality Partnership Grants Cluster 60,097

Passed through California Dcpanmcnt of Education:
Migrant Education — Stale Grant Program 84011 CNI 10387 16.652

Direct programs
International Research and Studies 84.017 120,496
Higher Education Institutional Aid 84.031 4.377.599
Higher Education Institutional Aid —Title V Computer Engineering 84.031 687.100
Higher Education Institutional Aid — Engineering Sciences 84.031 1,911,048

Passed through Bakersfield College:
Higher Education Institutional Aid — Stem and Articulation Program 84.031 GRA 1994 307,516

Passed through California State University Fullerton
Auxiliary Services Corporation:

HigherEducation Institutional Aid 84.031 S-5261-CSU 5,817
Passed through Ventura County Community College District:

Higher Education Institutional Aid 84,031 P0083733 97,429
Passed through San Mateo County Community College District:

Higher Education Institutional Aid 84.031 PO3ICI 10159 109.000

Subtotal CFDA 84.031 7,495.509

Direct programs:
TRIO Staff Training Program 84.103 281,121
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondazy Education 84.116 297098

Passed through LaGuardia Community College:
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondaty Education 84. t 16 46355-M 5.030

Subtotal CFDA 84.116 302,128

Direct prognm:
Minority Science and Engineering Improvement — Engineering

Calculus and Outreach 84.120 220590
Passed through California Department of Rehabilitation:

Rehabilitation Services — Vocational Rehabilitation
Grants to States 84.126 27421 159,392

Direct programs:
Rehabilitation Long-Term Training 84.129 264157
National Institute on Disability and Rehabilitation Research 84.133 260.152
Javits Fellowships 84.170 50.712
English Language Acquisition National Professional

Development Program 84.195 197,563
Passed through West Contra Costa County Unified School District:

Fund forthe Improvement of Education 84.215 C1230156 19,713
Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.2t5 C1330080 79,817

Passed through Mendocina County Office of Edtsfion:
TAIl MEN DO

Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.215 0901 I2YRJ 84.211

Subtotal CFDA 84.215 183.741

Passed through San Joaquin County Office of Education:
Educalion Research, Development and Dissemination 84.305 MOU-EUSD/RISE 16,709

Direct program:
Special Education — Personnel Development to Improve

Services and Results for Children with Disabilities 84.325 859,786
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Passed through Salus Unittrsity
Special Education — Personnel Development to Improve

Services and Results for Children with Disabilities 84.325 83401 $ 29,626
Passed through California State University, Los Angeles

Auxiliary Services, Incorporated:
Special Education — Personnel Development to Improve

Services and Results for (Th ildmn with Disabilities 84.325 SFSU-Hamian 230545 56207

Subtotal CWA 84325 945,619

Dimes program:
Special Education —Technical Assistance and

Dissemination to Improve Senices and Results for
Children with Disabilities 84.326 556,976

Passed through Stanislatis County office of Educalien:
Advanced Placement Program (Placement Test Fee,

Incentive Program Grants) 84.330 P0201039 4,264
Advanced Placement Program (Placanait Test Fee,

Incentive Program Grants) 84330 P0201376 4.353
Advanced Placement Program (Placement Test Fee,

Incentive Program Grants) 84.330 P0302715 24.000

Subtctal CFDA 84.330 32.6 17

Direct program:
Demonstration Projects to Support Postsecondary Faculty.

Stair, and Administrations in Educating Students
with Disabilities 81.333 38,468

Passed through San Francisco Unified School District:
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for

Undergraduate Programs 84.334 SFUSD FY 2011-2012 2.829
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for

Undergraduate Programs 84.334 SFSU FY 2012-2013 80,704

Subtotal CFDA 84.334 83,533

Direet program:
Child Care Access Means Parents in School 84,335 310,938

Passed through California State University Deanin uez Hills
Foundation.

TmnsitiontoTcaching 84.350 5630 30,122
Direct program.

English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 142,614
Passed through California Department of Education:

English Language Acquisition State Grants 84365 CNI 10387 133,215
Passed through University of California. Santa Cnn:

English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 50183643 70,260

Subtotal CFDA 84.365 346.089

Passed through Belletise School District:
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 SSUIOIAI-POPI2MO27O 18.605
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84366 SSU-lOl A2 82,068

Subtotal CFDA 84.366 100,673

Passed through The Regents of the UnhtrsityofCalifomia,
Los Angeles:

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 1010 G HC099 42,782
Passed through The Regents of the University of Califomia:

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84367 NCLB9CMP-SONOMA 28,843
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84,367 NCLB9CISP-SONOMA 31,766
Improving TeacherQuality State Grants 84.367 1010 G PBI 14 93,000
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 10100 PBIO8 51,703
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84,367 NCLB9-CMP-STANISLAUS 26,450
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 NCLB9-CWP-TURLOCK 34.535

II (Continued)



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Schedule of Expendituns of Federal Awards

Ycarenddiunej0, 2013

Catalog of
feden I

domestic
assistance Falerol
(CFDA) Pass-thrnugh entity disbursements)

Federal grantor/pass-through agency/program title number identifybta number expenditures

Passed through California Postserondaiy Education Commission:
lmpmvingTeadtrQualilyStatGranls 84367 flQ-lI-R00 $ 249,797

Passed throut h National Writing Project:
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84367 92-CA-tO SEED 20(2 35,745

Subtotal CFDA 84367 594.621

Total U.S. Department of Education, excluding Student
Financial Assistance Cluster 16,579.846

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Child Cam and Development Fund Cluster

Passed through California Department of Education:
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 CSPP-2099 15,790
Child Cam and Development Block Grant 93.575 CCTR-2048 43,494

Subtotal CFDA 93.575 59.284

Passed through California Department of Education:
Child Cam Mandatory and Matching Funds

of the Child Cam and Development Fund 93,596 CSPP-2099 28,636
Child Cam Mandatoty and Matching Funds

of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 CCTR-2048 79.127

Subtotal CFDA 93.596 107.763

Total Child Care and Development Fund Chaster 167,047

Passed through Unhtrsity of California, San Francisco:
Chronic Diseases; Research, Control, and Prevention 93.068 CHECK tt CXCCJ46S 1,507

Direct programs:
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 115,085
Mental Health National Research Service Awards

forResesrchTraining 93.282 214,069
Passed thro4mil Santa Rosa Community Health Center

Nurse Education, Practice Quality and Retention Grants 93.359 AGMT 101 A?vff I 4.320
Nurse Education, Practice Quality and Retention Grants 93.359 101 19.373

Subtotal CFDA 93.359 23.693

Direct programs:
National Center for Research Resources 93.389 l94.579
Head Start (San Francisco State University) 93,600 12,818,941

Passed through Northcoast Children’s Services:
Head Stan (Humboldt State University) 93.600 09CH0054 34,205

Subtotal CFDA 93.600 12.853.146

Passed through The Regents of the Unhersity of California, Berkeley:
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 40878 1,110,081
Foster Cam Title IV-E 93.658 7950 690,508

Passed through The Regents of the University of California:
Foster Cam Title IV-E 93.658 7808 1.153.238

Subtotal CFDA 93.658 2.953,827

Direct program:
ARRA — Trans — National Institute of Health

Recuven Act Research Support 93.701
Passed through University of California, Davis.

ARRA — State Grants to Promote Health Infonnation Technology 93.719 201225030.09 3.771
Passed through County of San Diego:

ARRA — Prevention and Wellness — Communities Pulling
PmventiontoWorkFundingOpportunitiesAnnouocemcnt 93.724 532636 59.363

Passed through Stanford University:
Health Careen Opportunity Program 93.822 26676210-49878-A 242,440
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Direct program:
BiomedicalResearthandReseaahTmining 93.859 $ 1,958,772

Passed through American Society of Cell Biology:
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93,859 PAR-OX-I 18 5,947

Passed through University of California. San Francisco:
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 48625C 15.497

Subtotal CFDA93.659 1.980.216

Direct program:
Specially Selected Health Projects 93.888 229,648

Passed through The Regents of the University of California,
Los Angeles:

Geriatric Education Centers 93.969 1558 G NA589 8.982

Total U.S. Department of Ilcalth and Human Services 19.050.000

Corporation for National and Community Service:
Direct programs:

Learn and Serve America Higher Education 94,005 251.520
AmeriCops 94,006 61,105

Passed through Western Washington University:
AmedCorps 94.006 54570-A20l1 1,680

Passed through Jumpstad for Young Children:
AmeriCorps 94,006 100200 76,544

Subtotal CFDA 94.006 139.329

Total Corporation for National and Community Service 390.849

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through California Emergency Management Agency:

Non-Profit Security Program 97,008 FY 2010 249,173
DisasterOrants — Public Assistance (Presidentially FEMA-191 I-DR-CA,

Declared Disasters) 97.036 Cal EMA ID: 000-92269 66,479
Passed through Marine Exchange of the San Francisco Bay Area

Region:
Pod Security Grant Program 97,056 2009-PU-T9-K032 740.546

Passed through California Emergency Management Agency:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97,067 2009-SST9-0019 59,803
Homeland Security Grant Program 97,067 2010-0085 529.973
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 000-920 10 4,823
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 FY 2009 7.294
HomelandSecurityGrnntProgram 97.067 FY2OIO 27,751

Passed through Trastees of the California State University:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97,067 X0068212-CI000 23,767
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 X0029209-P0000 39,883
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 X0068212-S0000 25,332

Passed through County of San Diego:
2010 Operation

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 Stonegaxden Grant 57,020
Passed through California State University, Office of the Chancellor:

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 X0068112-FR000 35,568
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 MOU X00682t2-SF000 24,501
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 MOU X0020209-SF000 724
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 X0020209-SM000 13,850
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 X0068212-ST000 22.830

Subtotal CFDA 97,067 873.049

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 1.929.247
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Agency for International Development:
Passed through World Institute on Disability:

United States Agency for International Development
Foreign Assistance for Programs Overseas 98.001 SPANS-004 $ 28,214

Passed through World Learning:
United States Agency for International Development

Foreign Assistance for Programs Overseas 98.001 SPANSO24 216,369

Total Agency for International Development 244.583

Research and Development Cluster:
U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Passed through California Department of Education:
Agricultural Research_Basic and Applied Research 10.001 37-7806-8V 17,744

Direct program:
Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 65.806

Passed through The Regents of the University of California:
Agriculture and Food Research Initiative 10.310 8103 42,226

Passed through University of California, Santa Barbara:
Fomstiy Research 10,652 KK1339 6,174

Direct program:
National Fish and Wildlife Foundation 10,683 5.054

Passed through The California State University, Chico
Research Foundation:

Transit in Parks Program 10.000 Sub-12-033 6.801

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 143.805

U.S. Department of Commerce:
Passed through Sonoma State University:

Integrated OceanObserving System 11.012 SA 110467 288,158
Passed through Monterey Bay Aquarium Research Institute:

Integrated Ocean Observing System 11.012 PO# 1111289-Al 578,077

Subtotal CFDA 11.012 866,235

Passed through Unhersity of California, San Diego:
Sea Grant Support 11.417 ItCC 06P0 10,000

Passed through University of New Hampshire:
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards 11.419 t238 273,485

Direct programs:
Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves 11.420 635,235
Marine Sanctuaty Program 11.429 3.762

Passed through The Nature Conservancy:
HabitatConservation 11.463 GMT-5F5UM91507 380

Direct program:
Center for Sponsored Coastal Ocean Research

Coastal Ocean Program 11,478 106.393

Total U.S. Department of Commerce 1.895.490

U.S. Department of Defense:
Direct programs:

Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 412,490
ARRA — Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in

Science and Engineering 12.630 34,248
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 644,584

Passed through University of Missouri:
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 C00030628-l 29.522

Subtotal CFDA 12.800 674,106

Total U.S. Department of Defense 1.120.844
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US, Department of the Interior:
Direct programs:

Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource Management 15.23 I $ 5,591
Central Valley Project Improvement Act, Title )OOUV 15.512 1,337.536
ARRA — Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act 15.517 97,097
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance 15.608 23,933
Partners for Fish and Wildlife 15631 190.312

Passed thrmigh California Department of Fish and Game:
State Wildlife Grants 15634 P1140013 68,293

Direct pmgams:
Challenge Cmi Sham 15642 4,271
Research Grants (Generic) 15650 28,505
Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program 15807 47,619
U.S. Geological Sun’ev — Research and Data Collection 15.808 95,261
National Cooperative Geologic Mapping Program 15810 12,563

Passed Ihrough California Office of Histaric Preservation:
Historic Presenatimi Fund Grants-tn-Md 15.903 CR954519 9,900

Direct programs:
RIvets, Trails and Conservation Assistance 15.921 3,789
Natural Resoutce Steaasdship 15.944 3.361

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 1.927,131

U.S. DqanmoitofLabor
Passed through County of San Mateo Workfome Development

Incentive Grants — Workforce Investment Act Section 503 17.267 73200-l2-D007 15.491

Total U.S. Department of Labor 15.491

U.S. Department of Transpatatir
Passed through Georgia Institute of Technologr:

Aviation Research Grants 20.108 RA932-Sl 1.661

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,661

National Aeronautics and Spare Administration:
Direct program:

Science 43.001 400,429
Passed through United Negro College Fund Special

Programs Corporation:
Science 43001 NSTI-MI NNAO6CBI4H 8,334

Passed through San Matea County Conununit College District:
Science 43.901 NNXIOAU7SG 35,37!

Suhtcal CFDA43.OOI 444,134

Passed through Georgia lnstitutcofTechnolo
Exploration 43.003 RD224-Gl 125.372

Total National Aeronautics and Spare Mministralion 569,506

National Science Foundation:
Direct programs:

Engineenng Grants 47.041 280,832
Malhematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 1.794.752

Passed through The Mathematical Association of America:
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 MOU-MAA ‘ 24,972

Subtotal CFDA 47.049 1.819.724

Direct programs:
Geoscienees 47,050 1,241,740
Computer and Information Science and Engineering 47,070 183,727
Biological Sciences 47.074 1,489,132
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Passed through Los Angeles County Museum’

National Science Foundation:
Biological Sciences 47,074 DEB-l025922 $ 36,848

Passed through Pacific Ecoinfonnatics and Computational Ecology Lab:
Biological Sciences 47.074 SWISSTSFSUI 10,043

Passed through University of California, Santa Barbara:
Biological Sciences 47.074 KK8 149 13,854

Passed through Universily of California, Berkeley:
Biological Sciences 47.074 7925 15.979

Subtotal CFDA 47.074 1.565,856

Direct programs:
Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences 47.075 159,495
Education and Human Resources 47.076 1896,623

Passed through Humboldt State University
Sponsored Ikograms Foundation:

Education and Human Resources 47.076 P0 000973065 l-HMSPF 83,341
Passed through University Enterprises, Incorporated

California Stale University, Sacramento:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 HRD-0802628 25.316

Passed through Stanford Research Institute International:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 43-000202 36,845

Passed through Unittrsity Enterprises, Incorporated:
California State University, Sacramento:

Education and Human Resources — Alliance for
Minority Partnerships 47.076 HRD-0802628 56,260

Educalion and Human Resources 47.076 520541A 28,261
Education and Human Resources 47.076 MOU 521761 2,000
Education and Human Resources 47.076 08026285l5441A515445 36.653

Passed through California State University, East Bay
Foundation, Inc.:

Education and Human Resources 47.076 l0000ll5-134 36,873
Passed through University Enterprises Corporation at

California State University, San Bernardino:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 SA UT 10184 16,124

Passed through The Regents of the Universily of California:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 DUE-063 1188 40.000
Education and Human Resources 47.076 12-MESA-631 18-85483 7,375

Passed through California State University, Sacramento:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 HR0M802628-5 15401 500
Education and Human Resources 47.076 521741 2,000
Education and Human Resources 47.076 515405 56,828

Passed through University of California, Berkeley:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 00006229 8,829

Passed through University of California, Office of the President:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 I2MESA63I 18811473 7,375
Education and Human Resources 47.076 I2MESA63I 18811445 10,000

Passed through Stanford Research Instilute International:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 43000002 26,544

Passed through Missouri State University:
Education and Human Resources 47,076 11052-002 40,986

Passed through Trostees of the California State University:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 HRD-0802628-515455 49,906
Education and Human Resources 47.076 MOU-0802628-52177l 2,000

Passed through University of California, Santa Crux:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 50182471 38,432

Subtotal CFDA 47,076 2,509,071

Direct program:
Polar Programs 47,078 171,315

Passed through University of Nevada, Las Vegas:
International Science and Engineering 47.079 #11-7070-F 46,028
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Federal grantor/pass-through agency/program title number Idenlifying number expenditures

Direct program:
ARRA— Trans — NSF Recovery Act Research Support 47.082 $ 757,515

Passed through Pomona College:
AST-09603

Trans — NSF Recovery Act Research Support 47.082 AGREEMENT I 33.834

Sublotal CFDA47.082 791,349

Total National Science Foundation 8,769,137

Environmental Protection Agency:
Passed through California Coastal Conservancy:

Congressionally Mandaled Projects 66.202 10-030 l08.613

Total Environmental Protection Agency 108,613

U.S. Department of Energy:
Direct programs:

Department of Energy (not classified elsewhere) 81.000 58,852
Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81.049 113,018

Passed through Tulane University:
Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81,049 TUL-560-07/08 54

Subtotal CFDA 81.049 ‘ 113,072

Passed through The Regents of the Unkersilyof California,
Berkeley:

Renewable Energy Research and Development 8 1.087 Subawani No. 000007104 49.642

Total U.S. Department of Energy 221,566

U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through California Postsecondary Education Commission:

Improving Teacher Quality Slate Grants 84.367 flQ-l 1-805 188,998
Passed through The Regents of the University of California:

Improving TeacherQuality Slate Grunts 84.367 E3 I9GPAO84/GQAO83 48,112

Subtotal CFDA84.367 237.110

Total U.S. Department of Education 237.1 lO

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: I

Passed through CommonHealth Action:
Chronic Diseases: Research, Control, and Prevention 93.068 2010-1010 59,556

Direct program:
Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 93.173 50,804

Passed through University of California, San Francisco:
Research on Healthcam Costs, Quality and Outcomes 93.226 65295C 16,233

Direct program:
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 1,686,660

Passed through Arizona Slate University:
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 10-262 48,406

Passed through University of California, San Francisco:
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 61 l7SC Al 56,217

Subtotal CFDA 93.242 1.791.283

Passed through University of California, Berkeley:
Alcohol Research Programs 93.273 7430 96,798

Passed through Research Triangle Institute International:
Drug Abuse and Addiction Research Programs 93.279 Sub Grant #2-312-0212248 70,963

Direct program:
Mental Health Research Career/Scientist Development Awards 93.281 133,610

Passed through Patient Center Outcomes Research Institute:
Discovery and Applied Research for Technological

Innovations to Improve Human Health 93.286 Contract R120190 29,084
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Catalog of
federal

domestic
assistance Federal
(CFDA) Pass-through entity disbursements?

Federal gnntoilpass-through agenrg/pmannl title number Weatifylna number expenditures

Direct program:
Minority Health and Health Disparities Research 93.307 $ 803,821

Passed through University of California, San Francisco:
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 93.393 5647SC 99,174

Direct program:
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research 93.394 72,028

Passed through University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill:
Head Stan (Channel Islands) 93.600 5-33235 7,336

Passed through Samuel Mann Univemity:
ARRA — Trans — NIH Recoveaw Act Research Support 93.701 Contract 2010-2013 74,958

Passed through Stanford University:
ARRA — Trans — NIH Recovery Act Research Support 93.701 24024890-12656-A 60,759

Passed through University of California, San Francisco:
ARRA — Trans — NtN Recovery Act Research Support 93.70 I 7109SC 3.270

Subtotal CFDA93.701 138.987

Passed ihrwg)i University of California, San Diego:
ARRA — Recovery Act — Comparative ElTectiveness Research —

Agency for Heah&am Research and Qinhtv 93.715 10312723 256.655
Direct program.

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 93,837 190.221
Passed through Medical College of Georgia:

CardiovasetDiseases Research 93.837 22411-2 2,9t
Passed through The Regents of the University of California:

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 93.837 IROIHLO9I767OIAISSU 75.136

Subtotal CFDA 93.837 268.323

Direct program:
Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research 93.855 37,863

Passed through The Regents of the Univcrsiw of California:
Allergy. Immunology and Transplantation Research 93.855 oI2SSC 66,636

Subtotal CFDA 93.855 104,499

Direct program:
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 1,260,037

Passed through University of California, San Francisco:
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 7284SC 76.480

Passed through Touro University:
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 00002SC 5,667

Passed through Stanford University:
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 26977560-30501-K 32.605

Subtotal CWA93.859 1374.789

Direct program:
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research 93.865 1,049,679

Passed through University of California, Los Angeles.
AgingRcseamh 93.866 19200PA394 11,309

Direct prograni
Specially Selected Health Projects 93.888 11.423

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 6.446,334

Total Research and Development Cluster 21.456,688

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S 2,452,682.178

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards and independent auditors’ report on compliance for each major program;
report on internal control over compliance: and report on schedule of expenditures of federal awards required by 0MB Circular A-I 33.
Aidus ofStates. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30, 2013

(1) General

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) presents the activity of all
federal award programs of the California State University (the University). The University generally does
not consider itself a subrecipient of federal finds when those funds are received from individual campus
foundations. Rather, the University considers amounts received from foundations as payments for services
rendered, even though such amounts may have originated from federal agencies. Accordingly, these
amounts are not reflected in the accompanying Schedule.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants and contracts entered into directly between
the University and agencies and departments of the federal government and pass-through agencies. The
awards are classified into major program categories in accordance with the provisions of Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-l33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

(2) Basis of Accounting

The information in the accompanying Schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and is also
presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this Schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

(3) Loan Programs

Total loans outstanding under the Federal Perkins Loan Program and the Nursing Student Loan Program
were $89,600,848 and $1,879,327, respectively, at June 30, 2013. The amounts included in the
accompanying Schedule consist of loans advanced to students and the administrative cost allowance for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

(4) Administrative Cost Allowances

Administrative cost allowances included in the accompanying Schedule are summarized as follows:

Federal Perkins Loan Program $ 1,343,066
Federal Pell Grant Program 653,560
Federal Supplemental Educational

Opportunity Grant Program 72,558
Federal Work-Study Program 282,543

$ 2,351,727
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30. 2013

(5) Amounts Provided to Subrecipients

Included in the Schedule are the following amounts passed through to subrecipients:

Program title CFDA No. Amount

Science 43.001 $ 88,877
Education 43.008 15,694
Higher Education Institutional Aid 84.031 308,246
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 84.116 29,591
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 258,505
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 26,921
Head Start 93.600 5,916,537
ARRA — Prevention and Weilness — Communities Putting

Prevention to Work Funding Opportunities Announcement 93.724 59,941
Learn and Serve America Higher Education 94.005 103,591
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 470,548
United States Agency for International Development

Foreign Assistance for Programs Overseas 98.001 95,712

Research and Development Cluster:
Integrated Ocean Observing System 11.012 544,964
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards 11.419 105,724
Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 96,390
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 228,305
Central Valley Project Improvement Act, Title )COUV 15.512 176,532
Geosciences 47.050 103,959
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 64.367 159,039
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 460,520
ARRA — Recovery Act Comparative Effectiveness

Research—ANRQ 93.715 1,500
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research 93.865 215,786

Total Research and Development Cluster 2,092,719

$ 9,466,882
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2013

(1) Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued on financial statements: Unmodified opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness identified? Yes X No

• Significant deficiencies in internal control
were disclosed by the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

______

Yes X No

Noncompliance material to the financial
statements noted Yes X No

Federal A wards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified

______

Yes X No

• Significant deficiencies in internal control over
major programs X Yes

______

No

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs:

We have issued an unmodified opinion on compliance related to the major programs, other than the
compliance requirements governing maintaining contact with and billing the borrowers and processing
deferment and cancellation requests and payments in the Student Financial Assistance Cluster: Federal
Perkins Loan Program, which are processed by Educational Computer System Inc., upon which we issue
no opinion,

Any Audit Findings that are Required to be
Reported in Accordance with Section 510(a)
of 0MB Circular A-133? X Yes

_____

No
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CALifORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2013

IdentWeation ofMajor Programs

CFDA number(s) Name of federal program or cluster

84.007, 84.033, 84.038, 84.063, 84.268, 84.379, 93.364, Student Financial Assistance Cluster
and 93.264

10.001, 10.223, 10.310, 10.652, 10.683, 10.000, Research and Development Cluster
11.012, 11.417, 11.419, 11.420, 11.429, 11.463, 11.478,
12.300, 12.630, 12.800, 15.231, 15.512, 15.517,
15.608, 15.631, 15.634, 15.642, 15.650, 15.807, 15.808,
15.810, 15.904, 15.921, 15.944, 17.267, 20.108,43.001,
43.003,47.041,47.049,47.050,47.070,47.074,47.075,
47.076,47.078,47.079,47.082,66.202,81.000, 81.049,
81.087, 84.367, 93.068, 93.173, 93.226, 93.242, 93.273,
93.279, 93.281, 93.286, 93.307, 93.393, 93.394, 93.600,
93.701, 93.715, 93.837, 93.855, 93.859, 93.865,
93.866 and 93.888

84.042, 84.044, 84.047 and 84.2 17 TRIO Cluster

93.600 Head Start

81.122 ARRA Electricity Delivery and Energy
Reliability, Research, Development
and Analysis

Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between
Type A and Type B programs: S 1,958,000

Auditee Qualified as Low-Risk Auditee?

______

Yes x No

The University is not considered a low-risk auditee, solely due to administrative considerations that
previously resulted in late filings with the Federal Data Clearinghouse.

(2) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

None noted.

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards

2013-01

Campus: California State Universities: Sonoma, Channel Islands and San Diego

Cluster name/program Student Financial Assistance Cluster

CFDA number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.038, 84.063, 84.268, 84.379, 93.364 and 93.264

FederalAgency: U.S. Department of Education
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2013

Passed through entity: Not applicable

Awardyear: July 1,2012 through June 30, 2013

Compliance Requirement Special Tests and Provisions — Return of Title IV Funds

Criteria

Title 34 Education. Chapter VI — Office of Posisecondary Education, Department of Education. Part 668
Student Assistance General Provisions. Subpart B Standards for Participation in Title IV, HEA Programs.
Sec. 668.22 Treatment of Title N Funds when a student withdraws. (e) Calculation of the amount of
title IV assistance earned by the student —(1) General. The amount of title IV grant or loan assistance that
is earned by the student is calculated by — (i) Determining the percentage of title N grant or loan assistance
that has been earned by the student, as described in paragraph (e)(2) of this section; and (ii) Applying this
percentage to the total amount of title N grant or loan assistance that was disbursed (and that could have
been disbursed, as defined in paragraph (fl(l) of this section) to the student, or on the student’s behalf, for
the payment period or period of enrollment as of the student’s withdrawal date. 0) Timeframe for the
return of title IV funds. (1) An institution must return the amount of title IV funds for which it is
responsible under paragraph (g) of this section as soon as possible but no later than 45 days after the date
of the institution’s determination that the student withdrew as defined in paragraph (fl(3) of this section.
The timeframe for returning funds is further described in § 668.173(b).

Condition Found and Context

For performance of procedures over the California State University’s (the University), cornpliance with the
Return of Tide IV Funds criteria, we performed testwork at 8 campuses using a sample size of 200. We
noted the following as a result of our testwork:

• The Sonoma campus did not have effective controls in place to ensure the accuracy of the
computation of Return of Tide N Funds. There were 8 errors in the total population of 61 students
requiring refund calculations. We identified 5 of 61 students where the funds were returned to the
student instead of the federal program. These errors resulted in an underpayment of $11,830 to the
affected federal programs. Further, for 2 of 61 students, the refunds were incorrectly calculated
resulting in an overpayment of $85 to the affected federal programs. The last effor pertained to one
student, in which the grant amount was not returned, resulting in an underpayment of $508 to the
affected federal programs. Total refunds processed at the Sonoma campus for the year ended
June 30, 2013 totaled $137,014.

• At the San Diego campus, we noted a late Return of Title IV Funds in 3 of 25 items sampled.

• The Channel Islands campus did not have documented controls in place over the completeness of
students that withdrew and were subject to a Return of Title IV Funds. We did not identi’ any items
of noncompliance as a result of our procedures.

Cause and Effect

With respect to the finding at the Sonoma campus, we noted ineffective management controls over the
review of the refund process. As a result, errors were not identified by campus personnel.
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2013

With respect to the finding at the San Diego campus, due to a lack of a timely review over refunds, three
samples at the San Diego campus were returned after the deadline required by the federal programs.

Questioned Costs

Known amount of $12,253, net, relating to the under return of funds to Tide IV programs at the Sonoma
campus.

Recommendation

We recommend that effective internal control procedures be implemented to ensure that the return of hinds
is processed accurately in addition to being returned in a timely manner. Additionally, proper
documentation needs to be retained in order to demonstrate the existence of control procedures.

Views ofResponsible Officials

The University concurs with the recommendation. Campuses are implementing additional controls to
ensure the accuracy of refund/return calculations, the timely review and return of funds, and maintaining
appropriate documentation as applicable to their specific campus finding(s).
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COMMITTEE ON AUDIT 

 
National Collegiate Athletic Association Agreed-Upon Procedures 

 
Presentation by 
 
Sally Roush 
Interim Vice Chancellor 
Business and Finance 
 
George Ashkar 
Assistant Vice Chancellor/Controller 
Financial Services 
 
Summary 

Colleges and universities with intercollegiate athletic programs as members of the National 
Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) are subject to the NCAA’s financial agreed-upon 
procedures reporting requirements.  Division I schools are subject to agreed-upon verification 
procedures of financial data related to athletic programs annually and required to submit the financial 
data to NCAA annually.  Division II schools are subject to agreed-upon verification procedures of 
financial data related to athletic programs at least once every three years, but should submit the 
financial data to NCAA annually. 

The preliminary review of the reports from the campuses for fiscal years prior to 2012-2013 
indicated that not all campuses may be in compliance. The Chancellor’s Office sent a memo to 
campus presidents in November 2013 reminding them of the responsibility to ensure continuous 
compliance with the NCAA requirements.  Since the NCAA agreed-upon procedures reports and 
data submission are due on January 15, we have not received the reports for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2013 at the time of drafting the agenda.  We will report to the Board in March 
regarding the status of NCAA compliance by campus, based on the latest reports from the 
campuses. 
 



CORRECTED 
AGENDA 

 
COMMITTEE ON ORGANIZATION AND RULES 

 
Meeting: 9:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2014 
  Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
 

J. Lawrence Norton, Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg, Vice Chair 
Debra S. Farar 
Margaret Fortune 
Lupe C. Garcia 
Hugo N. Morales 

 
 

Consent Items 
Approval of Minutes of May 21, 2013 

 
Discussion Items 

1. Rules Governing the Board of Trustees, Information 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING OF  
COMMITTEE ON ORGANIZATION AND RULES 

Trustees of The California State University 
Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
May 21, 2013 

  
Members Present  
Glen O. Toney, Chair  
Roberta Achtenberg, Vice Chair  
Douglas Faigin  
Debra S. Farar  
Margaret Fortune  
Hugo N. Morales  
 
Chair Toney called the meeting to order.  
  
Approval of the Minutes  
  
The minutes of the March 19, 2013 meeting were approved as submitted.  
  
Discussion Item  
  
Chair Toney introduced the action item on the agenda, Schedule of Meetings for 2014.  He 
commented that every effort was made to avoid conflicts with the meetings of the UC Board of 
Regents.  The trustees approved the resolution (RCOC 05-13-01) and adopted the following 
dates for 2014: 
  

January 28-29, 2014 Tuesday – Wednesday Headquarters  
March 25-26, 2014 Tuesday – Wednesday Headquarters  
May 20-21, 2014 Tuesday – Wednesday Headquarters  
July 22, 2014 Tuesday Headquarters  
September 9-10, 2014 Tuesday – Wednesday Headquarters  
November 12-13, 2014 Wednesday – Thursday Headquarters  

  
Chair Toney adjourned the meeting. 



 Corrected 
Information Item 

 Agenda Item 1 
January 28-29, 2014 

Page 1 of 15 
 

 

COMMITTEE ON ORGANIZATION AND RULES 
 
Rules Governing the Board of Trustees 
 
Presentation By 
 
Framroze Virjee 
Executive Vice Chancellor and General Counsel 
 

Summary 

During the January meeting, changes are being proposed to the Audit Committee Charter.  These 
proposed changes are designed to keep the charter current and aligned with best practices, and to 
ensure the internal audit office is organizationally independent and able to carry out internal audit 
responsibilities in an unbiased manner.  If these changes are approved by the Board, corresponding 
changes are needed to the Rules Governing the Board of Trustees so they are consistent with the 
Audit Committee Charter and clarify the responsibilities of the Committee on Audit and the 
relationship between the University Auditor and the Board. 

The changes to Section 4 of Part I clarify that the University Auditor is appointed and evaluated by 
the Board upon recommendation by the Committee on Audit with input from the Chancellor.  The 
remaining changes to Section 1(d) of Part IV pertaining to the responsibilities of the Committee on 
Audit are designed to reflect best practices and align with the changes to the Audit Committee 
Charter. 

The Rules may be amended, but a draft of the proposed amendment must be considered at a regular 
Board meeting prior to the meeting at which action is taken.  Therefore this item is being presented 
as an information item, and will be noticed as an action item at the March 2014 Board meeting. 
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Attachment A 

 
RULES GOVERNING THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY 
 

I. GOVERNANCE 
 

§  1. Conduct of Business 
 

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the efficient and effective governance of 
the California State University in accord with Education Code section 66600. The Board 
of Trustees acts only at meetings that are noticed under these Rules. Matters of policy 
and other items on the agenda are approved by a vote of the majority of members in 
attendance and voting. 

 
§  2. Regulations 

 
The Board of Trustees adopts, amends, or repeals regulations, consistent with the 

laws of the State of California, to govern the California State University, pursuant to the 
process set out in Education Code 89030.1, which includes a formal public hearing. 
Trustee regulations are incorporated into Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
§  3. Delegation of Authority 

 
The Board of Trustees adopts, amends, or repeals Standing Orders that delegate 

authority within the California State University. Notice and a draft of a proposed Standing 
Order is required at the last regular meeting prior to the meeting at which action is taken.   
This advance notice requirement may be waived upon a majority vote for matters 
that are not controversial and require no further discussion. 

 
§  4. Appointment of Chancellor, Vice Chancellors, General Counsel and University 
Auditor 

 
The Board of Trustees selects, appoints and evaluates the Chancellor of the 

California State University, who serves at its pleasure. The Chancellor is the chief 
executive officer of the California State University, and has such authority as may be 
assigned to him or her by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees, in partnership 
with the Chancellor, selects, appoints, and evaluates the Presidents of the campuses of the 
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California State University. The Presidents report to the Chancellor. The Board of 
Trustees, upon recommendation by the Chancellor, appoints and evaluates the Vice 
Chancellors and the, General Counsel.  The Board of Trustees, upon recommendation by 
the Committee on Audit and input from the Chancellor, appoints and evaluates the 
University Auditor. and University Auditor. The Vice Chancellors report to the 
Chancellor. The General Counsel and University Auditor report jointly to the Chancellor 
and the Board. 

 
§  5. Individual Trustees 

 
No individual Trustee has the power to act on behalf of the Board, except when 

specifically authorized. 
 

No Trustee, except the Chancellor and the Faculty Trustee, receives any salary for 
his or her service, except that appointed Trustees receive $100.00 for each day that they 
are engaged in official business of the California State University, and all Trustees 
receive reimbursement for expenses incurred in accord with the California State 
University travel expense reimbursement policy. Trustees are engaged in official business 
when they perform any function which is required by, or which relates to, governance of 
the California State University. 

 
Trustees are not eligible for appointment to any salaried position in the California 

State University, except for the Chancellor and the Faculty Trustee. 
 

§  6. Trustees’ Code of Conduct 
 

Trustees shall comport themselves in accord with the Code of Conduct attached to 
these Rules. 

II. OFFICERS 
 

§  1. Designation 
 

There are five officers of the Board of Trustees. 
 

The President of the Board is the Governor of the State of California. 
 

The Chair and Vice Chair are elected annually from among the members of the 
Board. 
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The Secretary of the Board is the General Counsel of the California State 
University. 

 
The Treasurer of the Board is the Vice Chancellor of Business and Finance of the 

California State University. 
 

§  2. Election of the Chair and Vice Chair 
 

The Chair and Vice Chair are elected at a regular meeting in or about May, and 
take office as the last order of business at that meeting. They hold office for one year, 
and may not be elected for more than two consecutive terms, plus any unexpired term to 
which they succeed. 

 
The Vice Chair succeeds the Chair in the event of a vacancy, and holds office 

until the end of the unexpired term or until a successor is elected. A successor for the 
Vice Chair is elected to fill any unexpired term. 

 
§  3. Presiding Officer at Meetings 

 
The President of the Board presides at meetings. In the event of his or her 

absence, the Chair presides. In the event of his or her absence, the Vice Chair presides. 
In the event of the absence of all three, the Board of Trustees elects a Chair Pro Tempore 
to preside. 

 
§  4. Duties of the Secretary 

 
The Secretary of the Board through the Trustees’ Secretariat gives public notice 

of all meetings of the Board of Trustees and Committees of the Board, in accord with 
Government Code section 11125. The Secretary certifies the minutes of the Board of 
Trustees and Committees of the Board. The Secretary certifies actions of the Board of 
Trustees and Committees of the Board, these Rules, the Standing Orders, and other 
official Board activities. 

 
The Secretary of the Board through the Trustees’ Secretariat files, posts, and 

publishes in appropriate public offices or locations all documents required for the 
California State University. The Secretary is authorized to sign proxies, receipts, 
acknowledgments, notices, and declarations in the name of the Board of Trustees. 
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The Secretary is the custodian of the seal of the Board of Trustees, and through 
the Trustees’ Secretariat affixes it to appropriate documents for the California State 
University. 

 
Any Assistant Secretary may perform the functions of the Secretary. 
 

 
§  5. Duties of the Treasurer 

 
The Treasurer of the Board is responsible for all fiscal affairs of the California 

State University, including the implementation of internal financial controls. The 
Treasurer of the Board is also responsible for all external debt incurred by the California 
State University and investment of all funds that are subject to the Board of Trustees’ 
authority. 

 
§  6. Other Authority 

 
The officers of the Board have other powers and duties as delegated by the Board. 

III. MEETINGS 
 

§  1. Regular Meetings 
 

The Board of Trustees establishes in a meeting in or about March of each year a 
schedule of regular meetings to be held in the following year on the dates and in the 
places indicated. The schedule is acted upon at the next regular meeting. 

 
§  2. Special Meetings 

 
A special meeting may be called by the Chair or a majority of the members of the 

Board of Trustees, in accord with the requirements of Government Code section 11125.4. 
 

§  3. Emergency Meetings 
 

An emergency meeting may be called by the Chair or a majority of the members 
of the Board of Trustees, when necessitated by matters upon which prompt action is 
necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of California State University 
facilities, in accord with the requirements of Government Code section 11125.5. 
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§  4. Quorum 
 

A quorum of the Board of Trustees consists of eleven members. 
 

§  5. Continuation of Meeting 
 

Any meeting may be adjourned and its business continued to another date by a 
vote of a majority of the Trustees in attendance, even where less than a quorum is 
present. 

 
§  6. Order of Business 

 
The order of business at regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be as 

follows: 
 

Call to order and Roll Call 
Public Comments 
Reports of the Chair and the Chancellor 
Approval of the minutes 
Reports of Standing and Special Committees 
Adjournment to next regular meeting 

 
The order of business at special and emergency meetings of the Board of Trustees 

shall be as follows: 
 

Call to order and Roll Call 
Special business for which the meeting was called 
Adjournment 

 
The order of business at any meeting may be suspended by a majority vote. 

 
§  7. Conduct of Meetings 

 
Meetings of the Board of Trustees and Committees of the Board are conducted in accord 

with traditional procedural rules, as interpreted by the Board or Committee Chair who is 
presiding. Any member of the Board who disagrees with a procedural decision made by the 
Board or Committee Chair may introduce a motion to reverse or amend that decision. 
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§  8. Members of the Public Addressing the Board 
 

Members of the public have an opportunity to address the Board of Trustees on agenda 
items, in accord with Government Code section 11125.7, before or during discussion or 
consideration of the item, but only if an opportunity to address the relevant item was not 
provided when it came before Committee. Individuals wishing to appear before the Board to 
address an agenda item, or make public comment, must provide written notice to the Trustees’ 
Secretariat two working days preceding the regularly scheduled Board meeting, stating the 
subject and reason for the appearance. The Chair determines and announces any reasonable 
restrictions upon such presentations, including the total amount of time allocated for public 
comment on particular issues, and/or for each speaker. If a member of the Board disagrees with 
the Chair’s restrictions, that Trustee may introduce a motion to reverse or amend the Chair’s 
decision. 

 
The Chair decides whether to recognize individuals wishing to appear before the Board 

who have not submitted advance notice prior to the meeting as required by this section and 
announces that decision. Any member of the Board who disagrees with the Chair’s decision may 
introduce a motion to reverse or amend the Chair’s decision. 

 
Spokespersons for the Statewide Academic Senate, the California State Student 

Association and the CSU Alumni Council are not subject to this rule. 

IV. COMMITTEES 
 

§  1. Standing Committees 
 

The purpose of the standing committees of the Board of Trustees is to facilitate 
consideration of the business and governance of the California State University. Except 
in cases of emergency, all matters are first referred to the standing committees, which 
shall consider them, and make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees. The Board of 
Trustees may consider matters that have not been referred to standing committees upon a 
two-thirds vote. 

 
Members of standing committees are determined by the Board of Trustees and 

hold office until the appointment of successors. The Committee on Committees 
determines committee assignments for newly appointed Trustees. 
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Each standing committee has a Chair and Vice Chair. In the event of the absence 
of both, another member of the committee is selected by the Chair of the Board to serve 
as Committee Chair Pro Tempore. 

 
a. Committee on Finance 

 
The Committee on Finance is responsible for all matters relating to the fiscal 

affairs of the California State University, except personnel matters that fall within the 
jurisdiction of the Committee on University and Faculty Personnel. 

 
b. Committee on Educational Policy 

 
The Committee on Educational Policy is responsible for all matters relating to 

educational policy of the California State University, including student affairs, and 
nominees for honorary degrees to be awarded by the California State University. 

 
c. Committee on Campus Planning, Building and Grounds 

 
The Committee on Campus Planning, Building and Grounds is responsible for the 

planning, development and construction of all California State University facilities 
and for land use within the California State University. 

 
d. Committee on Audit 

 
The Committee on Audit shall consist of at least five members, and is responsible 

for the overall audit function within the California State University.  The Committee 
on Audit, and has the authority to act on behalf of the Board of Trustees on all matters, 
including concerning the selection and oversight of the university’s external and 
internal auditor.  The Committee on Audit makes recommendations to the Board of 
Trustees concerning the appointment, dismissal and compensation of the University 
Auditor.  With respect to the external and internal auditor, the Committee on Audit 
has the authority to act on behalf of the Board of Trustees to , controls to ensure their 
independence, approve the annual selection of areas to be audited, review of audit 
reports and responses, monitoring of internal financial controls, review of annual 
financial statements, and approve the budget to support these functions. At least one 
member of the Committee on Audit must have accounting or financial management 
experience.  The Committee will have access to financial expertise either collectively 
among committee members or from a financial expert appointed to advise them.   
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e. Committee on Organization and Rules 
 

The Committee on Organization and Rules is responsible for revisions of these 
Rules, the Standing Orders, and the schedule of regular meetings of the Board of 
Trustees. 

 
f. Committee on Collective Bargaining 

 
The Committee on Collective Bargaining is responsible for implementation of the 

collective bargaining policy for the California State University, and has authority to 
act on behalf of the Board of Trustees to comply with the requirements of the Higher 
Education Employer-Employee Relations Act, including negotiation and ratification 
of memoranda of understanding with the unions. The Committee makes periodic 
progress reports to the Board of Trustees on matters pertaining to collective bargaining 
and the actions that it has taken. 

 
g. Committee on University and Faculty Personnel 

 
The Committee on University and Faculty Personnel is responsible for 

personnel policies and procedures, and for executive compensation. 
 

h. Committee on Institutional Advancement 
 

The Committee on Institutional Advancement is responsible for policies and 
procedures related to advancement of the California State University. 

 
i. Committee on Governmental Relations 

 
The Committee on Governmental Relations is responsible for the legislative 

program for the California State University. 
 

j. Committee of the Whole 
 

The Committee of the Whole is responsible for all other matters to come before 
the Board that are not otherwise assigned to another standing committee. 
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§  2. Committee on Committees 
 

The Committee on Committees nominates the Chair and Vice Chair, and all 
members of the standing committees. 

 
At a regular meeting in or about January, the Chair nominates five members of 

the Board of Trustees to the Committee on Committees. These nominations are acted 
upon at the next regular meeting. Any Trustee can make other nominations at any time 
prior to the election. The five nominees who receive the highest number of votes 
constitute the Committee on Committees. They take office at the end of the meeting at 
which they have been elected. 

 
Within ten calendar days of the election of a new Committee on Committees, each 

Trustee submits to the Trustees’ Secretariat a list in rank order of at least four standing 
committees on which the Trustee would prefer to serve. The lists are sent to each 
member of the Committee on Committees, which shall give due consideration to the 
preferences listed in determining its nominations. 

 
The  Committee  on  Committees  may nominate  ex  officio  members  of  the  Board  of 
Trustees to serve as members of standing committees. 

 
§  3. Special Committees 

 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chair upon authority from the Board 

of Trustees and shall have such powers as the Board of Trustees determines. Special 
committees are discharged after one year from the date of their appointment, unless 
specifically authorized by the Board of Trustees to act for a longer period. 

 
The  Chair  may  appoint  special  committees  in  the  interim  between  regular 

meetings of the Board of Trustees, provided that the Board of Trustees at its next regular 
meeting confirms the appointment and charge of such special committees. 

 
§  4. Committee Meetings 

 
Regular meetings of the standing committees, the Committee on Committees, and 

any special committees are held, as needed, on the same dates and in the same places as 
regular meetings of the Board of Trustees. Other meetings of any committee may be 
called at any time by the Secretary through the Trustees’ Secretariat at the direction of the 
Committee Chair, the Chancellor, or by any three members of that Committee. 
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The President and the Chair shall be ex officio members of all standing and 
special committees and the Committee on Committees. The Chancellor shall be an ex 
officio member of all standing and special committees, except for the Committee on 
Audit and the Committee on Committees. 

 
A majority of the members of any committee constitutes a quorum, except that in 

the case of a committee consisting of four members or less, in which case two members 
constitute a quorum. If a quorum of any committee is not available, the Chair is 
authorized to appoint substitute members to the committee to create a quorum. A 
substitute appointment applies only to that particular meeting and expires upon 
adjournment of the committee meeting. 

 
In the case of any joint meeting of two or more committees, a quorum consists of 

the majority of the members of each committee, and each member is counted just once. 
Each member has one vote, even though he or she is a member of more than one 
committee. 

 
An agenda item brought before any committee for information or action remains 

under the jurisdiction of that committee unless the Chair of the committee or the Chair of 
the Board has been given notice and has approved the transfer of the agenda item to 
another committee or committees. 

 
Any Trustee has the right to attend a closed session of any committee except for 

the Committee on Collective Bargaining. 
 

§  5. Members of the Public Addressing Committees 
 

Every committee provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly 
address the committee on each agenda item before or during the committee’s discussion 
or consideration of the item, in accord with Government Code section 11125.7. 
Individuals wishing to appear before a committee must provide written notice to the 
Trustees’ Secretariat two working days preceding the regularly scheduled committee 
meeting, stating the subject and reason for the appearance. The Chair of the committee 
determines and announces any reasonable restrictions upon such presentations, including 
the total amount of time allocated for public comment on particular issues and/or for each 
speaker. If a member of the Board disagrees with the Chair’s restrictions, that Trustee 
may introduce a motion to reverse or amend the Chair’s decision. 
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Individuals  wishing  to  appear  before  a  committee  who  have  not  submitted 
advance  notice  prior  to  the  meeting  may  seek  recognition  from  the  Chair  of  the 
committee to make their remarks. 

 
Spokespersons for the Statewide Academic Senate, the California State Student 

Association and the CSU Alumni Council are not subject to this rule. 

V. AMENDMENTS 
 

These Rules may be amended at any regular meeting of the Board of Trustees. 
Notice and a draft of the proposed amendment is required at the last regular meeting prior 
to the meeting at which action is taken. This advance notice requirement may be waived 
by a majority vote for matters that are not controversial and require no further discussion. 



Revised: January 259, 20124 

 O & R 
  Agenda Item 1  
  January 28-29, 2014 

Page 13 of 15 
  

 

 
TRUSTEES’ CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
1. A Trustee shall devote time, thought, and study to his or her duties as a 

member of the Board of Trustees of the California State University. 
 

2. A Trustee shall learn how the California State University functions --- its 
uniqueness, strength, and needs --- and its place in postsecondary education. 

 
3. A Trustee shall carefully prepare for, regularly attend, and actively participate 

in the Board meetings and committee assignments. 
 

4. A Trustee shall accept and abide by the legal and fiscal responsibilities of the 
Board as specified in federal and state law and the regulations, rules of 
procedure, standing orders, and resolutions of the Board of Trustees. 

 
5. A Trustee shall base his or her vote upon all information available in each 

situation and shall exercise his or her best judgment in making decisions 
which affect the course of the California State University. 

 
6. A Trustee shall vote according to his or her individual conviction, and may 

challenge the judgment of others when necessary; yet a Trustee shall be willing 
to support the majority decision of the Board and work with fellow Board 
members in a spirit of cooperation. 

 
7. A Trustee shall maintain the confidential nature of Board deliberations in 

closed session. This includes written and verbal communication concerning 
the closed session. A Trustee shall avoid acting as spokesperson for the Board 
unless specifically authorized to do so. 

 
8. A Trustee shall understand the role of the Board as a policy making body and 

avoid participation in administration of that policy unless specifically 
authorized to do so by the Board. 

 
9. A Trustee shall learn and consistently use designated institutional channels 

when conducting Board business (e.g., responding to faculty and student 
grievances, responding to inquiries concerning the status of a presidential 
search). 
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10. A Trustee shall comply with conflict of interest policies and requirements 
prescribed in state law. A Trustee shall refrain from accepting duties, incurring 
obligations, accepting gifts or favors, engaging in private business or 
professional activities when there is, or would appear to be, a conflict or  
incompatibility between the Trustee’s private interests and the interests of the 
California State University. 

 
11. A  Trustee shal l  ref ra in  from actions and involvements that may prove 

embarrassing to the California State University. 
 

12. A Trustee shall act and make judgments always on the basis of what is best 
for the California State University as a whole and for the advancement of 
higher education in general. 
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Procedure for Responding to Breaches of   
the Code of Conduct 

 
1. Should evidence or allegations of violations of the Code of Conduct by 

a Trustee of the California State University come to the attention of the 
Chair of the Board, which after further review by the Chair appears to 
constitute a breach of the Code of Conduct, the Chair and the Vice Chair 
shall discuss the matter with the Trustee to obtain additional facts and 
perspective and to seek a mutually agreeable resolution. 

 
2. Should the Code continue to be violated by the Trustee after discussion 

with the Chair and the Vice Chair, the Chair, after appropriate consultation, 
will place the matter on the agenda for appropriate action by the Board of 
Trustees. The Board shall discuss the matter in open session, allowing 
the Trustee whose conduct is at issue to provide an explanation of the 
conduct. The Board may then by majority vote censure the Trustee. 

 
3. Should the Board censure the Trustee, formal notification of the censure 

shall be communicated to the Governor, as President of the Board, and to 
any separate recommendatory or appointive authority of the Trustee, e.g., 
the Academic Senate of the California State University, the California State 
Student Association, or the CSU Alumni Council. 

 
 

 
 



AGENDA 
 

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE 
 

Meeting: 9:45 a.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2014 
  Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
 
 William Hauck, Chair 
 Roberta Achtenberg, Vice Chair 
 Rebecca D. Eisen 
 Douglas Faigin 
 Margaret Fortune 
 Steven M. Glazer 
 Lou Monville 
  
 
Consent Items 

Approval of Minutes of Meeting of November 5, 2013 
 
Discussion Items 

1. Report on the 2014-2015 Support Budget, Information 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
COMMITTEE ON FINANCE 

 
Trustees of The California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 5, 2013 

 
Members Present 
 
Roberta Achtenberg, Acting Chair 
Rebecca Eisen 
Douglas Faigin   
Margaret Fortune 
Steven M. Glazer 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
Lou Monville 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Trustee Achtenberg called the meeting to order. She announced that Item 6, Review of 
Management and Purchase Option Agreements for a Student Housing Project on Private 
Property Adjacent to California State University, San Bernardino, had been tabled. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of September 24, 2013 were approved by consent as submitted.  
 
Trustee Achtenberg introduced speakers for public comment. 
 
Lillian Taiz, President of the California Faculty Association, noted that despite Proposition 30’s 
passage, the state’s contribution is still $100 million short of that allocated in 2010. She also 
expressed concern surrounding the rise of online learning programs.  
 
Juan Herrera, an undergraduate student and director of student services at CSU San Bernardino, 
expressed concern about enrollment capacity at his campus.  
 
Approval of the 2014-2015 Support Budget Request  
 
Mr. Robert Turnage, assistant vice chancellor for budget, expressed gratitude to the state for its 
renewed investment in and prioritization of higher education, in light of the enactment of 
Proposition 30. He emphasized that the budget request presented is a recommended expenditure 
plan, and commented that the state augmentation included therein had been somewhat reduced 
since its first being presented to the board in September, from $250 million to $237.6 million.  
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Mr. Turnage first commented on enrollment demand, noting that the support budget request 
presupposes a 5% increase in funded enrollment. Expenditures would be covered by tuition and 
fee revenues, and the state would be asked to provide $79.2 million to allow for 16,800 full-time 
equivalent students (FTES) or roughly 20,000 individual students. He also noted that $50 million 
in augmentations will be requested to support improved student success and completion rates. 
 
Secondly, Mr. Turnage addressed capital infrastructure issues, citing a growing backlog of 
maintenance and repair needs across the system. He related a plan to dedicate a portion of the 
augmentation in funding for purposes of debt service on financing that would enable the 
leveraging of funds to address the most pressing maintenance and infrastructure needs.  
 
Finally, Mr. Turnage remarked on the university’s need to invest in its faculty and staff, given 
five years of no general salary increases. He noted that the budget includes a 3% increase in the 
compensation pool. In summary, the support budget request totals to $344 million, or $237.6 
million net of enrollment growth revenue. 
 
Trustee Glazer requested clarification of the proposed financing mechanism for infrastructure 
needs. He expressed concern at the prospect of incorporating incremental $15 million increases 
into the system’s base funding. Mr. Turnage restated the plan, acknowledging the assumption of 
some risk, and described a similar, ultimately successful, course of action taken by the university 
in the mid-90s to address deferred maintenance needs. 
 
Student Trustee Cipriano Vargas testified to the benefits he personally has realized from 
programs being implemented to drive student success and completion. He also expressed support 
for increasing enrollment capacity. He deferred the remainder of his time to Sarah Couch, 
president of the California State Student Association (CSSA). 
 
Ms. Couch expressed support for the support budget request on behalf of the CSSA, stating that 
the university must ask for the resources necessary to best support student success.  
 
At Trustee Achtenberg’s request, Chancellor White addressed the concerns raised by Trustee 
Glazer with respect to financing maintenance and repair projects. He commented that the 
decaying state of infrastructure across the system is of paramount importance. He affirmed that 
the university would not take on any debt absent a commitment from the legislature, and any 
decisions to increase funding would be made in the context of present economic conditions. 
 
Dr. Benjamin Quillian, executive vice chancellor and chief financial officer, clarified that the key 
is to obtain the authority to use general fund monies for debt service. Chancellor White asserted 
that alternatives to the proposed plan had been duly explored. 
 
Trustee Monville stated that the board must be mindful of the severity of the infrastructure 
issues, and not delay action.  
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In response to a question from Trustee Norton, Dr. Quillian confirmed that at present the 
university is prohibited from using general fund monies for debt service. 
 
Diana Guerin, representing the Academic Senate of the California State University, commented 
that her organization had voted together with the students in support of the budget request, as 
presented. 
 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the committee approved the 2014-2015 Support Budget 
Request. 
  
Trustee Glazer introduced an amendment, seconded by Trustee Monville, to replace the $15 
million included in the proposal with a direct request for $50 million in maintenance funding 
from the state. 
 
Mr. Turnage commented that the resultant “pay as you go” methodology would dramatically 
reduce the amount of funding available for projects and would also increase the overall request 
to the state by $35 million. 
 
The amendment was defeated by a roll call vote of the committee members. 
 
Trustee Faigin, with respect to the issue of bottleneck courses, requested that a report be 
prepared for the board outlining the university’s mitigation plan, contingencies and a schedule 
for implementation. He further requested that a discussion on the topic of online courses be 
added to the agenda in the near future. He also stated that as the board has the final vote on the 
budget, the dissemination of printed and bound budget books prior to the board’s discussion and 
voting on the item may inaccurately imply the board’s endorsement and/or authorship. 
 
Trustee Faigin then introduced an amendment to the support budget request item, a resolution, 
which he read aloud for the record, and which expressed gratitude to the governor and legislature 
for increased funding support for the university and averred that the future of California and its 
economy rests on the success of the CSU in achieving its mission. 
 
The amendment was adopted by a roll call vote of the committee members. 
 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the committee approved the 2014-2015 Support Budget 
Request, as amended. 
  
2014-2015 Lottery Revenue Budget  
 
Mr. Turnage explained that this action item is presented as a follow up to an information item 
from the September agenda. He commented that the lottery revenue budget represents less than 
1%, or approximately $40 million, of the university’s overall operating budget, but nevertheless 
provides for many important programs.  
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In response to a question from Trustee Glazer, Mr. Turnage affirmed that the system’s policy, 
consistent with the lottery statute itself, is to advise campuses not to allocate lottery monies for 
permanent programs owing to the volatility of the revenue. 
 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the committee approved the 2014-2015 Lottery Revenue 
Budget. 
 
2013-2014 Student Fee Report  
 
Trustee Achtenberg explained that this information item is brought before the board each 
November, pursuant to board policy. She briefly described the various means by which student 
fees may be posited and levied, noting that the chancellor reserves the ultimate authority to reject 
any fee deemed outside the interest of the university. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Monville, Mr. Turnage affirmed that the report captures 
fees levied by students themselves, either by referendum or by resolve of a campus fee advisory 
committee. 
 
Trustee Eisen questioned the high degree of variability in student fees across the system. Mr. 
Olin explained that the disparities are tied to students’ threshold of tolerance for perceived needs 
at their respective campuses.  
 
Trustee Monville reported visiting the student center at Sonoma State University and 
commended students there for voting to assess themselves some years ago in order to fund its 
construction, in the interest of those who would come after them.  
  
California State University Annual Investment Report  
 
George Ashkar, assistant vice chancellor for financial services, reported on the 2012-13 
investment report for funds managed under the CSU investment policy. Specifically, he reported 
that as of June 30, 2013, the asset balance of the systemwide investment fund trust (SWIFT) 
portfolio totaled $2.55 billion, realizing a return of 0.406% over the 12-month period ending on 
that date. Moreover, he remarked that the return was greater than that achieved by its benchmark, 
the treasury-based index. He then provided a brief overview of the fund’s composition before 
introducing its investment directors and officers: Michael Rogers, managing director and head of 
institutional fixed income at Wells Capital Management, and Jim Palmer, chief investment 
officer of U.S. Bank Asset Management. 
 
Messrs. Rogers and Palmer delivered a market update to the board spanning July 1, 2013 through 
the present and looking into the near future, and noted that the CSU is safeguarded against risk 
while achieving a competitive rate of return. 
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In response to a question from Trustee Eisen, Mr. Ashkar commented on investments in LAIF 
and SAIF, describing the latter as a one-time investment opportunity from the state, and both the 
former and the latter as having zero balance at present. 
  
California State University Investment Policy Clarification 
 
Mr. Ashkar explained that due to the creation of a single investment portfolio managed by the 
Chancellor’s Office, the CSU’s investment policy needs clarification. Accordingly, he noted, 
“campus” had been replaced with “CSU” in multiple instances and the campus reporting 
requirement had been struck. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Eisen, Mr. Ashkar clarified that while the SAIF is not an 
investment option being utilized at the present time, it continues to be a legal investment vehicle 
and should therefore remain in the policy as a potential future option. 
 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the committee approved the California State University 
Policy Clarification.  
 
Trustee Achtenberg adjourned the Committee on Finance.  
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE  

 
Report on the 2014-2015 Support Budget 
  
Presentation By  
 
Sally Roush 
Interim Vice Chancellor for  
Business and Finance 
 
Ryan Storm 
Interim Assistant Vice Chancellor  
Budget  
 
 
Summary  
The 2014-2015 Governor’s Budget identifies a $1.9 billion surplus for 2014-2015. This surplus 
is net of $8.3 billion of increased state expenditures between 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 and the 
revenues that support that surplus and new expenditures. The governor proposes applying large 
portions of the surplus to aggressively retire the state’s “wall of debt”, establish a new rainy day 
fund and to increase K-14 program spending with smaller portions of that surplus for 
programmatic investments concentrated in health, welfare, deferred maintenance, and higher 
education programs. 
 
The governor has utilized a portion of these funds to make higher education a priority of his 
2014-2015 budget. The governor’s budget provides a $142.2 million state general fund increase 
for the California State University (CSU) operating budget support. This amount is consistent 
with the governor’s multi-year funding plan first proposed and adopted in 2013-2014. 
Additionally, the governor’s budget includes a plan to fold in funding for state bond debt service 
into the CSU support budget—including with it new statutory authority for the CSU to: (1) 
refinance/restructure a portion of that debt service and (2) pledge and use the CSU support 
budget for infrastructure and maintenance projects. The framework of the CSU debt service 
proposal is very similar to the framework adopted last year for the University of California (UC). 
New initiatives are also included that would require the CSU to prepare academic program 
sustainability plans and that would create a one-time award program for innovation in higher 
education. 
 
State Budget Overview  
The state’s budget outlook has markedly changed in recent years.  Only two years ago, the 2012-
2013 Governor’s Budget Summary estimated a $9.2 billion budget problem and future annual 
budget deficits of up to $5 billion.  Under the leadership of the governor, and with the assistance 
of many others, including the CSU and its many stakeholders, voters approved Proposition 30 in 
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November 2012, which temporarily increased sales and personal income tax rates over a multi-
year period. The resulting additional state revenue, together with significant and permanent 
expenditure reductions made by the state and an improving state economy, have reversed the 
fiscal fortunes of California. Today, the 2014-2015 Governor’s Budget Summary reports a $1.9 
billion surplus for 2014-2015.  This surplus is net of $8.3 billion of increased state expenditures 
between 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 and the revenues that support that surplus and new 
expenditures.  The governor’s budget estimates future annual revenue growth of $4.5 billion or 
more. 
  
When the governor unveiled his 2014-2015 budget proposal on January 9, 2014, he aligned the 
available additional revenues and his fiscal policy priorities. Specifically, the largest expenditure 
increases would pay down the state’s “wall of debt”, meet Proposition 98 funding requirements 
for K-12 and community colleges, and establish a rainy day fund.  Other notable expenditures 
would include the expansion of Medi-Cal benefits, a five-percent CalWORKs grant increase, a 
statewide deferred maintenance investment (excluding CSU and UC), and additional investments 
in the governor’s multi-year funding plan for higher education, which for the CSU is $142.2 
million. 
 
2014-2015 CSU Support Budget 
The governor continues to make higher education a priority of his budget plan, although not at 
the level requested in the CSU budget plan approved by the Board of Trustees in November 
2013. The governor’s budget provides similar treatment to the CSU and the UC. For each 
system, the budget (1) provides an augmentation of $142.2 million for support of each system; 
(2) presumes tuition fee rates will remain at 2011-2012 levels for 2014-2015; (3) proposes a 
nearly identical debt service framework for the CSU that has already been adopted for UC; and 
(4) requires both systems to prepare academic program sustainability plans.  
 
Appropriation Increase 
The $142.2 million augmentation is aligned with the governor’s multi-year funding plan for 
higher education that was first implemented in 2013-2014. This is the second year of the four-
year funding commitment. Funding can be used for any CSU operational purpose and comes 
with the expectation that tuition fee rates will not change from 2011-2012 levels. The CSU 
appreciates the governor’s fiscal commitment, his understanding that the CSU had to implement 
very difficult cuts during the challenging fiscal years, and his granting of fiscal flexibility 
contained within the augmentation, so that the system can continue in its recovery from prior 
reductions and can address its most pressing needs. 
 
Debt Service Framework 
The proposed debt service framework has many components and many potential positives for the 
CSU.  First, the funds that support debt service payments for all outstanding general obligation 
(GO) bond and State Public Works Board lease revenue (LR) bond funded projects would be 
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folded into the CSU support budget under this framework. This “fold-in” adds  approximately 
$197 million for GO bond projects to the CSU support budget and provides a grand total of $297 
million for GO and LR debt service. Generally, this proposal would be cost neutral in the near 
term. As this debt is retired over time, this component of the framework provides the CSU the 
opportunity to retain the $297 million indefinitely and to use more of those funds over time for 
infrastructure or other capital needs. 
 
Second, the proposed framework would authorize the CSU to restructure the LR debt service. 
There is potential for the CSU to financially benefit from a restructuring if terms are appropriate 
and market conditions are agreeable. 
 
Third, the proposed framework would authorize the CSU to pledge its support budget and/or 
expend these funds for a host of infrastructure-related purposes. Specifically, this includes the 
construction, repair, and maintenance of academic facilities the construction of energy 
conservation projects, cogeneration facilities, etc. The proposal would enable the three-year 
financing strategy approved by the trustees in November 2013 to commit $15 million a year 
(growing to $45 million by the third year) for deferred maintenance, repair, and facility 
improvement needs. To date, the CSU has been either significantly limited or prohibited from 
using its support budget for these purposes.  This proposal provides the CSU additional financing 
and pay-go options for these types of projects as well as the ability for the system to consume 
less energy and save utility costs. 
 
Academic Program Sustainability Plan 
State law established last year requires the CSU to report on a number of student success 
performance measures. Some examples include the number of students enrolled by different 
student categories, two-year and three-year graduation rates of community college transfer 
students, and the number of degree completions by varying student categories. The governor’s 
budget proposes to build upon these performance measures by requiring the CSU to prepare a 
multi-year plan that would establish annual goals for the performance measures and outline how 
assumed revenues and expenditures would sustain the plan and achieve the goals. This proposal 
would require the trustees to adopt a multi-year budget plan based on yet-to-be defined 
assumptions prescribed by the Department of Finance. This would be a significant departure 
from the practice in which the trustees annually determine revenue and expenditure assumptions 
and adopt the CSU support budget. 
 
Awards for Innovation in Higher Education 
The governor’s budget proposes a one-time $50 million program administered by a new seven-
member selection committee. One purpose of the program is to identify public colleges and 
universities that have particular success in: (1) bachelor’s degree completion rates; (2) four-year 
graduation rates; and (3) easing transfer through the public higher education system and 
recognizing learning that has occurred across the public higher education system or elsewhere. 
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Awards would be provided to the colleges and universities that could efficiently bring successful 
models to scale for the benefit of the three public higher education institutions. 
 
Proposed Cal Grant Change 
One Cal Grant program proposal has an important implication for currently-enrolled CSU 
students. Under current law, a CSU student permanently loses Cal Grant eligibility if at any point 
during his or her academic career the family’s income or assets exceed certain levels. The 
governor’s budget proposes to allow that student to regain his or her Cal Grant if his or her 
family’s income or assets once again fall below certain levels. This proposal is a significant 
policy and fiscal change that could positively affect hundreds of currently-enrolled CSU students 
in 2014-2015 by restoring previously provided state Cal Grant financial assistance. This could  
also help with the retention and persistence of students who, under current law, stop or drop-out 
strictly based on lost Cal Grant eligibility. Additionally, because most CSU students affected by 
the current Cal Grant policy are likely to have financial need, the recovery of Cal Grant funding 
would lessen pressures on university financial aid resources and/or student dependence on loan 
assistance. 
 
Conclusion 
The 2014-2015 Governor’s Budget again makes higher education a priority, notwithstanding the 
call by many to reinvest more state general fund resources into programs that were significantly 
reduced or eliminated during the state’s extremely challenging fiscal circumstances of the recent 
past years. This budget proposal, if approved by the legislature, would allow the CSU to invest, 
to some degree, in enrollment growth, student success and completion initiatives, compensation 
improvements, and maintenance and infrastructure needs. 
 
Presuming that the state’s positive economic prospects persist into the May revision, CSU staff 
commits to working with the governor and legislature through the budget process to ensure that 
the priorities outlined in the trustee-approved CSU support budget are met by an appropriate 
level of state support. 
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Office of the Chancellor 
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September 24, 2013 

 
Members Present 
 
Hugo N. Morales, Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg 
Douglas Faigin 
Debra Farar 
Margaret Fortune 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
Peter Mehas 
Cipriano Vargas 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Trustee Morales called the meeting to order. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of July 23, 2013 were approved as submitted. 
 
Recognition of Recipients of the 2013-2014 CSU Trustees’ Award for Outstanding 
Achievement  
 
Chancellor White shared that each year the California State University (CSU) Board of Trustees 
provides scholarships to high-achieving students who excel academically and make a difference 
in their communities. He thanked members of the board for their contributions to the CSU 
Trustees’ scholarships with special acknowledgement of Trustee William Hauck, Trustee 
Emeritus Ali C. Razi and Trustee Emeritus Kenneth Fong.  
 
The chancellor also thanked Mr. Ronald Barhorst and his wife for funding a scholar on behalf of 
the CSU Foundation Board of Governors; Mr. Michael Lizarraga and his company TELACU for 
funding a first-generation scholar; Mr. Peter Brightbill and Wells Fargo for supporting a veteran 
scholar; Mr. Michael Lucki and CH2M Hill for supporting an engineering scholar; and Trustee 
Emeritus Ralph Pesqueira and his wife for funding a future scholarship through their estate.  
 
Chancellor White introduced Trustee Emeritus Ali C. Razi, CSU Foundation Board of Governors 
member and CSU Trustees’ Award selection committee chair, whose leadership helped expand 
this scholarship program. Thanks to his generosity, the top two scholars each receive $10,000. 
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Chancellor White and Dr. Razi recognized the recipients of the 2013-2014 CSU Trustees’ Award 
for Outstanding Achievement: 
 

Ms. Erika Rivera, California State University, Bakersfield, William Randolph Hearst Scholar 
Ms. Annie Rose Alward, California State University Channel Islands, CSU Foundation Board 

of Governors Scholar Sponsored by Ronald R. and Mitzi Barhorst 
Mr. Tim Dean Sain, California State University, Chico, Trustee Emeritus Ali C. Razi Scholar 
Mr. John Fitzgerald Bagnerise, California State University, Dominguez Hills, Edison 

International Scholar 
Mr. David D. Fuller, California State University, East Bay, AT&T Scholar 
Ms. Brittany Beard, California State University, Fresno, Chancellor Emeritus Charles B. Reed 

Scholar 
Mr. TJ Reynolds, California State University, Fullerton, Wells Fargo Scholar 
Ms. Victoria Munguia, Humboldt State University, William Randolph Hearst Scholar 
Ms. Anna Chau, California State University, Long Beach, William Randolph Hearst Scholar 
Mr. Luis Antezana, California State University, Los Angeles, TELACU Scholar 
Mr. David Buckley, California Maritime Academy, CH2M Hill Scholar 
Ms. Regan Porteous, California State University, Monterey Bay, Angelina Aliberti and 

Lawrence L. Ruggie Scholar 
Ms. Brooke Celia Hall, California State University, Northridge, Trustee Emeritus Murray L. 

Galinson Scholar 
Ms. Eva Ambriz, California State Polytechnic University, Pomona, John and Beverly Stauffer 

Scholar 
Ms. Jolene Ford, California State University, Sacramento, William Randolph Hearst Scholar 
Mr. Hoang Anh Tran, California State University, San Bernardino, Trustee Emeritus Kenneth 

Fong Scholar 
Mr. Clayton Matthew Treska, San Diego State University, Trustee Emeritus Ali C. Razi 

Scholar 
Mr. Bryan O. Rojas-Arauz, San Francisco State University, AT&T Scholar 
Mr. Jordan Anthony Gonzales, San Jośe State University, Trustee William Hauck Scholar 
Ms. Juana Villa, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, William Randolph 

Hearst Scholar 
Ms. Emily Snow, California State University San Marcos, William Randolph Hearst Scholar 
Mr. John Michael Vincent P. Coralde, Sonoma State University, Haworth Family Scholar 
Mr. Robert D. McGhee, California State University, Stanislaus, William Randolph Hearst 

Scholar 
 

Mr. Steven Zimmer, business development manager for education for Sony, announced that each 
scholar received a technology package from the Sony Corporation valued at $1,200.  Trustees, 
scholars, families and friends were also invited to a reception sponsored by Cisco. 
 
Trustee Morales adjourned the meeting. 
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Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University 
 
Presentation by: 
 
Garrett P. Ashley 
Vice Chancellor 
University Relations and Advancement 
 
Summary 
  
This item will consider naming the Aztec Student Union (building 52) at San Diego State 
University as the Conrad Prebys Aztec Student Union. 
 
This proposal, submitted by San Diego State University, meets the criteria and other conditions 
specified in the Board of Trustees Policy on Naming California State University Facilities, 
including approval by the system review panel and the executive committee of the campus 
academic senate.   
 
Background 
 
The proposed naming of the facility recognizes the generous $20 million contribution by Conrad 
Prebys in support of student scholarship endeavors. This gift will be used to benefit students 
through scholarship support in seven specific areas:  creative and performing arts, bio-medical 
research, student leaders, veterans, former foster youth, honor scholars and entrepreneurs. It is 
anticipated that on an annual basis, a minimum of 150 students will receive scholarships as a 
result of this gift to San Diego State University. 
  
Conrad Prebys is president of Progress Construction Company and Progress Management in San 
Diego and is involved in various real estate enterprises in California and Texas.   
 
Mr. Prebys was born in South Bend, Indiana in a blue-collar, ethnic, working neighborhood.  He 
was the first of his five brothers to attend college; he graduated from Indiana University.  Mr. 
Prebys has made significant contributions within the San Diego region, supporting organizations 
that include Scripps Mercy Hospital, the Zoological Society of San Diego and the San Diego 
Opera. Last year, Business Insider named Mr. Prebys one of the 25 Most Generous People in 
America. 
 
President of a substantial organization in San Diego, he references his large number of San 
Diego State University alumni employees when he speaks about the tremendous impact of the 
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campus on the region’s workforce. His humble background has given him a heart for young 
students. His contribution to San Diego State University will provide students who come from 
similar backgrounds an opportunity to succeed.   
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that 
the Aztec Student Union (building 52) at San Diego State University be named 
The Conrad Prebys Aztec Student Union. 
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Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University 
 
Presentation By: 
 
Garrett P. Ashley 
Vice Chancellor 
University Relations and Advancement 
 
Summary 
  
This item will consider temporarily naming the Open Air Theatre at San Diego State University 
as the Cal Coast Credit Union Open Air Theatre. 
 
This proposal, submitted by San Diego State University, meets the criteria and other conditions 
specified in the Board of Trustees Policy on Naming California State University Facilities 
including approval by the system review panel and the executive committee of the campus 
academic senate.   
 
Background 
 
The proposed naming of the facility recognizes California Coast Credit Union’s substantial 
contribution of $3,250,000 over a ten-year term that will enhance student life by enabling the 
Open Air Theatre to receive a number of facility upgrades that will allow more campus 
community organizations to access the venue to conduct educational, cultural and social events, 
in addition to attracting an expanded range of performers. These facility upgrades will include 
stage roof and seat replacement, as well as a significant portion of restroom replacement and 
concourse expansion. 
 
Established in 1929 by a group of educators, California Coast Credit Union is San Diego’s oldest 
credit union.  It is over $1.8 billion strong in assets, and serves over 122,000 members.  
California Coast Credit Union has shown a commitment to supporting SDSU in a variety of 
ways.  Earlier this year, California Coast Credit Union entered into an agreement to actively 
support the Aztec Men’s Basketball program over the next two years as a title sponsor.  In 2012, 
California Coast Credit Union partnered with the Aztec Men’s Basketball program as a game 
sponsor.  Most recently, California Coast Credit Union was a sponsor for the 40th Annual Staff 
Awards held on October 31.  
 
California Coast Credit Union believes in giving back to the community.  Their support for 
higher education is evident.  For over 80 years, California Coast Credit Union has been an avid 
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supporter of students, teachers and the educational community.  On a yearly basis, through the 
James L. McPheters – California Coast Credit Union Scholarship Program, five outstanding high 
school students are recognized for their dedication to academic excellence and community 
service. Each awardee receives a college scholarship in the amount of $1,500.  In addition, 
California Coast Credit Union provides financial literacy seminars and workshops for students of 
all ages. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the 
Open Air Theatre at San Diego State University be named the Cal Coast Credit 
Union Open Air Theatre for a term of ten years. 
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Naming of a Facility – Sonoma State University 
 
Presentation by: 
 
Garrett P. Ashley 
Vice Chancellor 
University Relations and Advancement 
 
Summary 
  
This item will consider naming the Sonoma State University Commons Building as The Wine 
Spectator Learning Center.  
 
This proposal, submitted by Sonoma State University, meets the criteria and other conditions 
specified in the Board of Trustees Policy on Naming California State University Facilities, 
including approval by the system review panel and the executive committee of the campus 
academic senate.   
 
Background 
 
The Wine Spectator Scholarship Foundation is making a $3 million dollar gift to the School of 
Business and Economics’ Wine Business Institute. The monies from this gift will allow the 
University to refurbish the University Commons Building as a learning center for the Wine 
Business Institute. This is possible through the generosity of Marvin R. Shanken, chairman of M. 
Shanken Communications, Inc.  
 
The Wine Spectator Learning Center at Sonoma State University is intended to provide a new 
home for the Wine Business Institute and its academic business programs.  The renovations will 
transform the existing building into a state-of-the-art, wine business education facility, including 
a technology-enhanced classroom and meeting spaces to convene wine industry symposia and 
gatherings. The Wine Spectator Learning Center will serve as a destination for anyone who 
wants to learn and lead in the wine industry. 
 
A sampling of its activities within The Wine Spectator Learning Center will include:  
 

• Classrooms for undergraduates, graduates and professional wine seminars, including a 
technology-enhanced classroom to extend our educational reach globally; 
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• A Wine Spectator Library to feature industry data, journals and archival publications with 
collaboration facilities; 

• A “proof-of-concept” lab for wine entrepreneurship and student-run businesses like 
Sonoma State Cellars; 

• Indoor and outdoor meeting spaces for industry symposia or gatherings, the institute’s 
board, project teams and industry colleagues; 

• Collaboration and co-working spaces for professors, students and industry experts 
working with students and faculty; 

• Offices for Wine Business Institute faculty and program leadership; and 
• A gallery to showcase the success of students, alumni and industry partners, and inspire 

the next generation. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the 
University Commons Building at Sonoma State University be named The Wine 
Spectator Learning Center. 
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Approval of the 2012-2013 Annual Report on Philanthropic Support to the California  
State University 
 
Presentation By 
 
Garrett P. Ashley 
Vice Chancellor 
University Relations and Advancement 
 
Lori A. Redfearn 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
University Advancement 
 
Summary 
 
This item presents information on philanthropic support received by the 23-campus California 
State University (CSU) system from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013.  Section 89720 of the 
Education Code requires that an annual gift report be submitted to the California Joint 
Legislative Budget Committee and the California Department of Finance. 
 
The report is provided and additional campus highlights will be available for viewing on the 
system website at www.calstate.edu/ua/philanthropic. 
 
Overview 
 
The California State University garnered $338 million in gift commitments in 2012-2013. These 
near pre-recession level commitments increased 14 percent from the previous year, reflecting a 
renewed confidence in the rebounding economy. The gift commitments were comprised of new 
gifts, pledges and testamentary provisions recorded during the period.  
 
Donor support for the CSU has shown amazing resiliency throughout the Great Recession and is 
now returning to record highs. Charitable gift receipts reached well over $282 million – the most 
in CSU history. Gift receipts, a combination of new gifts and pledge payments, represent 
resources that have been received and currently invested in the CSU’s students, faculty and 
programs.   
 
Donors continued to invest in student success, program innovation, applied research, community 
engagement and service-learning with over $173 million in current support: 
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• $19.0 million for student scholarships 
• $49.3 million for academic enrichment 
• $6.3 million for applied research 
• $2.8 million for faculty support 
• $4.5 million for library resources 
• $16.5 million for athletics 
• $31.8 million for public service programs 
• $1.7 million for facility improvements 
• $41.8 million for additional university priorities  

 
In 2012-2013, donors contributed almost $13 million for building projects. Capital support also 
included over $62.1 million in endowments and 210 irrevocable deferred gifts valued at $22.7 
million. The impact of philanthropy is evident in upgraded campus facilities. At San Diego State 
University, the College of Business Administration received several lead gifts to support a $3 
million renovation that will upgrade technology vital to preparing students for the modern 
workforce while adding attractive seating areas to accommodate individual and group study. At 
California State University, Channel Islands, donations as well as community services have 
transformed the Central Mall into a park-like pedestrian plaza giving students a space to gather, 
reflect and study.   
 
Fundraising is critical to maintaining excellence, but cannot replace revenue lost to state funding 
cuts. A major reason fundraising cannot replace other sources of revenue is because donations 
are nearly always targeted to particular interests. Of all charitable gifts received, 96 percent were 
designated to specific interests identified by the donor. Only $11.4 million received was 
unrestricted and available to be directed to the university’s most pressing needs. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that 
the Board adopts the 2012-2013 Annual Report of Philanthropic Support to the 
California State University for submission to the California Joint Legislative 
Budget Committee and the California Department of Finance. 
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MINUTES OF MEETING OF 
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATIONAL POLICY 

Trustees of The California State University 
Office of the Chancellor 

Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 
401 Golden Shore 

Long Beach, California 
 

November 5, 2013 
 
Members Present 
Roberta Achtenberg, Chair  
Debra S. Farar, Vice Chair  
Rebecca D. Eisen 
Douglas Faigin 
Lupe C. Garcia 
Steven M. Glazer 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
Lou Monville 
J. Lawrence Norton 
Cipriano Vargas 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Trustee Roberta Achtenberg called the meeting to order. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of September 24, 2013, were approved as submitted. 
 
Update on the Early Assessment Program 
 
The Early Assessment Program (EAP), Trustee Achtenberg said, is among the crowning 
achievements of the faculty, university and Board of Trustees because it has offered tens of 
thousands of California's young people the opportunity to improve their skills before entering the 
California State University (CSU) in a way that increases their retention, success and graduation. 
Executive Vice Chancellor and Chief Academic Officer Ephraim P. Smith added the EAP is one 
of the key initiatives of the Division of Academic Affairs. As the CSU responds to changes in the 
state’s political and economic landscape, the student success projects and short-term objectives 
evolve to meet the needs and expectations of students, communities and employers. The focus is 
on the student experience from pre-entry to graduation, with everything meant to strengthen the 
experience in terms of quality, graduation rates, access and affordability, equity and preparing 
students for lives after the CSU. Many of the efforts fall under the umbrella of the CSU 
Graduation Initiative, designed to improve six-year graduation rates and close achievement gaps 
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by emphasizing engaging high-impact educational practices and the strategic use of data. The 
focus is on college readiness at entry whether as freshmen or transfer students. Eighty-seven 
percent of the students who enter as freshmen come from California's public high schools. In 
2009, the trustees directed the Chancellor’s Office to create the Early Start Program, which 
provides developmental coursework during the summer after high school and before the 
freshman year. The EAP allows students to receive a determination of their college readiness 
before beginning their high school senior year.   
 
Beverly Young, assistant vice chancellor for teacher education and public school programs, 
began the presentation by stating the program’s goal is “to reduce the need for remediation.” 
This includes: (1) giving students an early signal of college readiness; (2) collaborating with the 
state’s high schools; and (3) providing 12th-grade interventions. The EAP began in 2004. The 
early signal informs students if they need to complete additional work in English and/or math 
before entering college. The EAP assesses readiness in a way that does not increase the number 
of tests or testing time in high school. By using the California Standards Test (CST) and adding 
questions to it, the CSU was able to implement the test in a way that greatly enhanced its 
usefulness. The scores are communicated to counselors, students, families and parents. There are 
three possible outcomes: college ready (exempt); college ready (conditionally exempt); and not 
college ready (non-exempt). If college ready, the student can enter college-level English and 
math coursework immediately after enrolling in the CSU. If conditionally ready, students may be 
able to skip additional testing, but have to complete specific coursework in the senior year. If the 
student is not college ready, the student will still need to take placement tests after admission. 
“Conditionally ready" students have been the real focus of the EAP as they are the middle 
ground students. If a student completes a rigorous senior-year course they may keep their 
exemption. The senior-level work may include receiving a grade of C or better in English in the 
CSU’s Expository Reading and Writing Course (ERWC). The ERWC is a full-year, structured 
course focused on fiction and non-fiction text, and enables students to read and write academic 
prose effectively and strategically and deepens students' critical thinking skills. Dr. Young 
reported the CSU has received a grant to follow ERWC and non-ERWC students to measure 
success in English. The CSU offers professional development for high school English teachers as 
well as Strengthening Mathematics Instruction professional development for high school math 
teachers.  
 
The EAP costs the CSU about $8.5 million annually with the largest cost being the preparing and 
scoring of the test by the Educational Testing Service.  Dr. Young said California is in a 
transition year to the Common Core State Standards, and the new testing system known as 
Smarter Balanced. A new state law has made the 11th-grade testing voluntary for districts, but the 
CSU, the California Department of Education and the Community Colleges system have sent a 
letter to every school in the state encouraging EAP participation.  
 
Findings presented by Dr. Marsha Hirano-Nakanishi, assistant vice chancellor for academic 
research and resources, showed that 83 percent of the nearly 470,000 11th-graders volunteered to 
take the EAP in spring 2013, up from 72 percent in 2006. Readiness in English grew from 15 
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percent in 2006 to 23 percent in 2013. School districts have encouraged more students to take 
Algebra II and higher. In 2006, approximately54 percent of students were taking those math 
classes, compared with two-thirds now. At the same time, the number of college-ready high 
school students in math has doubled. About half of fall 2013 first-time freshmen from California 
public high schools were college-ready in English (exempt and conditionally exempt), and 94 
percent of these students were ready for college English when they entered the university. A little 
less than half (48 percent) of fall 2013 first-time freshmen from California public high schools 
were college-ready in mathematics (exempt and conditionally exempt), and 94 percent of these 
students were ready for college mathematics when they entered college. A decade ago, the CSU 
had the goal of reducing the need for remediation to 10 percent. If all California public high 
school CSU first-time freshmen were college-ready at the end of their junior year, the goal would 
have been reached. Only about half of the California public high school first-time freshmen met 
that standard. The other half who were not ready at the end of their junior year or who did not 
take the EAP entered college 42 percent proficient in English and 50 percent proficient in math, 
taking the overall readiness rates down to 68 percent in English and 71 percent in mathematics. 
The good news is that readiness rates have risen across time: California first-time freshmen 
proficiency in English has risen from barely above half in 2000 to more than two-thirds in 2013; 
in math it has gone from 62 percent to 71 percent.  
 
Trustee Bob Linscheid questioned the timing of when the school districts order and give the EAP 
tests, and then report the results. Dr. Young said they traditionally order in December and the 
tests are given in the spring, with one timeframe for the essay and a bit later for the English and 
math sections. The results arrive in August. Because that is close to when students register for 
classes, the CSU has advised students and parents to look at the results of the 10th-grade test for 
pre-planning. Gov. Jerry Brown asked about the numbers on several charts and their correlation. 
Dr. Hirano-Nakanishi explained the difference between the college-ready and the conditionally 
ready students. Dr. Young pointed out that some of the numbers referred to the number of high 
school students taking the tests versus the number of students who enrolled as freshmen. She said 
that 32 percent of the 54,000 incoming freshmen still need remediation in English and 29 percent 
still need remediation in math, both of which are great improvements in the number of proficient 
students.  
 
Dr. Young reported on research conducted by external researchers who reviewed CSU’s 
declining remediation rates, and then tested whether that was because students who were not 
ready for the CSU were not applying. In fact, students who were getting the signal that they were 
either not yet ready via conditional or not yet ready at all were actually applying and coming to 
the CSU in greater numbers; and that the engagement with students in their junior and senior 
years was motivating them to think about college and use their senior year more efficiently. The 
CSU is helping make the senior year more productive and getting students into college-level 
work at a higher rate. Trustee Achtenberg said the entire education system has benefited from the 
EAP because students also enrolling at the University of California and the community colleges 
are better prepared.  
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Trustee Eisen inquired about the numbers of not-ready students. Dr. Hirano-Nakanishi said in 
2006, about 85 percent of the students taking the EAP in English were not ready; in 2010 it was 
79 percent; and in 2013 it is 62 percent, so the trend shows substantial improvement. In math, the 
students who are eligible to take the EAP need to complete Algebra II or higher by their junior 
year.  In 2006, the percentage of EAP math test-takers who were not ready was 45 percent and 
currently is around 40 percent. She added that there is a greatly expanded number of students 
who are eligible to take the test. Gov. Brown asked about Smarter Balanced scores this coming 
year and how that will impact readiness. Dr. Young stated that many students will be taking the 
Smarter Balanced assessment this year, which is why the CSU is encouraging school districts to 
also offer the 11th-grade EAP English and math tests so students can still receive a college 
readiness determination. The following year students should receive a college-readiness indicator 
from the Smarter Balanced assessment.  
 
Update on SB 1440: Student Transfer Achievement Reform Act 
 
Ken O'Donnell, senior director, Student Engagement and Academic Initiatives and Partnerships, 
said transfer students coming to the CSU have been doing college-level work but the problem is 
they come in taking too many courses that do not count in the CSU, plus they have accumulated 
excess units. The SB 1440 legislation was designed so that a student with two years of course 
work would earn an associate degree for transfer that then fits inside a CSU baccalaureate degree 
that could be completed with an additional two years of work. If more students used this 
pathway, he said, the savings to the state should be enormous and benefit the lives of graduates. 
He showed the chart with the most popular transfer majors. He pointed out the campuses and 
degrees that matched, those that were still in progress, and programs not offered at certain CSU 
campuses that would not result in matches. He said the CSU is working with the campuses and 
academic program chairs to procure as many matches as possible. The real challenge is getting 
community college students to opt into the program. For the fall 2013 term, there were 1,000 
students with associate degrees who came to the CSU. Mr. O’Donnell acknowledged that was 
pretty good, but stressed that the program must grow. As such, it was a focus of recent outreach 
efforts at the counselor conferences for the state's high schools and community colleges advisers.  
 
Mr. O’Donnell spoke about the governor signing cleanup legislation (SB 440) that directed the 
community colleges to produce more associate degrees that fit inside the statewide template, and 
authorized areas of emphasis rather than narrow subject areas. For example, there are transfer 
model curriculum (TMCs) in business administration, psychology or English. The areas of 
emphasis approach takes the relatively narrow subjects and widens them so, for example, 
criminal justice also may align with social science. The expectation is that if the community 
colleges can offer a two-year degree in the broader areas of emphasis, more students may opt in. 
The new law also encouraged more focus on marketing such as radio spots. Mr. O’Donnell 
showed the transfer website and pointed out how students can see which degrees are offered at 
which CSU campuses. The CSU is also investigating career technical education in the 
community colleges. Those are pre-professional degrees in areas that students are not necessarily 
preparing for transfer. The CSU is looking at the course work inside those terminal associate 
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degrees that lead to certain health professions, for example, to see if there is enough broadly 
transferable, liberal learning within those two-year degrees that could fit inside a CSU 
baccalaureate degree. That would leverage the work the CSU and community colleges have done 
so far, but apply it in a brand-new way.  
 
Trustee Monville asked about journalism and why a third of the CSU campuses do not have the 
alignment completed. Mr. O’Donnell said for journalism accreditation, journalism schools and 
accreditors want journalists who know about more subjects than journalism and there is a 
requirement that many of the degree-applicable courses come from outside the area of 
journalism. When students take all 18 units of journalism in the lower-division, they run out of 
room in upper-division and they take classes outside of journalism and the CSU cannot confer a 
bachelor's degree in journalism because that subject was not taught at the CSU. Trustee Monville 
mentioned that communication studies might be a solution to the situation. The CSU will begin 
tracking the data showing which community colleges are feeding the most students holding 
which degrees to the CSU and which are the academic programs that students find most 
attractive. Trustee Norton asked how many students were expected for this year and if it is on 
track. Mr. O’Donnell said it was a little higher than expected because earning an associate degree 
is a two-year process, the law is only two years old and the 1,000 students essentially earned an 
associate degree by default. They took all of the right courses and found out after the fact that 
they qualified.  
 
Trustee Monville also inquired about updates on electronic transcripts. Eric Forbes, assistant vice 
chancellor, student academic support, said at a recent intersegmental meeting the CSU 
encouraged the community colleges to continue to build out their electronic transcripts. The CSU 
will visit with community colleges to work together on the issue. Gov. Brown asked if the 
program’s goal is to increase the number of transfer students. Also, he discussed using the lower-
division transfer model curriculum for online courses to facilitate student movement into upper-
division. Dr. Smith said the goal of 1440 was to make it more efficient for students so instead of 
taking a longer pathway of excess units at the community college and CSU, students could have 
a more direct path to graduation with fewer units. That in turn would create access for additional 
students to apply to the CSU. He estimated transfer students would come in at approximately the 
same percentages that they are coming in now, primarily because of the EAP program and 
20,000 fewer students in remediation. Both SB 1440 and EAP create access for additional 
students to come to the CSU whether they are transfer students or freshmen. Dr. Smith said SB 
1440 could increase the CSU headcount if more students come to the CSU through the associate 
degree program.  
 
The CSU Institute for Palliative Care at California State University San Marcos  
 
A year ago, Trustee Achtenberg and California State University San Marcos (CSUSM) President 
Karen Haynes came to the board with a plan for the CSU’s Institute for Palliative Care at Cal 
State San Marcos. Trustee Achtenberg began the first-year update by reporting that the World 
Health Organization predicts that 50 percent of the developed world will be chronically ill by 
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2050. In California, 46 percent of the population has at least one chronic condition and the 
number is rising. It is projected that the state will need an additional one million allied health 
care workers, doctors and nurses. Since the CSU educates more students with health care degrees 
than all California colleges and universities combined, it made sense for the CSU to launch an 
institute for palliative care. It was decided to situate it at Cal State San Marcos because the 
university's partnership with public and private companies has enabled it to launch progressive 
projects and programs such as the professional science masters and biotechnology certificate 
program; the various schools of nursing already have palliative care modules integrated into the 
curriculum. Combining this with President Haynes’ background as a social worker, Trustee 
Achtenberg said it seemed that that President Haynes was the right leader and CSUSM the right 
institution. 
 
With the new institute, President Haynes said the CSU is shaping the future of health care in the 
state and as a model for the nation. Palliative care is a holistic, multi-disciplinary approach to 
health care that can include the contributions of physicians, nurses, social workers, spiritual 
counselors and allied health professionals, all working as a team. The goal is to relieve and 
prevent patient suffering by addressing the physical, emotional, spiritual and social concerns that 
arise with serious or chronic illness. It is not hospice care; it is an approach to health care that 
focuses on the needs of all patients, whether they need short-term, long-term or end-of-life care. 
Initial funding was a three-year $750,000 grant from the California Health Care Foundation and 
a three-year $450,000 grant from the Archstone Foundation. On September 20, 2012, the CSU 
Institute for Palliative Care became the country's first statewide palliative care workforce 
development and community educational initiative. At that launch the institute received a 
matching $1.2 million grant from Darlene Shiley. The institute’s mission is to increase access to 
and awareness of palliative care, by doing three things: 1) educating current professionals; 2) 
educating the future workforce; and 3) building community awareness and advocacy.  
 
Executive Director Helen McNeal said they launched the first-ever comprehensive online 
program to educate nurses and social workers about palliative care in the institute’s first year. In 
partnership with health care chaplaincy in New York City, they launched the program for 
chaplains. The demand for the chaplaincy program has been so great that they are now enrolling 
their 10th cohort. They have trained more than 366 health care professionals through online and 
local non-credit certificate programs. A grant of $100,000 from the Hearst Foundation allowed 
the institute to develop the nurse practitioner fellowship program that will be launched in San 
Diego in January 2014. That curriculum will be available to other interested CSU campuses 
participating in the institute. They have established the planning and implementation team 
comprised of faculty to lead the integration of palliative care across the Cal State San Marcos 
campus. By the end of the first year palliative care was integrated into 24 courses across multiple 
disciplines. With the university’s school of nursing, they partnered to create a post-master’s 
nursing certificate program that has been approved for academic credit. They also completed a 
three-year strategic plan and established a national advisory board. Their course revenues 
generated through extended learning were more than 250 percent of original projections, ending 
the year well positioned for continued progress. Three CSU campuses have committed to joining 
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the institute: San Francisco, Los Angeles and Chico. The institute will conduct a state and 
national survey of palliative care workforce educational needs and the investment plans relating 
to palliative care on the part of healthcare systems and will be developing inter-professional 
curricula that can be delivered face-to-face, online and hybrid formats. The CSU is working to 
change the face of health care, making it more efficient and more patient-centric.  
 
Asked by Trustee Faigin exactly what people experience, Dr. McNeal stated that palliative care 
works with health care professionals to address all of the symptoms associated with a serious or 
chronic illness to improve quality of life. Research has demonstrated it not only improves the 
quality of care received, but also reduced the healthcare system costs and improves the patient's 
longevity. She gave an example of a young woman diagnosed with breast cancer, seriously ill 
with two young children and who was on extremely high amounts of drugs and not getting pain 
relief. The palliative care team realized that no one had spoken to her in Spanish and that her 
concern was for her children. She wanted her children to go back to Mexico to be cared for by 
her mother. So the palliative care team reached an agreement with the mother and the husband in 
the United States. Her pain came from a source that was not physical. Gov. Brown was 
impressed with the program and said he wanted the campus to work with the state’s Secretary of 
Health and Human Services since it sounded like a certificate that could fit within the state’s 
overall health care programming and bring down costs. He called the work extremely important 
and indicated his appreciation to the CSU. 
 
Update on the CSU Nursing Programs  
 
Christine Mallon, assistant vice chancellor for academic programs and faculty development, said 
that more than three million nurses are serving the country currently, but it has been estimated 
that another 1.2 million will need to be trained between 2010 and 2020. According to the non-
profit Institute of Medicine, 80 percent of registered nurses should be trained at the bachelor's 
level, up from 50 percent today, and that the number of nurses who hold doctoral degrees should 
be doubled. However, prospective nursing students are turned away by the thousands. CSU 
Chico was unable to admit 86 percent of the fully qualified nursing applicants for fall 2013, and 
Cal State San Marcos turned away 89 percent. What prevents the CSU from training more nurses 
is a lack of funding, a shortage of nursing faculty and insufficient number of clinical training 
experiences that keep nursing enrollments too low. With interest increasing in Doctor of Nursing 
Practice (DNP) programs such as the two offered through the CSU, Dr. Mallon said there is hope 
that the CSU will begin to hire new faculty to replace those who are retiring, and will be able to 
enroll students who are fully qualified and waiting to get into the CSU. She stated the CSU needs 
to pay the faculty salaries that compete with what nurses can earn in clinical practice and the 
system needs to invest in the clinical training opportunities that are required for students to get 
their nursing licenses. She also showed a video featuring CSU nursing students and faculty that 
was produced by Margaret Brady, professor of nursing at CSU Long Beach.   
 
Chancellor White reported that he had visited many simulation labs during his campus visits and 
spoke to students and faculty. He asked about the limitations at the campuses and the clinical 
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sites, and how the CSU can fill that gap in California and the nation, specifically where the 
responsibilities and opportunities lie around the issue of resources. Dr. Mallon said the easiest fix 
is better cooperation with the community colleges so that their students who are in the associate 
degree of nursing (ADN) program know they can enter the CSU bachelor of science in nursing 
(BSN) program since it is nurses with bachelor’s degrees who are most needed. Secondly, she 
said state resources do not cover the costs of the programs. The low ratio of students to faculty 
make the programs more expensive so better funding is needed. She said the CSU also needs to 
work with the hospitals since the private nursing programs pay for clinical training spots that the 
CSU cannot afford, and the CSU needs to pay nursing faculty at a higher rate to keep current 
faculty and recruit new faculty. Dr. Brady added that a change in what the licensure boards 
requires for the student/faculty ratio would help. She said they have been working with the 
hospitals to use the weekend and night shifts for CSU students since the for-profits take many of 
the day shifts. San Marcos President Haynes said three-quarters of their bachelor’s students come 
through self-support, 40 are state-supported and the majority of the students are supported 
through health care partnerships, the largest of which is with Kaiser Permanente. She estimated 
that CSU trains about 80 percent of the state’s nurses.  
 
Outstanding CSU Faculty Website 
 
Diana Guerin, chair of the Academic Senate, said the website was created to showcase the depth 
and breadth of the CSU’s exemplary faculty. The site showcases the winners of campus-based 
awards programs who have been recognized in one or more of the three main areas of faculty 
responsibility: teaching, scholarship and creative activities and service. The website is intended 
to continue a tradition of the trustees in recognizing faculty contributions to the CSU mission. 
The newly launched site includes distinguished faculty members from 14 campuses; in the 
coming months all 23 campuses will be represented. Marge Gray, assistant vice chancellor of 
communications, presented a tour of the website, pointing out the rotating banner of faculty 
portraits, with information on each of the featured faculty members. The profiles are organized 
by faculty responsibility and campus. Trustee Norton complimented the site on its content.  
 
Trustee Achtenberg adjourned the meeting.  
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Summary 
 
This initiative began in 2009 when the presidents and provosts of all 23 California State 
University (CSU) campuses committed to joining Access to Success, a multi-state project 
organized by the National Association of System Heads and the Education Trust. As a system, 
the CSU has identified a baseline cohort of students whose six-year graduation rate across all 
campuses was 46 percent.  From there, each campus committed to moving its own graduation 
rate into the top quartile within a group of its peers, as identified by Education Trust.  Campuses 
already in the top quartile of their peers pledged to improve by six percentage points. If the 
initiative is successful, by 2015 the systemwide six-year graduation rates will increase by 8 
percentage points from 46 percent to 54 percent, and the gap in those rates between students of 
color and other students will shrink by half. 
 
The Executive Vice Chancellor and Chief Academic Officer provides leadership for the 
Graduation Initiative from the Office of the Chancellor. Three project liaisons interact with CSU 
campuses, whose local Graduation Initiative teams are typically led by the provost and vice 
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president for student affairs. Since the launch, the CO team has visited each campus in the 
system; hosted workshops around data-driven decision making, worked to close equity gaps; 
fostered educational practices; and coordinated regular reporting among the campuses, system 
leadership and the national Access to Success group. Interaction remains focused on data, 
specifically the fall census reports that indicate if the initiative is on track to meet its targets. 
 
Since taking office, Chancellor Timothy White has supported the initiative in important ways: 

• Hosted a spring webcast to the system to highlight extraordinary progress on the Long 
Beach and Fresno campuses, and added his personal support. 

• Allocated $7.2 million in support of “Academic and Student Support Programs” proposed 
by campuses and customized to local context. 

• Added “completion” to the CSU message of “access, affordability and quality,” 
promoting student success at every opportunity. 

 
Currently, it is uncertain if the fall 2009 cohort will reach its target six-year graduation rates in 
2015. Based on that group’s year-to-year persistence so far, the overall graduation rate target 
appears within reach, but it looks less likely that the achievement gap will be cut in half. 
 
One lasting benefit of the Graduation Initiative is likely to be the new systemwide Student 
Success Dashboard. The dashboard is intended to help campus leaders better understand the 
problem of low graduation rates, diagnose contributing factors and target responses based on 
these discoveries. It provides campus leaders with a set of analytical tools that go beyond 
descriptive statistics and apply methods such as predictive modeling to give new insights into 
factors that affect student progress toward a degree. 
 
As demand for accountability grows, institutions are asked to present data to document their 
accomplishments, particularly in the area of student success. These data not only focus on overall 
graduation rates, but also create accountability metrics for specific programs and interventions. 
Using the dashboard, campus leaders can monitor on-track indicators and better understand not 
only which milestones students are failing to reach, but also why they are not reaching them. 
Ultimately, this analytical tool can help campuses design interventions or policy changes to 
increase student success and gauge the impact of their interventions. 
 
It is expected that the dashboard will help the system office as well as the campuses, as system 
administrators learn how the system can better support campus efforts to improve graduation 
rates and reduce achievement gaps. Many interventions –perhaps most of them – work best 
locally, as responses to a particular context.  Others, such as eAdvising, degree audit and high-
impact educational practices, may benefit from a consistent approach. 
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Background 
 
Within six months of launching the Enrollment Bottleneck Solution Initiative designed to 
accelerate student progress and decrease bottlenecks that negatively impact students, a study of 
bottleneck courses was conducted by surveying all California State University (CSU) 
undergraduate department chairs. The purpose was to ascertain where and why bottleneck 
courses occurred throughout the CSU during the 2012-2013 academic year. That survey, in 
concert with a survey currently being conducted to determine the impact of bottleneck courses 
on students, will help guide future phases and initiatives. The student survey is in the data 
collection stage and the final report will be presented to the Board of Trustees this May. 
 
The first phase of the Enrollment Bottleneck Solution Initiative focused on projects that could 
be immediately implemented and would produce scalable and sustainable results. The CSU 
launched a website (http://www.calstate.edu/courseredesign) that provides an overview of the 
initiative, and the four types of bottlenecks being addressed in this first phase: (1) Student 
Readiness and Curricular Bottlenecks, (2) Place-bound Bottlenecks, (3) Facilities Bottlenecks 
and (4) Advising and Scheduling Bottlenecks.  

 
Addressing Student Readiness and Curricular Bottlenecks  
 
Proven Practices for Course Redesign – Eight (8) eAcademies engaged 169 CSU faculty 
from 22 CSU campuses to share instructional strategies and technologies to improve student 
success (reduce D, W, F, U, I grades). The most recent eAcademy focused on strategies for 
moving general education science courses to fully online formats. The STEM disciplines and 
courses addressed in the eAcademies were aligned with the bottleneck priorities identified by 
the survey of department chairs. The faculty evaluated the eAcademies as very valuable in 
providing strategies to redesign their courses with innovative and “proven” instructional 

http://www.calstate.edu/courseredesign
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strategies and technologies. A core of faculty leaders from these eAcademies met in mid-
January to share progress on their redesign efforts and identify issues that continue to be 
barriers for faculty and students. 
 
The eAcademies were the first step to connect faculty who share instructional responsibilities 
across the CSU. The momentum created through the eAcademies is being reinforced by the 
CSU Online Professional Learning Community. Virtual workshops and webinars being 
delivered every two weeks  address a variety of course redesign topics: engaging 21st century 
learners; aligning student learning outcomes with assessment; reviewing CSU’s quality online 
learning and teaching (QOLT) rubric and program, affordable learning solutions, accessibility 
and universal design for learning; and providing early warning and learning analytics, the 
“flipped classroom,” lecture capture/online videos, online homework and supplemental 
instruction. About 220 faculty participated in the first six virtual workshops.  Sixty-two faculty 
from 14 campuses have committed to a year-long redesign of their courses to date and there 
may be additional commitments from faculty who participated in the December 2013 
eAcademy. The professional development services address one of the needs identified by the 
survey of department chairs; one cause of bottlenecks is the availability of skilled faculty to 
teach the bottleneck courses. 
 
The midterm status reports received from a majority of faculty in the Proven Practices program 
demonstrate broad coverage of academic disciplines and have significant potential for impact.  
Among Proven Practices program faculty, redesigns are underway in a variety of disciplines 
including math, chemistry, physics, engineering, and four other disciplines. Faculty estimate 
that their redesigns will impact more than 10,433 students across two semesters, with a 
median section enrollment of 52 students per redesigned course. 
 
Promising Practices for Course Redesign – Seventy-seven awards were made to 19 
campuses to redesign bottleneck courses in a variety of disciplines including biology, 
chemistry, math, history, and 25 other disciplines, with a goal of improving student success 
and increasing access. The average redesign award is $33,000 per course.  
All redesign proposals incorporate the use of innovative technology, and 19 of the 77 courses 
will be redesigned for fully online delivery. Once taught and student success measured, some 
of these courses may become “proven redesign” models, with eAcademies held to share 
successful methods and strategies with other CSU faculty. 
 
Based on our midterm survey of progress faculty estimate that their redesigns will impact 
more than 43,531 students across two semesters, with a median section enrollment of 70 
students per redesigned course. These redesigns are being quickly completed with over 75 
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percent of the projects making significant progress within 5 months of receiving their awards. 
 
Documenting and Sharing Redesign Practices and Outcomes: Faculty participating in the 
Proven and Promising Practices programs will build ePortfolios that capture the innovations in 
pedagogy, technologies, and outcomes, and will include evidence of improved student success 
while maintaining the quality of instruction and student learning outcomes. These ePortolios 
will be published within an online library so all CSU faculty can easily learn from their 
colleagues’ efforts and outcomes. A selection of ePortfolios will be showcased in May 2014. 
 
In addition, campus institutional research directors, in coordination with the Chancellor's 
Office Analytic Studies department, will calculate the changes in student grades of D, W, and 
F that result from the redesigns. These figures will provide immediate measures of the impact 
of these programs on students, although the full impact of the redesigns will take several 
semesters to collect. Faculty will also collect other measures documenting improvements in 
student mastery of learning outcomes and changes in student satisfaction with the courses.   

 
Addressing Place-Bound Bottlenecks 
 
CourseMatch Program: In fall 2013, 11 CSU campuses provided students access to 33 fully 
online courses and in the 2014 winter quarter/spring semester, 16 CSU campuses are providing 
access to 44 fully online courses to any CSU student eligible for CourseMatch. CourseMatch 
provides students with an additional option to take fully online articulated courses from another 
CSU. Almost 200 CSU students from 15 different campuses applied for the CourseMatch 
program in fall 2013.  By March 2014, we can report the number of students that completed 
these CourseMatch classes, as well as the number of CourseMatch enrollment applications for 
winter/spring 2014.  The CourseMatch website provides a simple process for CSU students to 
find and apply for concurrent enrollment in these courses (www.calstate.edu/onlinecourses).  
Students can check their eligibility to take a CourseMatch course and complete an online self- 
assessment of their readiness to succeed in an online course. The courses selected for 
CourseMatch have demonstrated a record of student success. 

Student Use of The CourseMatch Website: The winter/spring CourseMatch website 
launched December 8, 2013. By January 7, 2014, the website has had more that 18,000 total 
visits, with 13,000 unique visitors. On January 7th alone, the website had more than 1,500 
visits, representing an accelerating usage of the CourseMatch website. 
 
The current structure of CourseMatch is a “warm-up act” for AB 386, which requires the CSU 
to provide a list of all the fully online courses available across the CSU. The CSU will create a 
simple online enrollment and registration process to take the course at the “host” campus by 

http://www.calstate.edu/onlinecourses
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fall 2014 and have the full program up and running for implementation in fall 2015. To 
implement these legislative requirements, the Chancellor’s Office, in consultation with 
campuses, will design and implement scalable technology and business services. 
 
A quality assurance program supporting CourseMatch, Proven Course Redesign and Promising 
Practices projects also will be scaling up in spring 2014. In collaboration with the Academic 
Senate of the CSU, the CSU Faculty Development Council and the Chancellor’s Office 
Institute for Teaching and Learning, Academic Technology Services will provide a suite of 
tools and professional development programs for the design and assessment of the quality of 
online learning and teaching to improve student success and upholding academic integrity. The 
components of the quality assurance program will include the following services and these 
services will be scaled systemwide:   
 

• Quality Online Learning and Teaching (QOLT) project which provides: 
o A detailed 54-item rubric for evaluating the qualities of the instructional design 

of hybrid and fully online courses 
o Recognition program for faculty efforts in quality course design 
o Dissemination of best practices for hybrid-online teaching and learning 

• Quality Matters™ 
o Nationally recognized program for online course quality certification 
o Nationally recognized peer-reviewer training and certification for evaluating the 

quality of online courses 
• Academic Integrity 

o Training in ways to enhance academic integrity and reduce cheating 
o Adopting technologies for detecting plagiarism and proctoring online exams 
o Maintaining the quality and rigor of courses and learning outcomes 

 
Addressing Facilities Bottlenecks 

Virtual Labs: Enrollment demands can outpace the physical capacity of a campus to offer 
laboratory sections in safe, well-equipped facilities, especially in the science, technology, 
engineering and math (STEM) disciplines. The virtual labs program addresses one of the needs 
identified by the survey of department chairs; limited facilities are one of the key factors 
determining program impaction, such as biology labs for biology majors. One strategy is to 
create hybrid/virtual laboratory courses for general education or pre-requisite STEM courses 
that do not require students to have an advanced wet-lab experience. These courses will allow 
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campuses with limited laboratory space to offer more sections of lab sciences without 
compromising learning outcomes traditionally offered only in conventional wet-labs.   
 
Working with CSU STEM faculty, who are leaders in the design and implementation of virtual 
labs, Chancellor’s Office Academic Technology Services (COATS) delivered eAcademy and 
online community programs to support faculty in their adoption of virtual STEM labs for 
hybrid lab courses. Faculty from CSU Los Angeles are leading the way in 2013-2014 with a 
project evaluating the use of virtual labs in otherwise traditional courses. In addition to 
commercial virtual lab products by Pearson/CSU and SmartScience for which COATS 
negotiated attractive pricing, the Chancellor’s Office continues to leverage the CSU-MERLOT 
project to provide easy and free access to high-quality virtual labs. The CSU is continuing to 
explore virtual lab options and consult with CSU faculty as we investigate the effective and 
appropriate use of virtual labs. 
 
 
Addressing Advising and Scheduling Bottlenecks 
 
eAdvising: All 23 campuses developed individual four-year plans to implement new 
technologies for faculty, staff and students to determine clear pathways to graduation, track 
progress to degree and offer a course schedule in line with student demand for general 
education and major courses.  The eAdvising program addresses one of the needs identified by 
the survey of department chairs; optimally scheduling facilities and advising students to 
available course offerings are key factors for improving enrollment bottlenecks.  For the first 
year, the campuses were grouped into six cohorts, based on their common needs related to the 
current status of their degree audit system. A significant number of campuses identified the 
improvement of the degree audit as the first step toward revitalizing their eAdvising solutions.  
As campuses improve their degree audits, they will be re-grouped in the coming years based on 
their interest in other tools such as academic planners, early warning intervention, predictive 
analytics and advanced communication methodologies. Those campuses with enhanced degree 
audits will introduce many of these new tools in the first year. The use of cohorts will allow the 
CSU to leverage its buying power and give campuses the opportunity to learn from one another 
as new solutions are implemented. College Scheduler, an online tool to help students see a 
variety of options in scheduling their courses each term, is an example of the innovative 
strategies supported with funding for eAdvising. 
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Background 
 
In 2000, San Diego State University (SDSU) partnered with the Sweetwater Union High School 
District to create a program that would bring new educational opportunities to Sweetwater 
graduates. In addition to extensive collaboration focusing on the rigor and content of curriculum 
between faculty in both organizations, middle and high school students participating in the 
Compact for Success Program focus on meeting five achievement benchmarks. All Sweetwater 
students meeting these benchmarks would be guaranteed admission to SDSU. Since that time, 
SDSU has launched similar programs with other schools in the region and experienced 
promising outcomes for participating students.  
 
In 2007, California State University San Marcos, following a similar approach, launched the 
PACE Promise program with the San Marcos Unified School District, guaranteeing graduates of 
the school district admission to CSU San Marcos upon fulfilling specific benchmarks during 
high school. In 2008 and 2009, CSU Long Beach and San Francisco State University launched 
admission promise programs in their local school districts. Today, nine CSU campuses have 
launched guaranteed admission “promise” programs with local school districts.   
 
 
 
 

http://compactforsuccess.sdsu.edu/compact/partners-sponsors.aspx#suhsd
http://compactforsuccess.sdsu.edu/compact/partners-sponsors.aspx#suhsd
http://compactforsuccess.sdsu.edu/compact/benchmarks.aspx
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Summary 
 
The CSU promise programs provide students and families with personalized, step-by-step plans 
for college preparation. Often beginning in middle school, students must work to fulfill program 
expectations and benchmarks. Meeting these requirements also prepares them for admission to 
most California public and private universities and colleges. By improving college options for 
this generation of students, these programs often provide enhanced outreach and academic 
preparation services including visits to the university campus, enhanced test preparation for 
English and math entry-level exams, and extensive information regarding college preparation, 
admission and financial aid. The promise programs provide a vital link from the secondary 
school setting to the university. 
 
Through a variety of activities, the programs intend to expand access to higher education, 
improve retention and college completion for underrepresented students, raise academic 
expectations and target every student in every participating school. While each promise program 
includes unique components that reflect the local school and university community, common 
requirements for student participation include: 
 

• Completion of all “a-g” college preparatory course requirements and achievement of 
CSU admission eligibility 

• Demonstration of college-readiness in English and mathematics prior to enrollment 
• Attendance, participation and continuous enrollment benchmarks 
• Application for federal and state financial aid programs 

 
While participating students have the benefit of clear roadmaps to their local CSU campus 
through guaranteed admission, additional support services, and often, locally raised financial 
scholarships, the benefits to the university community also are significant. Campuses with 
promise programs have found increasing college participation rates for partnering school 
districts; significantly reduced need for remedial education for students from partnering school 
districts; improved alignment between secondary and university curriculum; and increased 
retention and graduation rates for promise students. 
 
 



Information Item 
Agenda Item 5 

January 28-29, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATIONAL POLICY 
 

The Sony Electronics Faculty Awards for Innovative Instruction with Technology 
 
Presentation By 
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Academic Technology Services 
 
 
The California State University (CSU) Office of the Chancellor and Sony Electronics, Inc. in 
partnership with Intel Corporation, are pleased to announce a fourth year of awards for the Sony 
Electronics Faculty Award for Innovative Instruction with Technology. This award recognizes 
CSU’s early career faculty, acknowledging their current and potential innovative use of 
technology in delivering quality and affordable education to students and encouraging continued 
achievements in teaching. The award consists of a VAIO computer, LCD TV, Sony Reader, web 
camera as well as other technologies that will be the awardees’ personal property. 
 
Each year, four CSU campuses are selected to receive the award. This year faculty from 
Bakersfield, Chico, San Marcos and Sonoma were eligible. The Sony eligibility criteria are 
tenured/tenure-track faculty members from all fields who have received their terminal degrees 
within the last seven years and who are actively involved in teaching with technology in 
innovative ways that lead to student success. Nominees submit a current curriculum vitae and a 
brief statement about current and anticipated innovative teaching with technologies.   
 

Sony Electronics Faculty Awards for Innovative Instruction with Technology  
2013 CSU Faculty Awardees: 

 
Bakersfield Phyllis Ann Heintz Assistant Professor, Department of Nursing 

Chico Zachary Justus 
Assistant Professor, Department of Communication 
Arts and Sciences 

San Marcos Stephen Alan Tsui Assistant Professor, Department of Physics 

Sonoma  Jessica Parker 
Assistant Professor, Department of Curriculum 
Studies and Secondary Education 

 
 



  
 

AGENDA 
 

COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 
 
Meeting: 3:00 p.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2014 
  Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
 
 Rebecca D. Eisen, Chair  
 J. Lawrence Norton, Vice Chair 
 Douglas Faigin 
 Margaret Fortune 
 William Hauck 
 Lou Monville 
 Cipriano Vargas 
  
 
Consent Items 
  Approval of Minutes of Meeting of November 5-6, 2013 
 

1. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, Non-State Funded, Action 
2. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, State Funded Action 

 
Discussion Items 

3. Status Report on the 2014-2015 State Funded Capital Outlay Program-Governor’s 
Budget, Information 

4.   Approval of Schematic Plans, Action 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING OF 
COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

 
Trustees of the California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 5-6, 2013 

 
Members Present 
 
Rebecca D. Eisen, Chair 
Edmund G. Brown, Jr., Governor 
Douglas Faigin 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
Lou Monville 
Cipriano Vargas 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Trustee Eisen acknowledged Trustee Peter Mehas, previous chair of the committee on Campus 
Planning, Buildings and Grounds, remembering him as a dedicated trustee who demonstrated 
both leadership and fellowship to his board colleagues. Trustee Mehas passed away in the 
interim since the September Board of Trustees’ meeting. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
The minutes for the September 2013 meeting were approved as submitted. 
 
Acceptance of Interest in Real Property, Sonoma State University 
 
Assistant Vice Chancellor Elvyra F. San Juan presented the item with the use of a PowerPoint 
presentation. The land due diligence has been completed and no issues were identified. Staff 
recommends approval. 
 
The committee recommended approval by the board of the proposed resolution (RCPBG 11-13-
10). 
 
Approve the Campus Master Plan Revision for the California State Polytechnic University, 
Pomona Administration Replacement Facility 
 
With the use of a PowerPoint presentation, Ms. San Juan presented the item to approve the 
campus master plan revision and project level environmental analysis for the Administration 
Replacement Facility for California State Polytechnic University, Pomona. The campus 
completed an Initial Study and a Mitigated Negative Declaration to meet CEQA compliance. 
Staff recommends approval. 
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President Ortiz commented that the project replaces a signature building on the campus (CLA) 
that is located on an active fault. The replacement facility was found to be the best solution as the 
cost of a seismic retrofit of the existing building would cost upward of $85 to $100 million, and 
the building would still be sitting on the fault. 
 
The committee recommended approval by the board of the proposed resolution (RCPBG 11-13-
11). 
 
Approve the 2014-2015 State and Non-State Funded Capital Outlay Program and the  
2014-2015 through 2018-2019 State and Non-State Funded Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Program 
 
Ms. San Juan presented the state and non-state funded five-year capital improvement program 
2014-2015 through 2018-2019 to the board for approval that included the 2014 action year 
request. With the use of a PowerPoint, Ms. San Juan provided background on program funding 
for the CSU’s capital outlay program, a summary of what is included in the five-year capital 
improvement program which includes the action year priority lists for state and non-state funded 
capital programs, and highlights of current discussions regarding alternative financing options 
for the capital program. 
 
In summary, the state funded program request for the 2014-2015 capital program is  
$456.4 million; the non-state funded program request is $14.3 million. The state and non-state 
funded five-year capital improvement program request for 2014-2015 through 2018-2019 is  
$7 billion and $3.7 billion, respectively. 
 
Trustee Vargas asked how is it determined to renovate versus replace an older facility, 
referencing specifically the Science II Replacement Building, Phase 2 project at CSU 
Sacramento, currently number 18 on the 2014-2015 priority list. Ms. San Juan responded stating 
that for such projects campuses are requested to perform a feasibility study and obtain an 
assessment of costs to renovate the facility to serve the academic program. Other factors 
considered are whether there will be a change in use and what is the associated cost (e.g., change 
in science laboratory needs over the past 30 to 40 years) and what are the projected enrollment 
numbers. Typically, if it were to cost 75 percent or more to renovate the existing facility versus 
to build new, the recommendation will be to build new. In the case of the CSU Sacramento 
project, there are two additional buildings constructed in the 1950s that are proposed to be 
demolished and whose functional space is proposed for inclusion in the new replacement 
building. 
 
Trustee Faigin asked how the priority list functions when there is limited funding. Ms. San Juan 
confirmed that the project justifications are submitted to Department of Finance and this year, 
CSU submitted (projects 1 through 18) down to the Sacramento Science II project, based on 
historical funding levels. 
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Trustee Eisen asked about the discretion delegated to the chancellor to make some modifications 
to the priority order in certain circumstances. Ms. San Juan explained that a change in the source 
and limitation of funding may warrant a change in priority. For example, if federal funds are 
made available for a specific type of project, the CSU would adjust the priority list in order to 
leverage those funds. 
 
Governor Brown stated that the item illustrated the need to tie the cost of the capital program 
with operating costs as they are linked in multiple ways. That is why the governor’s office is 
proposing that the CSU incorporate capital support into the general fund. Increasing enrollment 
needs to be tied to capital outlay impacts, compensation, course offerings, building maintenance, 
bottleneck courses and work load. Analysis of the spending choices and their impacts would lead 
to a meaningful discussion on future budgets. New buildings are attractive but there is an 
amenities race that could push up costs and student fees. 
 
Ms. San Juan noted that planning tools are used in the capital process that looks at projected 
enrollment as compared to seat capacity. These analyses engage both the academic planning and 
facilities space databases, and help identify areas where the capital program can bolster the 
academic program with needed capital investment. The current capital outlay priorities are to 
reinvest in the renewal of existing infrastructure across the system as opposed to new buildings. 
The increase in student housing beds has prompted more amenities to support student life with a 
resulting increase in the number of recreation/wellness centers that are requested by the students. 
Ms. San Juan agreed that staff could do a better job presenting the change in support budget 
operating costs as a result of new buildings. This information is available and is transmitted to 
the Department of Finance as part of the project justification. 
 
Chancellor White acknowledged the governor’s comments and also stated how the report (the 
capital improvement program) does not adequately explain the impact that a new building can 
have on a bottleneck course as a result of new flexible space versus old space that has no 
flexibility in scheduling different types of teaching due to both lack of technology and physical 
limitations. There are relationships between buildings that are impacted by the capital program 
that are not easily illustrated. 
 
Governor Brown remarked that this past year the state increased the University of California’s 
(UC) general fund to enable the UC to pay its general obligation bond payments within its 
support budget, and in addition authorized the UC to refinance (State Public Works Board lease 
revenue) bonds to achieve cashflow savings. 
 
Trustee Monville asked about the impact of facilities upgrades (capital investment) to the 
operating budget in terms of improved efficiencies, cost savings and sustainability. Ms. San Juan 
responded that the CSU’s energy consumption per square foot has declined over time and capital 
investment does make buildings more efficient. Unfortunately, with the loss of general obligation 
bond funding since 2006, the CSU has been unable to leverage all the investor-owned-utility 
incentive funding to further improve the physical plant through energy efficiency projects. 
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Trustee Achtenberg asked if the financing for student unions and health facilities comes from 
student assessments approved through a student referendum vote. Ms. San Juan confirmed that 
such facilities are funded via student fees approved through a student fee referendum or via the 
alternative consultative method. 
 
The committee recommended approval by the board of the proposed resolution (RCPBG 11-13-
12). 
 
Approve Categories and Criteria for the State Funded Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Program 2015-2016 through 2019-2020  
 
Ms. San Juan presented the categories and criteria which establish priorities for funding of the 
five-year capital improvement program, 2015-2016 through 2019-2020. In light of the recent 
ongoing decline in capital funding, the item proposed a change from previous years, to limit 
(decrease) the number of projects proposed in each of the three planning years (2017-2019) to 
one from three. Should funding and financing options improve, staff would return to the board to 
request a revision to the categories and criteria. This would result in a reduced capital program 
overall value. 
 
Trustee Eisen remarked that the proposed resolution more closely aligns capital need with 
potential funding. 
 
Chancellor White expressed concern of understating the CSU’s actual capital need to the trustees 
and the State of California with the proposed change to categories and criteria, noting that while 
the resulting capital program may be more in alignment with funding, it would mask the true 
need on the capital side. Ms. San Juan acknowledged that the proposal would suggest an 
artificial reduction in need, but in anticipating the financing program on the support budget side 
of approximately $280 million per year for the next three years, this is a reasonable plan.  
Ms. San Juan also stated that reports from the facilities renewal model, which estimates the 
renewal backlog at $1.7 billion, can convey the CSU’s needs. 
 
Trustee Glazer expressed agreement with the chancellor’s assessment of the proposed categories 
and criteria change. He inquired whether any trustee recalled how need was balanced against 
anticipated funding when general obligation bond funds were available. 
 
Assistant Vice Chancellor Karen Y. Zamarripa stated that she has worked on the last several 
general obligation bond negotiations. As the bonds involve not only the other segments of higher 
education (University of California and California Community Colleges) but also K-12, there is a 
fair amount of negotiating for fair share. From those experiences, Ms. Zamarripa advised against 
coming into the negotiations with a lower number; she saw that while a segment’s share may 
drop over the course of discussions, it would not go up. 
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Trustee Eisen asked for clarification, that should the proposed categories and criteria go into 
effect, the CSU’s documented need will still be demonstrably large in comparison to funding 
expectations, even with the elimination of some projects from the list. Ms. San Juan concurred. 
 
Trustee Eisen asked Chancellor White if that clarification allayed his concerns. 
 
Chancellor White requested the item be deferred to allow for staff conversation before taking 
action. 
 
Trustee Eisen, with committee concurrence, recessed the committee with respect to item 4. The 
committee would be reconvened in the morning. 
 
Trustee Monville (standing in for Chair Linscheid) noted that the Committee on Campus 
Planning, Buildings and Grounds recessed to bring back item 4. 
 
Wednesday, November 6, Trustee Eisen reconvened the Committee on Campus Planning, 
Buildings and Grounds to hear item 4, and informed the committee that a revised item and 
attachment were presented for their consideration. 
 
Ms. San Juan presented the revised item explaining the change was not to reduce the number of 
projects allowed for each of the three planning years (2017-2019). Thus, the revised item is what 
has been followed in recent years, allowing three projects per planning year.  
 
The committee recommended approval by the board of the proposed resolution (RCPBG 11-13-
13). 
 
With no additional questions, Trustee Eisen adjourned the meeting. 
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COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

 
Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, Non-State Funded 
 
Presentation by 
 
Elvyra F. San Juan 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Capital Planning, Design and Construction 
 
Summary 
 
This item requests approval to amend the 2013-2014 non-state capital outlay program to include 
the following projects: 
 
1. San Diego State University 

Zura Hall Renovation PWCE1 $53,292,000 
 
San Diego State University wishes to proceed with the renovation of Zura Hall (#51), a nine-
story freshmen residence hall constructed in 1968. The renovation and systems upgrade for the 
141,000 gross square feet (GSF) facility will increase housing density from 585 to 606 beds, 
with the capacity to utilize triple occupancy up to 800 beds. Accessibility, life/fire safety 
systems, and restroom improvements will be made in accord with the current building code. The 
project scope includes the addition of program space to meet student needs for academic 
achievement and socialization. 
 
The project will be financed from the California State University (CSU) Systemwide Revenue 
Bond program, less a $2 million contribution from housing reserves. The bonds will be repaid 
from housing revenue. 
 
2. San Diego State University 

Basketball Performance Center PWCE $14,500,000 
 
San Diego State University wishes to proceed with the construction of a Basketball Performance 
Center (#89) for the men’s and women’s intercollegiate basketball programs. The Basketball 
Performance Center (23,500 GSF) will be a two-story facility equipped with two full-length 
courts, locker rooms, film rooms, team lounges, an athletic training room, and coaches’ locker 
rooms. The new facility will provide dedicated practice courts and improved space to support the 
Aztec basketball programs.  
 
                                                 
1 Project phases: P – Preliminary Plans, W – Working Drawings, C – Construction, E – Equipment 
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The project will be primarily donor funded, and augmented with campus contributions from non-
state resources if needed. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that 
the 2013-2014 non-state funded capital outlay program is amended to include the 
following two projects at San Diego State University: 1) $53,292,000 for 
preliminary plans, working drawings, construction and equipment for the Zura 
Hall Renovation; and 2) $14,500,000 for preliminary plans, working drawings, 
construction and equipment for the Basketball Performance Center. 
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COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

 
Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, State Funded 
  
Presentation by 
 
Elvyra F. San Juan 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Capital Planning, Design and Construction 
 
Summary 
 
This item requests approval to amend the 2013-2014 state capital outlay program to include the 
following projects: 
 
1. California Maritime Academy 

Student Service Center Renovation PWC1 $1,030,000 
 
California Maritime Academy wishes to proceed with the renovation of the former Dining Hall 
(#16) to build a Student Service Center. The existing facility (9,611 gross square feet (GSF)) was 
constructed in 1955 and served as the campus’ main food venue until fall 2013 when the new 
Dining Center (#40) opened. The proposed project will renovate the interior of the building to 
accommodate student services such as financial aid and career advising, currently housed in a 
temporary modular, and the registrar, currently housed in the Faculty Office Building (#3). The 
renovation will convert the kitchen storage area to a student study lounge, and the baking area 
will accommodate a future coffee shop.  
 
The replacement of building systems as well as accessibility improvements is included in the 
project budget. At the completion of this project, the temporary financial aid modular will be 
removed from the campus and space will become available in the Faculty Office Building to help 
relieve the shortfall in faculty offices. 
 
The project will be funded from interest earned on student fee revenue ($330,000) and capital 
trust funds ($700,000). Additional repair components (such as plumbing, ventilation and 
electrical) will also be completed. The campus support budget will be used to fund these 
maintenance and repair costs. 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 Project phases: P – Preliminary Plans, W – Working Drawings, C – Construction 
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2. California State Polytechnic University, Pomona 
 Hot Water and Chilled Water Systems Expansion PWC $7,045,000 
 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona wishes to proceed with the design and 
construction of an expansion to the existing central hot water (HW) and chilled water (CHW) 
systems to provide an efficient and cost-effective means to heat and cool the new Administration 
Replacement Facility (currently in design), and to serve additional future planned buildings. The 
project will consist of extending the HW and CHW distribution pipelines to the new building site 
in Lot C and making improvements to the chilled water temperature differential in the existing 
connected buildings to gain cooling capacity. The system expansion will create a loop system that 
will improve the reliability of the distribution system. Additional boilers will be installed in the 
existing Library Mechanical Equipment facility (#16) to serve the new building. 
 
This project will allow the campus to better utilize the existing HW and CHW plants and the 
thermal energy storage system to provide an efficient means to heat and cool current and future 
planned buildings. This project will reduce the overall electrical and natural gas consumption for 
the campus, resulting in the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. It will also improve the shift 
of electrical usage to less expensive off-peak hours to further reduce energy costs. 
 
This project will be financed through equipment-lease financing and energy incentives. The loan 
will be repaid from the projected annual avoided utility costs. 
 
The following resolution is recommended for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that 
the 2013-2014 state funded capital outlay program is amended to include:  
1) $1,030,000 for preliminary plans, working drawings and construction for the 
California Maritime Academy Student Service Center Renovation; and  
2) $7,045,000 for preliminary plans, working drawings and construction for the 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona Hot Water and Chilled Water 
Systems Expansion. 
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COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

 
Status Report on the 2014-2015 State Funded Capital Outlay Program—Governor’s Budget 
 
Presentation By 
 
Elvyra F. San Juan 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Capital Planning, Design and Construction 
 
Summary 
 
This item will provide an update on the California State University’s (CSU) 2014-2015 state 
funded capital outlay program request and the funding level included in the governor’s budget.  
 
Background 
 
The CSU’s proposed state funded 2014-2015 capital outlay program was presented at the 
November 2013 Board of Trustees’ meeting. The trustees approved the entire state funded 
priority list (32 projects) of $456 million for the 2014-2015 capital outlay program. Of the $456 
million amount, program documentation for 18 projects totaling $415.9 million has been 
submitted to the Department of Finance. Due to the uncertainty of the potential funding source 
for the 2014-2015 state capital program, the board approved resolutions directing staff to 
negotiate with the administration and the legislature during the budget process to maximize 
funding opportunities for the campuses.  
 
Governor’s Budget Proposal 
 
The governor included capital funding of $5,766,000 in the January budget proposal to fund 
three equipment projects out of the 18 projects submitted to the Department of Finance. The 
projects are: 
 

Campus Project Amount 
Monterey Bay Academic Building II $1,965,000 
Chico Taylor II Replacement Building $2,740,000 
East Bay Warren Hall Replacement Building $1,061,000 
Total  $5,766,000 

 
The funds will pay for moveable equipment like desks, chairs, kilns, recording studio consoles, 
cabinets, etc. needed to make the new buildings operable and ready for students, faculty and staff 
use. Remaining general obligation bond funds are the identified proposed funding source for the 
three equipment projects. 
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COMMITTEE ON CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

 
Approval of Schematic Plans 
 
Presentation By 
 
Elvyra F. San Juan 
Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Capital Planning, Design and Construction 
 
Summary 
 
Schematic plans for the following project will be presented for approval: 
 
San Diego State University – Basketball Performance Center 
Project Architect: JCJ Architecture 
Design/Build Contractor: Hunt Construction 
 
Background and Scope 
 
San Diego State University proposes to construct a Basketball Performance Center (#89) to 
provide improved space to support the Aztec men’s and women’s intercollegiate basketball 
programs. The project will be located at the western terminus of the Aztec Walk esplanade and 
adjacent to the Parma Payne Goodall Alumni Center (#88) in the southwest quadrant of the 
campus.  
 
The two-story building (23,460 gross square feet (GSF)) will provide locker rooms for players 
and coaches, film rooms, team lounges, and an athletic training room in the lower level; the 
upper level will provide dedicated practice courts to support the Aztec men’s and women’s 
basketball programs and will aid in the recruitment and retention of skilled players and 
coaches. The building design will complement the Alumni Center and the Fowler Athletics 
Center (#67) located across Aztec Walk. 
 
The facility will feature a steel framed structure with long span trusses accommodating two 
full-length basketball courts, cement stucco exterior skin and an exterior promenade that ties to 
the adjacent Alumni Center. The lower level of the facility will be recessed below grade to 
reduce massing.  
 
Sustainable features incorporated into the building’s design include energy efficient lighting and 
control systems used in conjunction with natural lighting. The building will utilize a high 
efficiency envelope, clerestory windows and light wells to illuminate the lower level. The facility 
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cooling requirements will be served by the efficient thermal storage capacity of the central plant. 
Drought tolerant landscape and water efficient irrigation systems will sustain the exterior 
grounds.  
 
Timing (Estimated) 
 
Preliminary Plans Completed March 2014 
Working Drawings Completed  May 2014 
Construction Start  May 2014 
Occupancy  July 2015 
 
Basic Statistics 
 
Gross Building Area  23,460 square feet 
Assignable Building Area  21,455 square feet 
Efficiency 91 percent 
 
Cost Estimate – California Construction Cost Index (CCCI) 60771 
 
Building Cost ($413 per GSF)  $9,687,000 
 Systems Breakdown (includes Group I2) ($ per GSF) 

a.  Total Building $342.41 
b.  General Conditions $  70.51 

 
Site Development (includes landscaping)  965,000 
 
Construction Cost  $10,652,000 
Fees, Contingency, Services 3,646,000 
 
Total Project Cost ($609 per GSF)  $14,298,000 
Group II Equipment3  202,000 
 
Grand Total  $14,500,000 
 
  

                                                 
1 The July 2013 Engineering News-Record California Construction Cost Index (CCCI). The CCCI is the average 
Building Cost Index for Los Angeles and San Francisco and is updated monthly. 
2 Group I equipment is built-in equipment installed as a part of the construction project; its cost is included in the 
construction contract. 
3 Group II equipment is movable and does not require significant utility connections; its cost is not included in the 
construction contract. Group II equipment is budgeted as a separate phase of the project. 
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Cost Comparison  
 
The building cost of $413 per GSF is higher than the CSU cost guide of $318 per GSF and the 
$401 per GSF for the California Maritime Academy Physical Education Replacement Facility 
approved in November 2011, adjusted to CCCI 6077. The higher cost is attributed to the San 
Diego project having approximately 6,000 GSF entirely below grade, whereas the Maritime 
project was below grade on three sides of the building, and both projects have additional 
foundation and waterproofing costs. The San Diego project also has enhanced building finishes 
and is subject to higher general conditions costs due to the constrained site location; the proposed 
site is surrounded by buildings on three sides, limiting contractor access. 
 
Funding Data 
 
The project will be primarily donor funded, and augmented with campus contributions from non-
state resources if needed. 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Action 
 
The project was found to have no significant impacts to the environment. A Notice of Exemption 
has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. The 
Notice of Exemption will be filed with the State Clearinghouse as required. 
 
The following resolution is presented for approval: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that: 
1. The board finds that the Categorical Exemption for the San Diego State 

University, Basketball Performance Center, has been prepared pursuant to 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

2. The schematic plans for the San Diego State University, Basketball 
Performance Center are approved at a project cost of $14,500,000 at  
CCCI 6077. 



AGENDA 
 

COMMITTEE ON UNIVERSITY AND FACULTY PERSONNEL 
 
Meeting: 3:15 p.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2014 

Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
 
Debra Farar, Chair 
Lou Monville, Vice Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg 
Steven M. Glazer 
William Hauck 
J. Lawrence Norton 
Steven G. Stepanek 
 

Consent Items 
Approval of Minutes of Meeting of November 5, 2013 

 
Discussion Items 

1. Executive Compensation:  Individual Transition Program, Information 
 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
COMMITTEE ON UNIVERSITY AND FACULTY PERSONNEL 

 
Trustees of The California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Conference Center 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 5, 2013 

 
Members Present 
Debra Farar, Chair  
Lou Monville, Vice Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg 
Steven M. Glazer 
Bob Linscheid, Chair of the Board 
J. Lawrence Norton 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Chair Bob Linscheid noted that Agenda Item 1 was withdrawn from the committee meeting. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of July 23, 2013 were approved as submitted. 
 
Executive Compensation 
 
Chancellor Timothy P. White announced the appointment of Ms. Sally F. Roush as interim vice 
chancellor for business and finance effective November 1, 2013.  He proposed an annual salary 
of $270,000 and in accord with existing policy, a monthly auto allowance of $1,000.  Chancellor 
White noted that Ms. Roush’s salary and auto allowance will begin in January 2014.  Until then, 
she will be paid an hourly rate as stated in the amended agenda item.  A motion was passed to 
recommend approval of the compensation as stated in Agenda Item 2.  (RUFP 11-13-04) 
 
Agenda Item 3 proposed compensation for Mr. Framroze Virjee as executive vice chancellor and 
general counsel effective January 1, 2014.  Chancellor White recommended an annual salary of 
$310,000 and in accord with existing policy, an auto allowance of $1,000 per month.  Trustee 
Farar called for a vote.  Trustees Steven M. Glazer and J. Lawrence Norton cast “no” votes.  The 
motion passed to recommend approval of the compensation as stated in Agenda  
Item 3.  (RUFP 11-13-05) 
 
Annual Report on Vice President Compensation, Executive Relocation, and Executive 
Transitions 
 
As required by the trustees, the 2013 annual report was presented by Chancellor White.  He noted 
that two annual reports were being provided−the 2013 report in Agenda Item 4 and a supplement 
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report for 2012 provided as a handout.  In preparing this year’s report it was discovered that the 
previous year’s report was not made as is customary due to an oversight during the transition.  
Chancellor White noted that the two vice president reports showed discipline in a difficult 
environment.  Over the past two years there were 39 vice president appointments – 36 filling 
vacant positions and 3 new vice president positions.   
 
Chancellor White recognized that relocation of newly hired leaders is sometimes necessary.  As 
is sometimes done with new faculty and staff hires, the CSU provides assistance for the 
relocation expenses of leadership positions.  He referred to Agenda Item 4 for details on 
executive relocation expenses. 
 
An update on executive transition programs was provided.  Chancellor White explained that in 
the past trustees provided for the transition of leadership into a trustee professorship which was 
replaced by the Executive Transition Program and later, the Executive Transition II.  Executive 
Transition II is provided for executives appointed on or after November 15, 2006 and restricted 
access in order to reduce costs and increase return.  He noted that the CSU has a contractual 
obligation to those hired under the earlier programs.  As reported in Agenda Item 4, three 
transition assignments ended earlier this year, three will end by December 31, 2013, and one 
trustee professor continues to serve in the program. 
 
Trustee Farar adjourned the meeting. 
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COMMITTEE ON UNIVERSITY AND FACULTY PERSONNEL 

 
Executive Compensation:  Individual Transition Program 
  
Presentation By 
 
Timothy P. White 
Chancellor 
 
Summary 
 
In November 2006, the Board of Trustees adopted a resolution (RUFP 11-06-06) requiring the 
chancellor to report on new individual transition programs in an open meeting of the Committee 
on University and Faculty Personnel.  This item will provide information regarding the transition 
of Dr. Benjamin F. Quillian. 
 
Trustee policy provides for the Executive Transition II Program for individuals appointed into an 
executive position on or after November 15, 2006.  To be eligible, the executive must have 
served five years in an executive position, be in good standing, have previously identified a 
position in the CSU to return to upon completion of the transitional program, and not accept non-
CSU employment. 
 
Information 
 
Dr. Benjamin F. Quillian resigned from the position of executive vice chancellor and chief 
financial officer effective December 31, 2013.  His transition assignment to which he is entitled 
under the Executive Transition II Program will be from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 
2014.   
 
During his transition assignment he will be reassigned into the Management Personnel Plan 
(MPP – Administrator IV) and be eligible for standard benefits afforded MPP employees.  Dr. 
Quillian’s salary will be set at the annual rate of $223,000.  His auto allowance, which is 
afforded CSU executives, is discontinued effective December 31, 2013. 
 
Dr. Quillian’s duties during his transition assignment shall include: 
 
• To work with the interim, and then the permanent, executive vice chancellor and chief 

financial officer to effect a smooth transition of duties, projects and issues.  
• To be available for consultation as issues are identified. 
• To co-chair a task force on the university’s revenue acquisition and distribution model that 

was implemented in 1993-1994 and last reviewed in 2000. 
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• To assist in providing course materials and preparation to re-join the faculty at CSU Long 

Beach. 
• Other assignments mutually agreed upon. 
 
Effective January 1, 2015, Dr. Quillian will assume a faculty position in the College of 
Education at the California State University, Long Beach.  
 
The Chancellor’s Office will be responsible for all costs associated with the Executive Transition 
II Program.  Thereafter, all costs and decisions regarding Dr. Quillian’s appointment will be 
made by CSU Long Beach. 
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*The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings.  
This schedule of meetings is established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to 
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indicated may vary widely.  The public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting 
listed on this schedule. 
 

1 

TRUSTEES OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY 
 

California State University 
Office of the Chancellor 

Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 
401 Golden Shore 

Long Beach, CA  90802 
 

January 29, 2014 
 

Presiding:  Bob Linscheid, Chair 
 
 
4:00 p.m.  Board of Trustees      Dumke Auditorium 

 
Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

Public Comment 
 
Chair’s Report 
 
Chancellor’s Report 

 
Report of the Academic Senate CSU:  Chair—Diana Guerin 
 
Report of the California State University Alumni Council:  President— Kristin Crellin 
 
Report of the California State Student Association:  President—Sarah Couch 
 
Approval of Minutes of Board of Trustees’ Meeting of November 6, 2013 
 
Board of Trustees 

1. Posthumous Conferral of Title of Trustee Emeritus:  Peter G. Mehas 
2. Conferral of Title of Trustee Emeritus:  Bernadette Cheyne 
3. Conferral of Title of Chancellor Emeritus:  Barry Munitz 



*The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings.  
This schedule of meetings is established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to 
complete its business.  Each meeting will be taken in sequence, except in unusual circumstances.  Depending on the 
length of the discussions, which are not possible to predict with precision in advance, the scheduled meeting times 
indicated may vary widely.  The public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting 
listed on this schedule. 

 
2 

 
Committee Reports 

 
 Committee on Collective Bargaining:  Chair—Lou Monville 

 
Committee on Governmental Relations:  Chair—Steven Glazer 

1. Board of Trustees Legislative Program, 2014 
2. California State University 2014 Federal Agenda 

 
 Committee on Audit:  Chair—Lupe C. Garcia 
 
 Committee on Organization and Rules:  Chair—J. Lawrence Norton 

1. Rules Governing the Board of Trustees 
 

Committee on Finance:  Chair—Bill Hauck 
 
Committee on Institutional Advancement:  Chair—Hugo N. Morales 

1. Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University 
2. Naming of a Facility – San Diego State University 
3. Naming of a Facility – Sonoma State University 
4. Approval of the 2012-2013 Annual Report on Philanthropic Support to the 

California State University 
 

Committee of Educational Policy:  Chair—Roberta Achtenberg 
 

 Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds: Chair—Rebecca D. Eisen 
1. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, Non-State Funded 
2. Amend the 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Program, State Funded  
4.   Approval of Schematic Plans 
 

 Committee on University and Faculty Personnel:  Chair—Lou Monville 
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
Trustees of the California State University 

Office of the Chancellor 
Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 

401 Golden Shore 
Long Beach, California 

 
November 6, 2013 

 
Trustees Present 
 
 
 
Bob Linscheid, Chair 
Lou Monville, Vice Chair 
Roberta Achtenberg 
Talar Alexanian 
Rebecca D. Eisen 
Douglas Faigin 
Debra S. Farar  
Lupe C. Garcia  
Steven M. Glazer  
Hugo N. Morales 
Gavin Newsom, Lieutenant Governor 
J. Lawrence Norton 
Cipriano Vargas 
Timothy P. White, Chancellor 
 
Public Comment 
 
The board heard from several individuals during the public comment period.  Richard Schave, 
Hornets for Healthy Hive, Sacramento State, spoke about implementing a tobacco free campus 
within the next few years. Luis Kischmischian, Hornets for Healthy Hive, Sacramento State Media 
Director spoke about the momentum and outreach of the organization. Javier Gomez, CSSA board 
member, spoke about student perspective on bottle neck courses and online learning. Eli 
Tizcareno, Alumni UC Riverside, spoke about adopting a sustainable food system in the CSU’s 
sustainability policy. Anh Tran, student CSULB, spoke about current projects on campus that 
support the sustainability policy. Dolores Pinu, spoke about in support of adopting a sustainability 
food policy. Tim Xie, faculty, CSULB, Dept. Chair, Asian/Asian American Studies, spoke about 
reduced funding and possible cuts to the foreign language and ethnic studies programs. John 
Tsuchida, Faculty, CSULB, Asian/ Asian American Studies, spoke about the due process and 
protection in the context of higher education.  Diana Crumedy, student, SJSU, spoke in support of 
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African American studies and proposed a two year moratorium in any changes to ethnic studies 
programs for all CSU campuses. Joel Murillo, expressed his admiration of former board member, 
Peter G. Mehas, and noted that the CSU had lost a great advocate. Harpreet S. Bath, student, 
CSUF, spoke about support and funding for the Fullerton campus. Rohullah Latif, ASI president 
CSUF, acknowledged the support given to CSUF, but would also like funding to increase for 
CSUF. Pat Gantt, president, CSUEU, expressed his thanks for the efforts in moving forward with 
the bargaining units. Mike Geck, organizing, CSUEU, spoke about the progress and change he sees 
in the CSU and thanked the chancellor for keeping communication open. Tessy Reese, chair, 
Bargaining Unit 2 CSUEU, spoke about bargaining and longevity within the system. She stated 
she has been employed for 17 years but that the CSU is no longer hiring employees who stay for 
the long haul and noted the importance of that because the CSU is a great institution. John Orr, 
chair, Unit 7 CSUEU, spoke about the importance of the role of leadership and professional 
development within the CSU. Alisandra Brewer, vice president, CSUEU, expressed her support of 
staff system-wide and her gratitude to Chancellor White for taking the time to visit Sonoma State. 
 
Chair’s Report 
 
Chair Linscheid’s complete report can be viewed online at the following URL: 
http://www.calstate.edu/BOT/chair-reports/nov2013.shtml 
 
Chancellor's Report 
 
Chancellor Timothy P. White’s complete report can be viewed online at the following URL: 
 http://www.calstate.edu/bot/chancellor-reports/131106.shtml 
 
Report of the Academic Senate CSU 
 
CSU Academic Senate Chair, Diana Guerin’s complete report can be viewed online at the 
following 
URL: http://www.calstate.edu/AcadSen/Records/Chairs_Reports/documents/Nov_2013_C
hairs_BOT_Rept.pdf  
 
Report of the California State University Alumni Council 
 
Alumni Council President, Kristin Crellin’s complete report can be viewed online at 
the following URL:  http://www.calstate.edu/alumni/council/bot/20131106.shtml 
 
Report from the California State Student Association 
 
CSSA President Sarah Couch’s complete report can be viewed online at the following URL: 
 http://www.csustudents.org/index.php/public-resources/public-documents/reports/ 

  

http://www.calstate.edu/BOT/chair-reports/nov2013.shtml
http://www.calstate.edu/bot/chancellor-reports/131106.shtml
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http://www.calstate.edu/AcadSen/Records/Chairs_Reports/documents/Nov_2013_Chairs_BOT_Rept.pdf
http://www.calstate.edu/alumni/council/bot/20131106.shtml
http://www.csustudents.org/index.php/public-resources/public-documents/reports/
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Committee Reports 
 
Approval of Minutes of Board of Trustees Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting of September 25, 2013, were approved. 
 
 Board of Trustees 
 
Conferral of Commendation Upon Henry Mendoza (RCOC 11-13-12) 
 
Chair Linscheid moved the item; there was a second. The Board of Trustees approved the 
following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, Henry Mendoza was appointed as a member of the Board of 
Trustees of the California State University in 2008 by Governor Arnold 
Schwarzenegger, and since that time has served ably in that position; and  

WHEREAS, Henry Mendoza served as a member of the Board for five 
years and offered an invaluable perspective to the deliberations of the Board 
of Trustees in a range of matters and served on the selection committees for 
presidents of California State University, Fullerton in 2011, California 
Maritime Academy in 2012, and California State University, Fresno in 
2012; and 

WHEREAS, Henry Mendoza was elected by his board colleagues to serve 
as Chair of the Committee on Audit and Vice Chair of the Committee on 
Governmental Relations; and  

WHEREAS, Trustee Mendoza contributed his extensive knowledge and 
expertise in accounting, audit and business, all of which are critical to the 
advancement of the California State University; and  

WHEREAS, through his service on the Board of Trustees, made a personal 
contribution to the good of higher education and the people of California; 
and 

THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Trustees of the California 
State University, that this board commends Henry Mendoza on his service 
to the California State University.  
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Committee on Collective Bargaining 
 
Trustee Monville reported the committee heard four action items: Adoption of Initial Proposals 
for 2013-2014 Salary Re-Opener Negotiations with Bargaining Unit 6 (State Employees’ Trades 
Council); Adoption of Initial Proposals for 2014 Full Contract Negotiations with Bargaining Unit 
3 (California Faculty Association); Ratification of a Successor Collective Bargaining Agreement 
with Bargaining Unit 11 (United Auto Workers); and Ratification of a Successor Collective 
Bargaining Agreement with Bargaining Unit 13, English Language Program Instructors, 
California State University, Los Angeles (California State University Employees’ Union). He 
also reported that the committee heard from the following public speakers: Pat Gantt, president 
CSUEU; Mike Geck, CSUEU organizing vice president; Tessy Reese, chair, Bargaining Unit 
2; Pam Robertson, Bargaining Unit 2; Sharon Cunningham, chair Bargaining Unit 5; Mike 
Chavez, Bargaining Unit 5; John Orr, chair, Unit 7 CSUEU; Rocky Sanchez, Bargaining Unit 
7; Susan Smith, Vice-chair, Bargaining unit 9; Alisandra Brewer, vice president, CSUEU; 
Andy Mayfield, chair, CFA Bargaining team; Patricia Donze, CFA faculty; DD Willis, chapter 
president, CFA; and Rich Anderson, president, UAW Local 4123.  
 
Committee on Educational Policy 
 

Trustee Achtenberg reported the committee heard five information items: Update on the Early 
Assessment Program; Update on SB 1440: Student Transfer Achievement Reform Act; The 
California State University Institute for Palliative Care at California State University San 
Marcos; The California State University Nursing Programs Update; and Outstanding Faculty 
Website. 
 
Committee on Governmental Relations 
 
Trustee Glazer reported the committee heard two information items, Legislative Update; and 
Veteran’s Legislative Update. 
 
Committee on Audit 
 
Trustee Garcia reported that two items were deferred, Item 2, Audit Committee Charter and 
Item 3, Office of the University Auditor Charter.  She then reported that the committee heard 
one information item, the Status Report on Current and Follow-Up Internal Audit Assignments 
and one action item as follows: 
 
Intent to Reissue the Request for Proposal for External Auditor Contract   
(RAUD 11-13-02) 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that the request to extend the existing contract with KPMG for one 
additional year to perform the 2013-2014 fiscal year audit, is approved.   
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Committee on Campus Planning Buildings and Grounds 
 
Trustee Eisen reported the committee heard four action items as follows: 
 
Acceptance of Interest in Real Property, Sonoma State University (RCPBG 11-13-10) 
 
Trustee Eisen moved the item. The Board of Trustees approved the following resolution: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that the campus president or designee is authorized to accept on behalf of the 
Board of Trustees the interest in 38 acres of real property given to the 
California State University by William and Joan Roth which will be included 
in the Fairfield Osborne Preserve. 

Approve the Campus Master Plan Revision for California State Polytechnic University,  
Pomona for the Administration Replacement Facility (RCPBG 11-13-11) 
 
Trustee Eisen moved the item. The Board of Trustees approved the following resolution: 

 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that: 

1. The Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the California 
State Polytechnic University, Pomona’s Administration Replacement 
Facility, including the Campus Master Plan revision and future 
schematic plans, dated November 2013, has been prepared to address 
any potentially significant environmental impacts, mitigation measures, 
and comments associated with approval of the California State 
Polytechnic University, Pomona’s Administration Replacement Facility. 
 

2. The Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act and state CEQA 
Guidelines. 

 
3. This resolution is adopted pursuant to the requirements of Section 21081 

of Public Resources Code and Section 15091 of the state CEQA 
Guidelines, which require that the Board of Trustees make findings prior 
to the approval of a project, that the mitigated project as approved will 
not have a significant impact on the environment, that the project will be 
constructed with the recommended mitigation measures as identified in 
the mitigation monitoring program, and that the project will benefit the 
California State University. The Board of Trustees makes such findings 
with regard to this project. 
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4. The California State Polytechnic University, Pomona’s Campus Master 
Plan revision dated November 2013 is hereby approved. 

 
5. The chancellor or his designee is requested under the Delegation of 

Authority by the Board of Trustees to file the Notice of Determination 
for the Project. 

 
State and Non-State Funded Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 2014-2015 through 
2018-2019 (RCPBG 11-13-12) 
 
Trustee Eisen moved the item. The Board of Trustees approved the following resolution: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that: 

1. The final State and Non-State Funded Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Program 2014-2015 through 2018-2019 totaling $7,029,713,000 and 
$3,733,729,000, respectively, are approved. 

2. The 2014-2015 State Funded Capital Outlay Program included in the 
five-year program distributed with the agenda is approved at 
$456,388,000. 
 

3. The 2014-2015 Non-State Funded Capital Outlay Program included in 
the five-year program is approved at $14,309,000. The chancellor is 
authorized to proceed in 2013-2014 with design documents for fast-track 
projects in the 2014-2015 non-state program. 
 

4. The chancellor is requested to explore all reasonable funding methods 
available and communicate to the governor and the legislature the need 
to provide funds for the CSU state funded plan in order to develop the 
facilities necessary to serve all eligible students. 

5. The chancellor is authorized to make adjustments, as necessary, 
including priority sequence, scope, phase, project cost, and total budget 
request for the 2014-2015 State Funded Capital Outlay Program. 
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Categories and Criteria for the State Funded Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 2015-
2016 through 2019-2020    (RCPBG 11-13-13) 

Trustee Eisen moved the item. The Board of Trustees approved the following resolution: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that: 
 
1. The Categories and Criteria for the State Funded Five-Year Capital 

Improvement Program 2015-2016 through 2019-2020 in Revised 
Attachment A of Agenda Item 4 of the November 5-6, 2013 meeting of 
the Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds be 
approved; and 
 

2. The chancellor is directed to use these categories and criteria to prepare 
the CSU State Funded Five-Year Capital Improvement Program.  

Committee on Finance 
 
Trustee Achtenberg reported the committee heard two information items: the 2013-2014 Student 
Fee Report; and the California State University Annual Investment Report.  The Committee also 
heard four action items as follow:  
 

Approval of the 2014-2015 Support Budget Request  (RFIN 11-13-07) 
 
Trustee Achtenberg moved the item; there was a second.  The Board of Trustees approved 
the following resolution: 
  

RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of the California State University 
acknowledge and express their appreciation to the governor and legislature 
for their increased budget support; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the trustees understand there are numerous competing 
interests for budgetary support given the fiscal constraints under which 
California continues to operate; and be it further 

RESOLVED,  that the future of California and its economy rests on the 
success of the CSU in providing life-changing benefits to hundreds of 
thousands of students; and be it further 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University 
that the2014-2015 support budget request is approved as submitted by the 
chancellor; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the chancellor is authorized to adjust and amend this 
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budget to reflect changes in the assumptions upon which this budget is 
based, and that any changes made by the chancellor be communicated 
promptly to the trustees; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution be transmitted to the Governor, 
to the director of the Department of Finance and to the legislature. 

2014-2015 Lottery Revenue Budget (RFIN 11-13-08) 
 
Trustee Achtenberg moved the item; there was a second.  The Board of Trustees approved 
the following resolution: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that the 2014-2015 lottery revenue budget totaling $46 million be approved 
for implementation by the chancellor, with the authorization to make 
transfers between components of the lottery revenue budget and to phase 
expenditures in accordance with receipt of lottery funds; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that a portion of campus-based program allocations will be 
used to support student financial aid for the trustee-approved Early Start 
program. These funds will be used to allow student enrollment in the Early 
Start summer curriculum regardless of financial need; and be it further, 
 
RESOLVED, that the chancellor is hereby granted authority to adjust the  
2014-2015 lottery revenue budget approved by the Board of Trustees to the 
extent that receipts are greater or lesser than budgeted revenue to respond to 
opportunities or exigencies; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that a report of the 2014-2015 lottery revenue budget receipts 
and expenditures be made to the Board of Trustees. 

 
California State University Investment Policy Clarification    (RFIN 11-13-09) 
 
Trustee Achtenberg moved the item; there was a second.  The Board of Trustees approved 
the following resolution: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that the California State University Investment Policy, as amended and 
presented herein as Attachment A of Agenda Item 5 of the November 5-6, 
2013 meeting of the Committee on Finance, is approved. 
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Committee on University and Faculty Personnel 
 
Trustee Farar reported the committee heard one information item, Executive and Vice President 
Annual Report and two action items as follow: 

 
Executive Compensation:  Interim Vice Chancellor, Business and Finance (RUFP 11-13-04) 
 
Trustee Farrar moved the item; there was a second. The Board of Trustees approved the 
following resolution: 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that Ms. Sally F. Roush shall receive a salary set at the annual rate of 
$270,000 effective November 1, 2013, the date of her appointment as 
interim vice chancellor, business and finance, of the California State 
University; and be it further 

RESOLVED, Ms. Roush shall receive additional benefits as cited in 
Agenda Item 2 of the Committee on University and Faculty Personnel at the 
November 5-6, 2013, meeting of the CSU Board of Trustees. 

Executive Compensation:  Executive Vice Chancellor and General Counsel (RUFP 11-13-05) 
 
Trustee Farrar moved the item; there was a second. The Board of Trustees approved the 
following resolution: 

 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, 
that Mr. Framroze Virjee shall receive a salary set at the annual rate of 
$310,000 effective January 1, 2014, the date of his appointment as executive 
vice chancellor and general counsel of the California State University; and 
be it further 

RESOLVED, Mr. Virjee shall receive additional benefits as cited in 
Agenda Item 3 of the Committee on University and Faculty Personnel at the 
November 5-6, 2013, meeting of the CSU Board of Trustees. 

Committee on Committees 
 
Trustee Monville reported the committee heard one action item as follows:   
 
Appointment of Vice Chairs and Faculty Trustee to Standing Committees, 2013-2014 
(RCOC 11-13-04) 
 
Trustee Monville moved the item; there was a second. The Board of Trustees approved the 
following resolution: 
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 RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of The California State University, 

on recommendation by the Committee on Committees that the newly 
appointed Faculty Trustee, Steven G. Stepank is appointed to the following 
standing committees: Educational Policy, Governmental Relations, 
Institutional Advancement and University and Faculty Personnel. 

 RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of The California State University, 
on recommendation by the Committee on Committees that the following 
trustees are appointed vice chairs of the committees listed below:   

Audit 
 Steven M. Glazer, Vice Chair 
  
Campus Planning, Buildings And Grounds 
  J. Lawrence Norton, Vice Chair 
  
Institutional Advancement 
  Douglas Faigin, Vice Chair 
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